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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hydoo International Holding Limited
("Hydoo", the “Company”, “we", or “our’), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group™), |
hereby present the annual report of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 (“FY2018" or the “Year).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the Year, the Group's revenue and gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB2,842.2 million and RMBI,142.9 million respectively, representing an increase of
58.6% and 59.7% respectively (the revenue and gross profit for the financial year ended
31 December 2017 (“FY2017"): RMBI,792.4 million and RMB715.8 million, respectively).
Basic earnings per share for FY2018 were RMB2.7 cents (FY2017: RMBé6.1 cents).

MARKET AND OPERATION REVIEW

In 2018, China's Gross Domestic Product (“GDP") amounted to RMB90 trillion, up 6.6%
year on year, with the growth rate falling by 0.3%. The downward pressure on China's
economy has increased, which contributed to the trend of slowing-down growth rate.
Specifically, the industrial growth rate declined to 5.4%, which is the lowest since 1992
and beyond our expectation. The consumption growth rate also hit a new low, with
the import & export and inflation all falling, and the growth rate of currency supply and
social financing dropping to a historical low, and the decline in fiscal revenue continuing
to expand. From the perspective of the industry, the frequency of Chinese government
issuing regulation policies on its real estate market in 2018 has hit a record high, with
the restrictive policies aimed at strengthening supervision, deleveraging and encouraging

diversification imposing considerable pressure and challenges in the real estate industry.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

In view of the complicated market environment both at home and abroad, the Group
managed to fight back the adverse effects caused by various difficulties, and strived to
maintain social stability, to ensure normal operation of the economy, to maintain proper
pace of the economic growth, to promote reform, and to maintain the sustainability of
the Group's operations. During the Year, the Group recorded a contracted sales amount
of approximately RMB2,854.9 million, representing an increase of 5.0% as compared to
the previous year. The Group relied on project management as the spearhead to enhance
its economic efficiency. On one hand, it increased its efforts to liquidate the inventory
and integrate sales resources, so as to capitalize the inventory assets, among which, the
sales of the existing commercial assets of the Group in Jining, Liuzhou, Lanzhou, Wuzhou,
Yantai, Ganzhou, Yulin and Heze achieved agreeable results. On the other hand, to be in
line with the market conditions, the Group launched new saleable projects, especially the
residential projects, aiming to grasp the opportunities, to keep the progress of the projects
under control, and to recover sales proceeds as quickly as possible. During the Year, the
residential projects of the Group in Jining, Ganzhou and Wuzhou were offered for sales in

an orderly manner, providing strong support for its contracted sales results.

In respect of the recurring business, its income continued to grow during the Year.
In 2018, the Group's revenue from the provision of property management services
amounted to approximately RMB57.5 million, an increase of 15.7% from the previous year.
Such increase in revenue was attributable to the continuous expansion of our property
management services business and the increase in the area of the properties under our
management. The revenue from rentals amounted to approximately RMB39.7 million, an
increase of 66.2% from the previous year, which is the result of continuous increase in

leasing areas.
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While focusing on industrial real estate as its principal activities, the Group continued
to pursuit its target of transformation and innovation and strived to improve the quality
of its development. The Group's independently-developed store management software
Yi Zhang Gui (BRE1E), aggregated payment system “Yi Qi Fu (BX#81)"and logistics
management software “Yi Qi Song (3R#£3X)" continue to be leveraged across the
industrial parks where the Group's projects are located and were upgraded during
the process. Meanwhile, the Group participated in the strategic investment in the
technologically innovative enterprises such as Shanghai Shanggiao Supply Chain Service
Co., Ltd. (L/BEBHEERTBE AR AF]), Shenzhen Canbeidou Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (RIITE LIt EFEE IR 2 7)) and Beijing Chaoliang
Technology Co., Ltd. (Jt REBREHR AR E E7A ), which has brought the Group
closer to its goal of becoming a first-class industrial real estate investment holding group.
The Group also established a strategic partnership with the Shenzhen Industry-University-
Research Institute Collaboration Association, and introduced advanced technologies such
as robots and artificial intelligence and integrated resources from all origins to promote

the construction of the Group's artificial intelligence park.

PROSPECTS

As learnt from the GDP data in recent years, China's economy will continue to face
significant downward pressure in the next few years. The Central Economic Work
Conference held at the end of 2018 has made detailed arrangements for the economic
work in 2019, and proposed that the macroeconomic policies shall strengthen
countercyclical adjustment while pursuing proactive fiscal policies. The keynote was set
for the seven key tasks in relation to China's economy in 2019, including promoting the
high-quality development of the manufacturing industry, promoting the establishment
of a booming domestic market, steadily implementing the rural revitalization strategy,
promoting regional coordinated development, accelerating economic restructuring,
promoting all-round opening up, and strengthening security and improving people's
livelihood. For the real estate industry, the general positioning of the Chinese central
government of “the housing is for accommodation, not for speculation” has remained
unchanged. It is expected that the downward pressure on real estate investment and sales
will increase in 2019, and the financial regulatory policies will remain tightened, with the
regulating measures such as restriction on land financing, the shortage of loan quotas for
R&D and the strengthening of loan approval remain unchanged in the short term. The
leveraging capacity and flexibility of the real estate enterprises are further limited, and
financing and financing costs will certainly constitute the main difficulties to be faced by

real estate developers in 2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

In 2019, we will face the reality of increasing downward pressure on China's economy,
and continue to pursue stable development. Based on the practical circumstances, we
will carry on our reform and innovation, and give full support to the Group's pursuit of
high-quality development. The Group will focus on the following aspects: firstly, relying
on project management as the spearhead to enhance the Group's principal business
operations; secondly, seizing the opportunity arising from resource integration to improve
the Group's industrial structure; thirdly, pursuing the target of transformation and
innovation to improve the quality of the Group's development; fourthly, strengthening
management as the objective to facilitate the Group's transformation and upgrading;
fifthly, focusing on organizational reform to enhance the quality of our talent team; sixthly,

fostering a corporate culture featuring cleanness, honesty and self-discipline.

In addition, though we are confronted with numerous uncertainties and volatility, there are
opportunities for us to look forward to. In February 2019, the State Council promulgated
the “Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area” (the "Outline™), which positioned Hong Kong, Macao, Guangzhou and Shenzhen
as the four core cities of the Greater Bay Area, which are required to give full play to
their roles as the core drivers of regional development, and continue to exert their
comparative advantages to grow bigger and stronger, and promote the development in
the surrounding areas. The Group will stay abreast of the market demands and rationally
plan the construction of the projects in the Greater Bay Area. Meanwhile, the Group
entered into strategic partnership with the Shenzhen Industry-University-Research Institute
Collaboration Association at the end of 2018, which provided that the Shenzhen Industry-
University-Research Institute Collaboration Association will procure that the outstanding
high-tech enterprises, funds and service organizations in the Greater Bay Area shall
provide services to the projects operated by the Shenzhen Industry-University-Research
Institute Collaboration Association, and recommend to the Company high-quality cross-
disciplinary resources and services such as robotics, artificial intelligence, life & health, and
technology finance, and share with the Company advanced models and experience in
relation to the relevant frontline policies and industrial park development and construction,
business strategies and operations management. In 2019, the Group will speed up the
implementation and refinement of its cooperation with the Shenzhen Industry-University-
Research Institute Collaboration Association, and seek cooperation with more high-tech
companies with high added values and introduce them into its new industries and projects,
aiming to advance the strategic deployment of the Group's technological innovation and

production-city integration in a planned and step-by-step manner.
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APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers and business partners for their trust and
support, | would also like to thank all our staff for their professionalism and wholehearted

commitment.

Wang Jianli

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of FY2018 Performance

Contracted Sales Performance

In FY2018, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB2,854.9 million and
contracted sales area of 401,378 sqm., representing an increase of 5.0% and a decrease
of 13.9% respectively (FY2017: approximately RMB2,718.9 million and 466,115 sq.m.).
Contracted sales recorded during the Year were primarily in relation to the pre-sale of

properties for projects in Jining, Liuzhou, Lanzhou, Wuzhou and Yantai.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R

¥KE
018 BFEERRERE

BHHERT

RISHBEE  AREHBRNHEESEN
AREL28549BE T RE LN HEEIE401,378
FHAK 2RI INS5.0% KD 13.9%(2017 B
FE:HARELIIBIFE T R466,115FH
K)o FRAREHNHEELTERGEE -HIM - &
M BNRERBERMNEE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmE DN
Details of contracted sales recorded in FY2018 are shown in the table below: WISFTHEEANHEENFBINTE

For the year ended 31 December

BZNANALEE

218 017
Average contracted  Contracted sales Average contracted  Contracted sales
sales price (before  amount (before sales price (before  amount (before
deduction of value ~ deduction of value deduction of value  deduction of value
Contracted added tax and added tax and Contracted added tax and added tax and
sales area surcharges) surcharges) sales area surcharges) surcharges)
ahEE ANHE
THER AHEELE THIEE ANHESR
(REEHRR (REERR (REERR (REERR

SHHERR HmE) HimEa) ANHERR HmEsD) HmEs)

(contracted sales area in sqm, average contracted sales price in RMB per sqm. and contracted sales amount i thousands of RIB)

(BHHETEL IR  AOEETHERN G RR it RENHEL NN R T i)

Jining Trade Center EEHEMRAL

Other commercie Efbig% a4m 13,665 590615 = = =
Shapping mll FRRHRTE 51,941 9,500 493436 = = =
Residence frz yixE] 5,760 149352 28174 4801 135273
Wholesale trading market units BURFETRET 30725 4111 126,97 5,885 4134 65,662
Liuzhou Trade Center HNEEMRAL

Wholesale trading market unts BURHRTRET 40978 8291 339,76 21,102 8660 1,048,778
Lanzhou Trade Center BNEEDRAL

Wholesale trading market units BURHRTRET 57391 5,146 295,354 74986 5807 435408
Wauzhou Trade Center BNEEMRHD

Residence i 23,656 4579 108,326 = = -
Wholesale trading market unis BURFETRET 2333 4448 99333 3629 4620 155372
Yantai Trade Center BaBENFRL

Senviced apartments BEXAE 12977 9,501 123290 = = =
Wholesale trading market units BURFETRET 10,171 6,152 62,570 2898 6546 18970
Ganzhou Trade Center ENEEMRAD

Residence frz 20429 70 143426 5610 444 14920
Wholesale trading markcet unis BURFETRET 2937 9,698 28484 4319 7516 30463
Yulin Trade Center INBEARAL

Wholesale trading market unis BURSRTRET 26,065 4961 129,306 8511 4994 4503
Shapping mall FRRARTR 2007 5,667 11,488 = = =
Heze Trade Center HEBEMRAL

Wholesale trading market units BURFETRET 07171 4659 106,124 57656 4178 240,869
Mianyang Trade Center SEEEDRAL

Wholesale trading market unis BURSRTRET 6927 6409 4393 3508 534 18,746
Others B = = = 7120 | 685 12000
Ningxiang Trade Center EFBENRAL

Senviced apartments BEXLAE 9l 3715 3310 13928 4237 59011
Bengbu Commercial and Residential Project S EBERA%ER

Residence fix - - - 69,189 4526 313,140
Xingning Trade Center REHEEWRAL

Wholesale trading market units BURSRTRET = = = 19600 5908 115790
Total @ 401378 7113 2,854,865 466,115 5833 2718905

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % 11



12

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DM

Land Acquisition and Land Bank

In FY2018, we acquired land-use rights with an aggregate total site area of approximately

0.2 million sgm., which is expected to have an aggregate estimated gross floor area (the

“GFA") of approximately 0.5 million sq.m.. As of 31 December 2018, we had a total

land bank of approximately 9.0 million sq.m., and we were simultaneously developing |2

projects in 7 provinces and autonomous regions in China.

Details of land bank for each project are shown in the table below:

Tl B R LA

R20I8HNEE - RFIBAEDEES £
02 B& T RN L ERE - &L FREY
¥NferEnE((SREERDAAR0SAE
BYAK-BEN8FI2A318 H#MEL
MFEEELA0BET K LIERFEMNE

AEhRkEARERRAZT—[EEE -

FRA HREEHBERTE

Properties
Properties Planned
under for Future
Completed Properties Development  Development
REE
ARER
SRINE HENE mE
Undelivered Estimated GFA
Actual Saleable Total GFA  saleable GFA Estimated GFA  of properties
GFA of GFA of  of properties  of completed  of properties planned
completed completed delivered as of  properties as under for future
properties properties  31/12/2018 of 31/12/2018  development  development Land bank
8=
20185
S 128318
20185 AR REfE
BT 2% 12A318 ERIVNE  EBYE  AXER
NEBR NETHE B WHE fbst WM
HEEER LEFERE ARYEE MAREEE LEEER LEFER  ItuRE
sg.m. sg.m. sg.m. sg.m. sq.m, sq.m, sq.m.
(FrK)  (FrK)  (Frk) (Frk) (FrR) (F5K)  (FrR)
Lanzhou Trade Center HNEEmRA L 585,165 490976 282,269 208,707 108,553 2523325 2,840,585
Ganzhou Trade Center SEMEEWRF L 953308 900,226 637,141 263,085 269,097 2,054,043 2,586,225
Wuzhou Trade Center BMEERF L 452,759 405,168 267343 137,825 158,301 553,348 849,474
Jining Trade Center EEREMRD L 835,670 746,158 638,555 107,603 260,260 316,929 684,792
Heze Trade Center SHEREMRT O 301,846 284,104 179,299 104,805 84736 308,111 497,652
Jiamusi Trade Center EARIEE DR L 6,344 6,344 = 6,344 = 449,038 455382
Yulin Trade Center EREEDRAR L 432,680 355613 241575 114,038 212,805 110,895 437738
Yantai Trade Center EEEmEMRTR L 141,040 143,158 45,642 97516 140,425 = 237941
Liuzhou Trade Center MMEB IR O 154517 154517 131,493 23024 33651 112,093 168,768
Ningxiang Trade Center EEHBEWRA L 382,842 374948 286,857 88,091 61518 = 149,609
Mianyang Trade Center BEEEmRT L 511,435 434236 396,501 37,735 = 80321 118,056
Haode Yinzuo RIERE 48,650 48,650 39,833 8817 = — 8817
Total @t 4806256 4344098 3,146,508 1,197,590 1329346 6508103 9035039

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUR PROJECTS

Lanzhou Trade Center

Lanzhou Trade Center is located in Yuzhong County, Lanzhou, which is next to the
community of Lanzhou College. It is located in the south of Qinling Highway and 312
National Road and the north of 309 National Road, and is approximately 15 kilometers
from downtown Lanzhou City, 20 kilometers and 80 kilometers from the railway station

and airport of Lanzhou City, respectively.

Lanzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 4.0 million sqm.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 6.0 million s,gm., which is expected
to be developed at least in two phases. As of 31 December 2018, we had acquired the
land-use rights encompassing a total site area of approximately 1.5 million sqm., with a

total GFA of approximately 3.2 million sq.m. upon completion.

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of the wholesale trading
markets and a commercial pedestrian street. We were constructing wholesale trading
markets. As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct shopping

malls, residential areas, warehouses and additional wholesale trading markets.

Ganzhou Trade Center

Ganzhou Trade Center is strategically located in southwestern Jiangxi province near the
intersection of Jiangxi, Hunan and Guangdong provinces. Ganzhou lies along a major
transportation route connecting the inland areas of China with China's southeastern coast.
There are two major railways intersecting in Ganzhou, namely the Jing-Jiu Railway and the

Gan-Long Railway.

Ganzhou Trade Center covers a land area of approximately .5 milliom sq.m., which
is estimated to consist of at least two phases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 3.3 million sq.m. upon full completion. As of 31 December 2018, we had

acquired all the land-use rights for this trade center project

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of the wholesale trading
markets, shopping malls, a food street, a logistics distribution center and certain supporting
buildings and facilities. We are constructing warehouses and residential areas. As part of
our future development plan, we are planning to construct commercial and exhibition

center, additional shopping malls, residential areas, warehouses, office buildings and hotels.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Wouzhou Trade Center

Wuzhou Trade Center is strategically located in Wuzhou, a city in eastern Guangxi near
the border of Guangxi and Guangdong province. It is approximately 370 kilometers east
of Nanning, the capital of Guangxi, and approximately 270 kilometers west of Guangzhou,

the capital of Guangdong.

Wuzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 1.3 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in two phases. As of 3|1 December 2018, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phase |, encompassing a total site area of approximately 0.6 million sq.m.
with a total planned GFA of approximately |.2 million sq.m. upon full completion of Phase

| development.

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of wholesale trading
markets, shopping malls, a commercial and exhibition center, and certain supporting
buildings and facilities. We were constructing residential areas. As part of our future
development plan, we are planning to construct residential areas, office buildings, serviced

apartments, a hotel, warehouses and additional shopping malls.

Jining Trade Center

Jining Trade Center is located approximately six kilometers west of Jining, a prefecture
level city in southwestern Shandong province, and is one of the three major industrial
bases in Shandong province. It is easily accessible by a number of connecting bus lines,
and lies within ten kilometers of the Jining train station and 30 kilometers of Jining Qufu

airport.

Jining Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 2.0 million sqm., and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 3.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2018, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase | and Phase II, encompassing a total site area of approximately 1.0 million
sgm. and expect a total GFA of approximately |.4 million sq.m. upon full completion of
Phase I and Phase Il.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of wholesale trading
markets, shopping malls and residential areas, and were constructing a shopping mall, a
commercial center and residential areas. As part of our future development plan, we are
planning to construct wholesale trading markets, serviced apartments, residential areas and

office buildings.

Heze Trade Center

Heze Trade Center is located in the city's central Mudan District along National Highway

220 and is approximately two kilometers from Heze's city center.

Heze Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 8.0 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 12.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2018, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase | and a portion of Phase Il, encompassing a total site area of approximately
0.7 million sq.m. with a total planned GFA of approximately 0.7 million sq.m. upon

completion of the Phase | and Phase Il development.

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of the wholesale trading
markets, a shopping mall and a commercial center, and were constructing additional
wholesale trading markets. As part of our future development plan, we are planning to
construct office buildings, serviced apartments, additional shopping malls and wholesale

trading markets.
Jiamusi Trade Center

Jiamusi Trade Center is located in Jiamusi City, the core city and transportation hub in
eastern Heilongjiang. It is located approximately ten kilometers west of Jiamusi's city hall,
in the north of Youyi Road (the urban main road), and one kilometer from Ha-Tong

Freeway.

As of 3| December 2018, we had acquired land-use rights for Phase | development,
encompassing a total site area of approximately 0.5 million sq.m., with a total planned
GFA of approximately 0.5 million sqm. upon completion. As of 3| December 2018, we

had completed a commercial center.
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Yulin Trade Center

Yulin Trade Center is located approximately two kilometers from Yulin, the fourth
largest city in Guangxi, located along the border with Guangdong province. The trade
center's northemn edge is bounded by Yulin Second Ring Road. It is three kilometers from

GuangKun Freeway and is within ten kilometers of Yulin train station.

Yulin Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.2 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in several phases. As of 31 December 2018, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase |, Phase Il and Phase lll, encompassing a total site area of approximately
0.6 million sg.m. with a total planned GFA of approximately 0.8 million sq.m. upon full

completion of Phase I, Phase Il and Phase Il development.

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed construction of wholesale trading markets,
shopping malls and a commercial and exhibition center, and were constructing additional
wholesale trading markets and residential areas. As part of our future development
plan, we are planning to construct serviced apartments and additional wholesale trading

markets.

Yantai Trade Center

Yantai Trade Center is located in southem Zhifu District of Yantai City, west of Shenhai
Highway, 9 kilometers north of Yantai railway station, east of the Yantai wharf and 9.5
kilometers south of the Laishan International Airport and Rongwu Highway. The location

of Yantai Trade Center has exceptional geographical and transportation advantages.

Yantai Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.3 million sqm. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.4 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phases. As of 31 December 2018, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phase |, encompassing a total site area of approximately 0.2 million sq.m.

with a total planned GFA of approximately 0.3 million sq.m. upon completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of wholesale trading
markets, we were constructing an office building, serviced apartments, a commercial

center and certain supporting buildings and facilities.

Liuzhou Trade Center

Liuzhou Trade Center is located in Liujiang Town, Liuzhou City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region. It is located in the east of Xianggui railway and in the south of

Liujiang Road.

Liuzhou Trade Center is estimated to cover a site area of approximately 1.2 million sqm.,
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.5 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phases. As of 31 December 2018, we had acquired the land-
use rights for all of Phase I, encompassing a total site area of approximately 0.3 million

sq.m., with a total planned GFA of approximately 0.3 million sq.m. upon completion.

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of wholesale trading
markets, and were constructing additional wholesale trading markets. As part of our future
development plan, we are planning to construct wholesale trading markets, shopping malls,

office buildings, a hotel, a commercial center and certain supporting buildings and facilities.

Ningxiang Trade Center

Ningxiang Trade Center is located approximately three kilometers west of the city center
of Ningxiang, a county in Changsha, which is the capital of Hunan province. Highway 319
runs along the eastern edge of the Ningxiang Trade Center and provides Ningxiang with

convenient access to other key cities in Hunan, such as Changsha, Zhuzhou and Xiangtan.

Ningxiang Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 1.3 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately .2 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2018, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phase |, encompassing a total site area of approximately 0.3 million sq.m.

with a total planned GFA of approximately 0.4 million sq.m. upon full completion of Phase |.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of the wholesale trading
markets, a food street, a freight-forwarding market, a commercial and exhibition center,
warehouses, a bus terminal and information center, serviced apartments, and were

constructing a hotel.

Mianyang Trade Center

Mianyang Trade Center is strategically located in Mianyang, the second largest city in
Sichuan province, approximately 120 kilometers northeast of Chengdu, the capital of
Sichuan province, along the key highway and railway that connect Sichuan province and

western and northem China.

Mianyang Trade Center covers a site area of approximately 0.6 million sqm., which is
expected to be developed in several phases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 0.6 million sq.m. when fully completed. As of 31 December 2018, we had

acquired all the land-use rights for this trade center project.

As of 31 December 2018, we had completed the construction of wholesale trading
markets and certain supporting buildings and facilities. As part of our future development

plan, we are planning to construct additional wholesale trading markets and a hotel.

The aforementioned future development plans are expected to be mainly funded through

working capital of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue increased by RMB1,049.8 million, or 58.6%, from approximately RMBI,792.4
million for FY2017 to RMB2,842.2 million for FY2018. This increase was primarily caused
by the increase in revenue from sales of properties. The following table sets forth our
revenue from the sales of properties, property management services, rental income and

others during the stated periods:
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For the year ended 3| December

BZENA3NBLEE

2018 2017

(RMB’000) 75 (RMB'000) %

(AR¥FT) % (AREFT) %

Sales of properties MEHE 2,712,484 95.4% 1,697,273 94.7%

Property management services MEERRS 57,458 2.0% 49,664 2.8%

Rental income HEaRA 39,723 1.4% 23901 1.3%

Others Hith 32,537 1.2% 21583 1.2%

Total &% 2,842,202 100.0% 1,792,421 100.0%
Sales of Properties MEHE

Revenue from the sales of properties increased by RMBI,015.2 million, or 59.8%, from
approximately RMBI,697.3 million for FY2017 to RMB2,712.5 million for FY2018. The
increase of the sales of properties was mainly due to the increase in the average sales
price of properties sold and the increase in GFA of properties sold. The average sales
price increased by RMBI,432 per sqm., or 27.3%, from RMB5,237 per sqm. for FY2017
to RMB6,669 per sq.m. for FY2018, and the GFA of properties sold increased by 82,622
sqm., or 25.5% from 324,082 sq.m. for FY2017 to 406,704 sq.m. for FY2018. Our revenue
from the sales of properties for FY2018 was primarily derived from the sales at our Jining

Trade Center, Liuzhou Trade Center, Lanzhou Trade Center and Ganzhou Trade Center.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The following table sets forth the GFA, average sales price and revenue from the

properties delivered during the periods indicated:

TREFINATHRRE AN MENZLERDTE

FHEE RS -
For the year ended 31 December
BENA3IALFE
2018 2017
Average Average
GFA sales price Revenue GFA sales price Revenue
BEER &R Wi BEEE FHERE Yzs

(GFA in sqm., average sales price in RMB per sg.m. and revenue in thousands of RMB)

(BEFBUFLAG - FHEEBKEFTRARE T Rz AA BT Tit)

Jining Trade Center BEFEYRP L

Other Commercial Hipm% 43,222 12,929 558,809 = e —
Shopping mall FaRHRRE 51,941 8,988 466,869 = = —
Wholesale trading market units BURSEREETT 16,278 3,993 65,005 14,764 4394 64,868
Residence F=x 4,449 3,875 17,242 31,163 4453 138,769
Subtotal et 115,890 9,560 1,107,925 45,927 4434 203,637
Liuzhou Trade Center WM B 3

Wholesale trading market units B X ZRREETT 72,483 7815 566,425 59,010 7815 461,158
Subtotal et 72,483 7815 566,425 59,010 7815 461,158
Lanzhou Trade Center EMNEEY RO

Wholesale trading market units B X ZBREETT 85,071 5,255 447,026 59,539 5913 352,064
Subtotal NEE 85,071 5,255 447,026 59,539 5913 352,064
Ganzhou Trade Center EMNEEMR PO

Residence FE 79,213 4,034 319,556 = — —
Wholesale trading market units BURSERERETT — — — 1,750 3423 5990
Subtotal NEE 79,213 4,034 319,556 1,750 3423 5,990
Wouzhou Trade Center BMEE YR A0

Wholesale trading market units B R ZBREETT 16,495 4,284 70,672 29928 4493 134,469
Subtotal et 16,495 4,284 70,672 29928 4493 134,469
Yantai Trade Center EABMENRA L

Wholesale trading market units %83 X 5 &R &£ 7T 12,339 5716 70,527 4301 5,868 25239
Subtotal et 12,339 5716 70,527 4301 5,868 25239

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended 3| December

BENAJNALFE
2018 2017
Average Average
GFA sales price Revenue GFA sales price Revenue
BEER FHEE e REmE FHEE Yegs

(GFA in sqgm., average sales price in RMB per sqm. and revenue in thousands of RMB)

(BEBBUFLIAG - FHEEBKUEFTRARETS R AR T Tit)

Mianyang Trade Center REBHEMRP O
Wholesale trading market units 83 X 5B REETT 7,100 5,895 4],855 3,650 5,173 18,883
Others Hth — = = 7132 1,602 11,429
Subtotal NEE 7,100 5,895 41,855 10,782 2811 30312
Heze Trade Center SEEE YR
Wholesale trading market units B X ZRREETT 9,680 4,137 40,043 57,108 3951 225,662
Subtotal et 9,680 4,137 40,043 57,108 3951 225,662
Yulin Trade Center EMEEMRAP D
Wholesale trading market units BURSEREETT 6,251 5,686 35,541 12,731 4912 62,536
Subtotal et 6,251 5,686 35,541 12,731 4912 62,536
Haode Yinzuo SERE
Others Hith 760 10,413 7914 == = =
Residence F=E 293 4,696 1,376 = — —
Subtotal gt 1,053 8,822 9,290 = = —
Ningxiang Trade Center ERHEYRP O
Serviced apartments BEARE 1,129 3210 3,624 735 3214 2362
Subtotal NEE 1,129 3210 3,624 735 3214 2,362
Xingning Trade Center EEFEYRFP O
Wholesale trading market units B R ZRREETT - — — 21,147 5268 [11,400
Subtotal Nt — = = 21,147 5268 111,400
Bengbu Commercial and HEWMERTEER

Residential Project
Residence F=E = = = 21,124 3903 82,444
Subtotal NEE — — — 2124 3,903 82,444
Total st 406,704 6,669 2,712,484 324,082 5237 1,697,273
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Property Management Services

Revenue from property management services increased by RMB7.8 million, or 15.7%,
from RMB49.7 million for FY2017 to RMB57.5 million for FY2018. This increase primarily

reflected the continued expansion of our property management portfolio.

Rental Income

Revenue from rental income increased by RMBI15.8 million, or 66.2%, from RMB23.9
million for FY2017 to RMB39.7 million for FY2018. The increase was primarily due to the

increase in leasing area during the Year.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased by RMB622.7 million, or 57.8%, from RMBI,076.6 million for
FY2017 to RMBI,699.3 million for FY2018, primarily reflecting an increase in GFA sold.
Apart from this, our government grants credited to cost of sales decreased by RMB60.4
million, or 27.4%, from RMB220.6 million for FY2017 to RMB160.2 million for FY2018.

Gross Profit and Margin

As a result of the foregoing, gross profit increased by RMB427.1 million, or 59.7%, from
RMB715.8 million for FY2017 to RMBI,142.9 million for FY2018. The increase was in
line with the increase in sales of properties in FY2018. Our gross profit margin slighty
increased from 39.9% for FY2017 to 40.2% for FY2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income

Other income decreased by RMB399.4 million, or 81.2%, from RMB491.8 million for
FY2017 to RMB92.4 million for FY2018. The decrease was mainly due to that the net
gain on disposal of subsidiaries decreased from RMB198.2 million for FY2017 to RMB6.6
million for FY2018, and income from return of prepaid investment cost decreased from
RMBI78.6 million for FY2017 to Nil for FY2018.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs decreased by RMB36.3 million, or 24.6%, from RMB147.3
million for FY2017 to RMBI | 1.0 million for FY2018. The decrease primarily reflected our
continued efforts in enhancing the operating efficiency in managing our sales and marketing

activities.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased by RMB22.2 million, or 4.8%,
from RMB459.0 million for FY2017 to RMB436.8 million for FY2018. The decrease was

primarily due to the effective control of administrative costs by the Group.

Impairment Loss On Trade and Other Receivables

During FY2018, the impairment loss on trade and other receivables of approximately
RMB46.6 million (2017: RMB2.6 million) was recognised by the Group, representing the (a)
impairment loss in relation to the amount due from the joint venture Hydoo Best Group
Co. Ltd. ("Hydoo Best") of approximately RMB 9.6 million; (b) impairment loss in relation
to the finance lease receivables of approximately RMB13.0 million; and (c) impairment loss

in relation to trade receivables and other receivables of approximately RMB14.0 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWEDN

Impairment loss in relation to the amount due from a joint venture of

approximately RMB19.6 million:

In 2018, there was a loss on the interest in the Thailand joint venture Hydoo Best
held by the Group. The Board expects that the Group will be able to recover part
of its interest in Hydoo Best by obtaining the land pieces still held by Hydoo Best,
the Group has therefore made a provision for impairment loss of approximately
RMB19.8 million on the interest in Hydoo Best. Separately, there was an amount
due from Hydoo Best for approximately RMB19.6 million in which the Group
considered that it was almost unlikely to be recovered, so the full amount of RMB
19.6 million was provided as impairment loss allowance for amount due from

Hydoo Best. For details, please refer to the note below.

Note:

In November 2015, Union Capital Holding Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
“Union Capital”) and Mr. Sitichai Charoenkajonkul (“Sitichai") signed a V' contract (“JV Contract”)
pursuant to which Union Capital would purchase from Sitichai and/or his designee(s) 8,000,000
ordinary shares, representing approximately 36.43% of the total issued share capital of Hydoo
Best with a consideration of Baht 800,000,000 (approximately RMB168.8 million). Hydoo Best was
primarily engaged in modem commercial and trade logistic city development businesses in Thailand.
Union Capital paid the consideration to Sitichai according to the JV Contract. In October 2017, in
order to exit part of the investment from Hydoo Best, Union Capital signed a share repurchase
agreement with Sitichai (“Share Repurchase Agreement”), pursuant to which Sitichai would
repurchase from Union Capital 4,500,000 ordinary shares, representing approximately 20.49% of
the total issued share capital of Hydoo Best at IRR of 15% with the total repurchase consideration
of approximately Baht 591.0 million (approximately RMB124.7 million) calculated up to the date
of the Share Repurchase Agreement. Sitichai, however, did not settle the repurchase consideration
within the agreed specified time frame. Union Capital therefore applied for an arbitration to the
China Intemational Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (124 3 B 46 75 &2 7 8 % A
2%), which issued the arbitral award in December 2018 that Sitichai should pay the total amount
of approximately RMB154.0 million to Union Capital (which included repurchase consideration
amounting to approximately Baht 660.2 million, the default fee amounting to Baht 60.0 million, and
arbitration related fee amounting to RMB2.2 million). According to the JV contract, Union Capital
had a right to sell its shares in Hydoo Best (“Option Shares") to Sitichai after 1.5 year from the
completion date with a consideration at an IRR of 5% (the “Consideration”) upon a written
notice to Sitichai. If Sitichai did not have adequate cash to re-purchase the Option Shares from
Union Capital within 5 days from the date of the notice, Sitichai agreed to procure Hydoo Best to
sell its owned land or property in Thailand which had a total value equivalent to the Consideration
to Union Capital in retumn for the Option Shares, and Sitichai also agreed to be solely responsible
and pay for the purchase price of land or property to Hydoo Best on behalf of Union Capital.
Subsequently, pursuant to a court order in Thailand, the Group was notified that Hydoo Best was
obliged to return some pieces of land in Thailand to its preceding landlord. The Group was also
notified that in September 2018, Sitichai (who was the authorised representative of Hydoo Best as
the plaintiff to the law suit in Thailand) was absent from the court for the law suit which aimed to
demand the land cost from the preceding landlord. On this basis, the Group considered that it was
almost unlikely for Hydoo Best to get back the land cost with respect to the land under dispute,
which led to a loss in the investment in Hydoo Best by Union Capital. The Company appointed
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Savills Valuation & Professional Services (S)Pte Ltd to perform the valuation for the remaining
pieces of land without dispute in Thailand, and the valuation result was approximately Baht
598.Imillion (approximately RMB126.2 million). The Group, based on the JV contract, considered
that Union Capital could obtain the land without dispute from Hydoo Best if Sitichai failed to settle
the repurchase consideration. The valuation conducted by Savills Valuation & Professional Services
(S) Pte Ltd which assessed the fair value of the relevant land pieces held by Hydoo Best in Thailand
as of 31 December 2018 adopted the direct market comparison method by making reference
to the most recent market transactions for comparable properties in that location and making
appropriate adjustments to take into account the size and nature of the land, including the access
to the land and the purposes for which the land could be used.

In September 2016, the Group paid approximately Baht 93.0 million (approximately RMB19.6
million) to Hydoo Best for the purposes of maintaining its daily operation. Such amount was

recorded as an amount due from Hydoo Best (“Amount due from Hydoo Best").

The total amount of interest in Hydoo Best (which was approximately RMB146.0 million, and
accounted for under equity method) and amount due from Hydoo Best (which was approximately
RMB19.6 million) was approximately RMB65.6 million in aggregate. The Group is of the view that
the amount which could be recovered by the Group was either (i) the amount of approximately
RMB154.0 million stated in the arbitral award, which should be compensated by Sitichai to Union
Capital, or (i) the amount of approximately RMB126.2 million stated in the land valuation report,
representing the fair value of the land without dispute. The Group used the RMBI126.2 million
on a prudent basis, and the difference between RMBI65.6 million and RMB126.2 million was
provided as impairment loss allowance, which amounted to RMB39.4 million. Among the amount
of RMB39.4 million, RMB19.6 million represented the impairment loss allowance provided for
“Amount due from Hydoo Best” in which the Group considered that it is almost unlikely to be
recovered, so the full amount was provided as impairment loss allowance. The remaining RMB19.8
million represented the impairment loss allowance provided for “Interest in Hydoo Best” and was
recorded under the account item of “Share of Losses of Joint Ventures”.

Based on the legal opinion obtained from an external legal counsel in Thailand, the Group
would be able to recover part of its interest in Hydoo Best and amount due from Hydoo Best
by obtaining the undisputed land pieces still held by Hydoo Best. The Group, via Thailand legal
counsel, is preparing to apply for the execution of arbitral award in Thailand, and target to submit
the application to the relevant authority in Thailand around April 2019. The process is subject to
various uncertainties, including practical administrative issues, respond rate by the relevant authority
in Thailand, timing to complete the process, etc. which may be beyond the Group's control.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Impairment loss in relation to the finance lease receivables of approximately
RMB 3.0 million:

The impairment loss on finance lease receivables for FY2018 was approximately
RMB13.0 million. Such amount is mainly due to the Group has experienced a
significant slow-down in the collection of these receivables in the overall protracting
economic down-turn. Among the impairment loss of RMBI13.0 million, the
impairment loss of approximately RMBI 1.2 million was provided due to that the
relevant finance lease receivables of approximately RMBI 1.2 million was past due
for more than 90 days and the gross carrying amount was fully provided as loss
allowance. The remaining finance lease receivables were not past due and the
relevant loss allowance of approximately RMB1.8 million was provided on the basis
of expected rate 2.06% of the gross carrying amount, by reference to the Group's
historical experience and adjusted forward-looking information, and benchmark to

available market information.

Impairment loss in relation to trade receivables and other receivables of
approximately RMB 4.0 million:

The impairment loss on trade receivables and other receivables for FY2018 were
approximately RMB2.7 million and RMBI 1.3 million respectively, which represented
I.1'1% and 3.22% of the gross amount of trade receivables and other receivables

respectively.

The impairment loss for trade receivables was mainly made for those long-aged
and past due over 90 days receivables amounted to RMB5.7 million. Since the
Group has not applied for individual property ownership certificate for those long-
aged debtors, the Group expected that it would be able to recover certain of
the receivables through the disposal of the respective properties. Accordingly, a
provision for impairment loss of RMB2.7 million, representing the estimated shortfall
between the present value of the estimated cash flows to be recovered and the
carrying amount of those receivables, was made on the financial statements for the
year ended 3| December 2018. For trade receivables not past due, the directors
considered that the expected loss and probability for default would be minimal
based on its assessment of individual debtors and historical experience. Accordingly,
no additional provisions for impairment loss were made in this respect.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For other receivables, certain of the amount was past due within 30 days. The
Group estimated the relevant impairment loss based on the Group's historical
experience and adjusted forward-looking information, and benchmark to available

market information.

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

During the Year, the Group transferred certain investment properties to investment
properties classified as held for sale upon there was an actual change in use from earning

rental income to sale.

During the Year, the Group transferred certain completed properties held for sale and
properties under development for sale to investment properties, since there was a change
in use from sale to earning rental income. The Group's investment properties carried
at fair value as of 31 December 2018 were valued by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, an independent firm of surveyors. For FY2018, the Group recorded a fair
value gain of RMB100.6 million (FY2017: RMB387.9 million).

Share of Losses of Joint Ventures

During FY2018, the share of losses of joint ventures of approximately RMB19.9 million
(2017: RMB2.9 million) was recognised by the Group, mainly representing the impairment
loss in relation to the interest in the joint venture Hydoo Best of approximately RMB19.8
million. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Impairment Loss on Trade and

Other Receivables” under this section.

Finance Income

Our finance income increased by RMB29.6 million, from RMBS5.7 million for FY2017 to
RMB35.3 million for FY2018. The increase reflected an increase in interest income from

our bank deposit and interest bearing receivables in FY2018.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased by RMB64.4 million, or 23.4%, from RMB275.0 million for
FY2017 to RMB339.4 million for FY2018. The increase was primarily due to the increase

of interest on senior notes during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
MEE Jﬁ -L__I' Af & *ﬁ'

Income Tax

Our income tax expense decreased by RMBI52.0 million, or 33.1%, from RMB458.7
million for FY2017 to RMB306.7 million for FY2018. Such decrease was primarily due to

the decrease in provision for PRC Land Appreciation Tax during the Year.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our profit decreased by RMB145.4 million, or 57.0%, from
RMB255.3 million for FY2017 to RMB109.9 million for FY2018. Our profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company decreased by RMBI138.6 million, or 56.4%, from
RMB245.6 million for FY2017 to RMB107.0 million for FY2018.

Pledged and Restricted Cash

Pledged and restricted cash amounted to RMB585.6 million as of 31 December 2018,
compared to RMB857.7 million as of 3| December 2017. As of 31 December 2018, the
pledged and restricted cash was pledged to banks for certain mortgage facilities granted to
purchasers of the Group's properties and pledged for bills payables.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary uses of cash are to pay for the construction costs and land acquisition costs,
fund working capital, service our indebtedness, purchase property, plant and equipment
for our own use, and other regular business operation needs. To date, we have primarily
financed our operational expenditures through internally generated cash flows including
proceeds from the pre-sale and sales of properties, proceeds from IPO, borrowings from

commercial banks and other lenders and proceeds from the issuance of overseas notes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Bank Loans and Other Borrowings BITERKRHMEE
The following table sets forth our outstanding borrowings as of the dates indicated. TR BZEMRAHREMNREEREE

As of 3|1 December

BZ12831H
(RMB'000)

(AR¥FT)

2018 2017
Current nE
Secured FER
— short-term bank loans and other borrowings —RHRTERREMEE — 14,843
— current portion of non-current bank loans —ERBBITERK

and other borrowings HifEE 8 REHH 472,661 [,158216

Unsecured it
— short-term bank loans and other borrowings —RERTERREMEE 15,000 28,800
Subtotal NE 487,661 201,859
Non-current kRB
Secured HER
— repayable after | year but within 2 years ——FREMFNER 498,750 364,770
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years - MEREIFARER 223,250 421,000
— repayable after 5 years -hFRER 56,250 75,000
Unsecured i
— repayable after | year but within 2 years —FREMFAEE 1,000 =
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years -MERBRFAER - 1,000
Subtotal Pt 779,250 861,770
Total CEl 1,266,911 2,063,629
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest rates ranging from 2.12% to 9.60% per RWOISHEEE  ROERREMEERNT
annum for FY2018 (FY2017: 2.12% to 9.03% per annum) and are secured by the following ~ 2.12% 2 9.60% B FE FI & (2017 BT U F & « &7
assets: E212%Z9.03%)5t S A TFIBEFEA -

As of 31 December

BZ12R31H
(RMB’000)

(ARETT)

2018 2017
Completed properties held for sale BECTIYE 712,045 1,476,581
Investment properties REME 683,900 720200
Properties held for future development for sale HRERRERENE 441,523 619,821
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 357,053 367,070
Properties under development for sale FEEEME 214,354 1,119,998
Pledged cash BEEAERE = 325421
Total L 2,408,875 4629091
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent Liabilities

We make arrangements with PRC commercial banks so that such banks may provide
mortgage facilities to our customers to purchase our properties. In accordance with
market practice, we are required to provide guarantees to these banks in respect of
mortgages provided to such customers. Guarantees for such mortgages are generally
discharged at the earlier of: (i) the due registration of the mortgage interest held by the
commercial bank upon the subject property, or (ii) the settlement of mortgage loans
between the mortgagee banks and the purchasers. In addition, we are required by the
banks to place a security deposit to secure our guarantee obligations. If a purchaser
defaults on the mortgage loan, we are typically required to purchase the underlying
property by paying off the mortgage loan with any accrued and unpaid interest and
penalty based on the loan agreement. If we fail to do so, the mortgagee banks will auction
the underlying property and recover the balance from us if the outstanding loan amount
exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds. Such amount may also be settled through
withholding the security deposit we place with the banks. In line with industry practice, we
do not conduct independent credit checks on our customers but rely on the credit checks
conducted by the mortgagee banks. As of 31 December 2018, our maximum amount of
guarantees provided to banks for mortgage facilities granted to our customers amounted

to RMB2,204.5 million (FY2017: RMB2,512.0 million).

Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 3| December 2018 contracted but not provided

for in the financial statements were as follows:
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As of 3|1 December

BZ12831H
(RMB'000)
(AR¥FT)
2018 2017
Construction and development contracts EERREREN 2,050,974 765,895
Land agreements TibineE — 25981
Total A% 2,050,974 791,876
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Key Financial Ratios

The following table sets out our current ratios, gearing ratios and net gearing ratios as of

the dates indicated.

FRUHLER

TR AMBEMRAHNRB LK - BE
BELERFEEAGBRE -

As of 31 December

BZ12A318

2018 2017
Current ratio) mELLRO .50 146
Gearing ratio? BEAGBIEO 20.5% 25.4%
Net gearing ratio® FEERBLEO 24.4% 36.5%
Notes: /Zﬁ ﬁ'}\r ;

(1) Our current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as of the end of

the respective reporting period.

(2)  Our gearing ratio is calculated by the Group's total interest bearing borrowings as of the
respective reporting period (includes bank loans and other borrowings, senior notes and
corporate bonds) divided by total assets as of the end of the respective reporting period and

multiplying by 100%.

(3)  Our net gearing ratio is calculated by the Group's net debt (aggregated bank loans and
other borrowings, senior notes and corporate bonds, net of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash) divided by the total equity of the Group as of the end of the respective
reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group primarily operates its business in the People's Republic of China (“PRC"). The
currency in which the Group denominates and settles substantially all of its transactions
is Renminbi. Other than certain overseas bank deposits, interests in joint ventures, the
corporate bonds and the senior notes denominated in foreign currencies, the Group does
not have any material exposure directly due to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group
maintains a conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure management, and
manages and reviews its exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations on a regular basis. At
times of exchange rate uncertainty or volatility and when appropriate, hedging instruments
including swaps and forwards will be used in the management of exposure to foreign

exchange fluctuations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint

Ventures

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies or

joint ventures during FY2018.

Restriction on Sales

As of 31 December 2018, we were simuftaneously developing 12 projects in 7 provinces
and autonomous regions in China. Under the terms of certain master investment
agreements with local government authorities regarding the development, such as our
agreements in relation to Ningxiang, Mianyang, Ganzhou, Liuzhou and Nanchang Trade
Centers, we are required to maintain a certain portion of the trade center properties,
typically 10%-30% in terms of GFA, for self-use or leasing purpose. We believe that such
requirement is in line with our overall development plan for these projects. Except for the
conditions mentioned above, there is no restriction on sales of the land acquired by the

Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a workforce of 1,074 people (FY2017:
1,254 people). The number of staff had decreased by 14.4% since 31 December 2017.
During FY2018, the total employee benefit expenses amounted to RMB228.2 million,
decreased by 9.9% (FY2017: RMB253.2 million). We actively recruit skilled and qualified
personnel in the Chinese local markets, including students graduated from universities
as well as personnel with relevant work experience. For the senior management team
and selected management positions, we also seek to recruit personnel with intemational
experience. The remuneration package of our employees includes salary, bonuses
and other cash subsidies. In general, we determine employee salaries based on each
employee’s qualifications, experience, position and seniority. We have designed an annual
review system to assess the performance of our employees, which forms the basis of
our determination on salary raises, bonuses and promotion. On 3| December 2018, all
options under the Company's pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) were expired and all options granted and yet to be exercised under the scheme

had also lapsed.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB E
For the financial year ended 3| December
BZNA3BLEBEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT AR%®Tr ARBTT AR%T:x
Results 7
Revenue Wzs 2,842,202 1792421 2335777 3,166,351 3,360,189
Gross Profit EM 1,142,917 715812 1285916 1633916 1,399,026
Profit before taxation EIENE 416,620 713981 712,463 1,244,002 837,426
Income tax ST (306,733) (458,726) (357,315) (626272) (330961)
Profit for the year F R 109,887 255,255 355,148 597,730 506,465
Profit for the year attributable to: A N5 EIGEEREF :
Equity shareholders ARAERERR
of the Company 106,995 245573 350,280 556,875 512,053
Non-controlling interests R ER 2,892 9,682 4868 40,855 (5,588)
Profit for the year FRME 109,887 255255 355,148 597,730 506,465

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB E
As at 3|1 December
RI12831H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREBTRT ARETT AREFTT ARETRT ARETT
Financial position BEBH®E

Non-current assets ERBEE 3,525,690 3,142,039 2,603,592 1851234 787,259
Current assets MBEE 11,045,370 1,660,856 12,848,552 13,252,613 1,065,760
Current liabilities EEE S 7,354,244 7,990,579 7,319,706 8,155,558 6281413
Net current assets REEETE 3,691,126 3,670,277 5,528,846 5,097,055 4784347
Total assets less current liabilities ~ #EEMRBEE 7216816 6812316 8,132,438 6948289 5,571,606
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,937,922 1,593,055 3,025,154 2,109,709 1,198443
Net assets BEFE 5,278,894 5219261 5,107,284 4,838,580 4373,163
Share capital R 31,825 31,825 31,825 31,825 31,825
Reserves @ 5,207,006 5,159,765 4,852,252 4,604,866 4,260,304

Total equity attributable to equity AR AR
shareholders of the Company FElhERER 5,238,831 5,191,590 4884077 4636691 4292,129
Non-controlling interests IR R 40,063 27,671 223207 201,889 81,034
Total Equity Enag 5,278,894 5219261 5,107,284 4,838,590 4373163
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Board hereby present this annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are developing and operating large-scale trade centers
in China.

The Group seeks to develop each trade center project into the largest integrated
commercial complex in the local region for the wholesale and retail sale of a wide range
of products, including hardware, electric tools, building materials, furniture and home
furnishings, home electronics, apparel and small goods. The Group designs its trade
centers to seamlessly integrate the wholesale trading market properties with other on-site
facilities such as shopping malls, commercial and exhibition centers, hotels, residential and

office space, warehouses and other logistics facilities.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in

note |8 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group is set out on pages |0 to |8 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to complying with PRC environmental protection laws and
regulations, actively participating in the environmental assessment process and fully
cooperating with accredited environmental assessment organisations. The Group has
taken several measures to reduce pollution, including implementing energy-saving policies
that reduce its electricity consumption, setting up a rain and sewage diversion system
in certain trade centers, smoke filtering systems in the kitchens of its cafeterias and
restaurants, installing sound insulation in its backup generators and cooling machines, and
using solar-powered heaters. Details of the Group's environmental policies are set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 58 to 105 of this annual

report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There was no incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had or

would have a significant impact on the Company during FY2018.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R

ESCeENERAEEEZ2018F 128318
I FERERRACEZA FIHRE

FERE
AEENIBREBRAETEREREE LR
BYRP D o

AEBENRERAEYRTORRERRAE
WRAN-BLAEFAR HERTERR
TEHE 2 RERKH  RE - BRER
PEREANSRER - BEYRTLNRE
EEEREQBURIRTENFREMLRS
Ri - MEAXHETE - RFP O - BE -
EERBLGH - BREREMYRRE -

BRARBTEF AR TEEBMNFERS 870
PR RMFE I8

XBEE
AEBHNRBOBEENAFREI0EI8H °

BREE

AEEFNERTERRERRERLERS
HEIRFEFENBREE 2 NELRNRFERS
fE « REBEREE THREARESE - 85
ESRBERARERE  EETHENRS
RINKSKDRESR  EREREBNE

N

—

il

MREFBERS NEBEERRESL
ZRBERE  UREAABERKS - A&
ERABRFBIERAEREBE 105 AR

5 HERERRSE -

BTHBEERER
2018 HFERE AL EEM A ETHEZRRLS
PIMSEHUARB AR EREATE



RESULTS

The Group's results for FY2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

on pages 150 to |51 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for FY2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during FY2018 are set out

in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during FY2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 32 to the financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, details of the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman Companies Law are

set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

FY2018 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the Group's single largest customer and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 36.1% and 37.2% of the Group's revenue respectively in
FY2018.

The aggregate purchases from the Group's single largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 12.0% and 30.0% respectively, of the Group's total purchases
for FY2018.

None of the directors of the Company ("Directors”) or any of their associates, or
any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital has any interests in the Group's five largest suppliers or

customers.
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DONATIONS

During FY2018, the charitable contributions and other donations totaled approximately
RMB6.5 million (FY2017: RMB8.3 million).

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are set out in

note 18 to the financial statements.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company ratified and approved the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme™) on 20 March 2013.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize the contribution of
the employees of the members of the Group and any persons who have contributed to
the Group at the time of granting Options (the “Qualified Participants”) to the business
development of the Group by granting share options (“Options”) to them as incentive
and/or reward. On 3| December 2018, all the Options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme were expired. So all the Options granted prior to this expiry which has not been
exercised will no longer be exercisable and thereafter lapsed in accordance with the

provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(i)  the exercise price per share under each Option were HK$1.014;

(i) the grantees were entitled to exercise in full or in part any vested Options from
six months after the listing date (31 October 2013, the “Listing Date") to 3|
December 2018 (the “Expiry Date"); and

(iify  no further Options were granted after the Listing Date.
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Particulars of the outstanding Options conditionally granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme are set out below:

RIZE R AR EBAERER 818 RIFR R
RMTERBEFEEIINT -

Number of Number of
Options outstanding
Number of exercised/ Options as at
Options held Number of  cancelled/lapsed 31 December
asat  Options granted  during FY2018 2018
| January 2018 during FY2018 #2018 #2018
Number of R2018% R0I8 BBFETR/ 128318
Grantees Date of grant of Options Options granted |RIB%E HREERL HE8H/Ku0 RATEH
ERA RuBRERS REBREHE WBERERE OBRREZE BREZA BREYA
Directors/People who
were directors in FY2018
%/ 0188 BEE
REZMA
Huang Dehong 30 November 201 | 4,000,000 4,000,000 == 4,000,000¢ 0
YN 2011% 114308
Lam Chi Yuen Nelson 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 - 300,000@ 0
HEE 2013%3A20R
Wang Lianzhou (retired on
20 March 2019) 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 i 300,000@ 0
TEMR19F
3R20BRE) 2013%3A20R
Other employees 30 November 201 | 56,630,000 42,165,000 — 42,165,000 0
RS 20114118308
Other employees |6 October 2012 9,190,000 3,490,000 ™ 3,490,000 0
EtilES 2012F10A 168
Former Director
AItES
Wong Choi Hing") 30 November 201 | 11,600,000 5,800,000 5 5,800,000% 0
IBRO 211F11A30A
Total 82,020,000 56,055,000 = 56,055,000 0
&5t
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Notes:

(1) In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Board resolved in the Board meeting held on 22 August 2014 that the Options granted to
Mr. Wong Choi Hing, the former Chairman and executive Director of the Company, which
were vested pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were exercisable (while the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme was effective), and the remaining Options granted which were
not vested pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were cancelled on 25 August

2014.

(2)  On 31| December 2018, all the Options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were
expired. Upon the expiry, all the Options granted prior to such expiry which have not been
exercised will no longer be exercisable in accordance with the provisions of the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme.

The Options were vested according to the following schedule:

For Options granted on 30 November 20/ |

Respective Vesting Date EREEY

31 December 2012 2012% 12A31 B
31 December 2013 2013 12 A31 B
3| December 2014 2014F 12 A31 B
31 December 2015 2015412 A31 B
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For Options granted on 16 October 2012

Respective Vesting Date

31 December 2013
31 December 2014
31 December 2015
31 December 2016

For Options granted on 20 March 2013

Respective Vesting Date

31 December 2014
31 December 2015
31 December 2016
31 December 2017

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 31 to the financial

statements.

ZREE M

2013F 124318
2014% 128318
2015% 12 A31 H
2016F 12 A31H

ZEBAY

2014% 12 A31 H
2015F 12 A31 H
2016%F12A31R
2017% 12831 H
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2018 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianli (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Dewen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Dehong

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yuan Bing

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Lihua

Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson

Mr. Yue Zheng (appointed on 20 March 2019)
Mr. Wang Lianzhou (retired on 20 March 2019)

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Yuan Bing and Mr. Zhao Lihua shall retire from the Board by rotation at the company's

forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") to be held on Thursday, 30 May 2019 and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Yue
Zheng shall hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then

be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

The Board has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board considers all

independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of Mr. Wang Jianli, Mr. Wang Dewen and Mr. Huang Dehong, being the executive

Director of the Company, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years. All of the service contracts may be terminated by either party thereto

giving no less than 3 months' prior written notice.

Mr. Yuan Bing, non-executive Director of the Company, has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years. The letter of appointment may
be terminated by either party thereto giving no less than 14 business days' prior written

notice.

Each of Mr. Zhao Lihua, Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson and Mr. Yue Zheng, being the
independent non-executive Director of the Company, has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years. All of the letters of
appointment may be terminated by either party thereto giving no less than 14 business

days' prior written notice.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation

other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors has or had material beneficial interests, whether directly or
indirectly, in any significant contract in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary of its holding

companies was a party during FY2018.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) or its subsidiaries (if applicable)
has or had material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance,
whether for the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to which

the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during FY2018.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of Directors and senior management of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”

on pages 126 to |36 of this annual report.

ENFORCEMENT OF THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 27 September 2013 (the “Non-
Comepetition Undertaking”) entered into by Mr. Wong Choi Hing, Mr. Wang Dewen,
Mr. Wang Jianli, Mr. Wang Quanguang, Mr. Wang Desheng, Mr. Wang Dekai, Mr.
Huang Dehong and Mr. Wong Sheung Tak (the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders"),
Most Trend Holdings Limited (“Most Trend"), Mr. Wong Kim and Eminent Ascend
Limited (“Eminent Ascend”) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of the
Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to the Company
that he/it would not, and would procure that his/its associates (other than any members
of the Group) would not, during the Restricted Period (as defined below), directly or
indirectly, either on his/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,

firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate, be interested or engaged in,

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R

EEREASHTHESR
EERVIBHBFREEADRARLAEMTA
Al AERARSEZERA TN F AR L
EASEXBERNEINERGOT  HER
RABRBEEENEAE R EE -

ERRRRERSHHHES

PERR(EERL T OREFRRMER)R
2018 I F R AR R B E A F R BRI L
BEASEXBERANEINERRD(THEL A
RERGIEM)F - HBEERIRERE TN
EAMS

ESNEREEENER

BREERARARAEEENREFERRN
REREINEBAIEZRRREERER
BEI—gf°

HITARERY

REEHELL  FEXLE  FRMEL
Faxkt IRELLE IRFAELE =R
LZRERTERATE(RRERERR]) 2%
ERERAR(ER]) EFRELRBERZER
AR([EE ) (RREMERBRR)R2013F9 A
VERIUMNABRFZO(FIHRERY])) &
PR SR 2 48 {1 B R U R R R ) A
EAEeYRieEABEA(CEEEMKER
AN A ERERFIME(ERER TOER
FRBEARGBEREEAAL  BRALA
HRZRREMAL BRI ETEHE)



acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee
or otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any activity or business which
is or may be in competition directly or indirectly with the business referred to in the
Company's listing prospectus dated 18 October 2013 carried on or contemplated to be
carried on by any member of our Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business").
The restricted period is the period during which (i) the shares of the Company remain
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"); (i) the relevant Controlling Shareholder and his/its associates hold an equity
interest in the Company; and (iii) the relevant Controlling Shareholder and/or his/its
associates jointly or severally are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of not less

than 30% in aggregate of the voting power at general meetings of the Company.

The Controlling Shareholders have further undertaken to procure that, during the
Restricted Period, any business investment or other commercial opportunity which
directly or indirectly competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted Business
(the “New Opportunities”) given, identified or offered to him/it and/or any of his/its
associates (other than any members of the Group) (the "Offeror”) is first referred to the
Company in the following manner: (a) each of our Controlling Shareholders is required
to, and shall procure his or its associates (other than members of our Group) to, refer, or
to procure the referral of, the New Opportunities to the Company, and shall give written
notice to the Company of any New Opportunities containing all information reasonably
necessary for the Company (the “Offer Notice"); and (b) the Offeror will be entitled
to pursue the New Opportunities only if (i) the Offeror has received a notice from the
Company declining the New Opportunities and confirming that such New Opportunities
would not constitute competition with core business of the Company, or (i) the Offeror
has not received such notice from us within 10 business days from the Company's receipt
of the Offer Notice. Upon receipt of the Offer Notice, the Company shall seek opinions
and decisions from the independent non-executive Directors who do not have material

interests in the matter.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed with the Company their compliance with
the Non-Competition Undertaking for disclosure in this annual report during FY2018.
Independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the Controlling Shareholders'

compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and five highest paid individuals for FY2018 are
set out in notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements and the emolument policy of the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 106 to 125 of this

annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during FY2018,

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2018, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which was in competition or was likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQO")) as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO, or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") contained in

the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
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REXBRGREBRG TR

Approximate
percentage of the
Company's

total issued

share capital®

Corporate fEAAT
Name of Directors ~ Class of Securities interest  Personal interest Share Options ~ Family interest Total BRITARK
ESfs ozl LAER AR B FhER CEU: =Pl
Wang Jianli Ordinary shares 2,070,000,000") = = 2,070,000,000 51.56%
TRM LEK
Wang Dewen Ordinary shares 2,070,000,000 ") ~ = - 2,070,000,000 51.56%
X LEK
Huang Dehong Ordinary shares 2,070,000,000 ") i o i 2,070,000,000 51.56%
Notes: BsE
(1) These shares are held by Most Trend Holdings Limited (“Most Trend"). The entire issued (1) ZEROBEERERERRAF ([ER] )
share capital of Most Trend is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Choi Hing, Mr. Wang Dewen, A ERNAMAECZETRAREIEESL
Mr. Wang Jianli, Mr. Wang Quanguang, Mr. Wang Desheng, Mr. Wang Dekai, Mr. Huang B EENESE - ERAEE T2
Dehong and Mr. Wong Sheung Tak (the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders"). By virtue B IEREE  FERASE  BRREE
of an actingin-concert declaration executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on RTgmis ([RRERRR] ) 28
22 March 2013, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, among other things, confirmed that B - ARERERKRER20134$3A4220
since | January 2010, they had been operating our Group collectively and would through BREN-E-BTHERHA  SKFERERE
discussions reach consensus among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions (P eiE) BREWI0FIAIAR  FE
on a unanimous basis. As such, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders are deemed to be —HHERKEREBT R —BERTMH
interested in the 2,070,000,000 shares our Company through Most Trend. ErFAELENMERLE Bt - &
RERBRREERBBERMEAALA
2,070,000,000R% {7 O #E 25 ©
(2)  The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,014,844,000 Shares issued as at Q) BREBSLIKR018F12A31HEET

3| December 2018.

4,014,844,0008% AR fn FY BT E o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, to the knowledge of the Board, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be: (i)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors and chief
executive were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (i) recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, according to the register of members kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly
and indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital

carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:
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LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
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EEEHRE

REXBRGREBRG TR

COMPANY
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Number of Shares total issued
ROEE share capital®
ERRACRST
Name Nature of interest Corporate interest Share Option BREN
a8 BEME NEER BRE BOBEIHO
Most Trend Beneficial owner 2,070,000,000 — 51.56%
ER ESBEAA
Mr. Wong Choi Hing Interest in controlled corporation 2,070,000,000 @ 51.56%
TEERE SR EE RS
Mr. Wang Quanguang Interest in controlled corporation 2,070,000,000 @ = 51.56%
RS ki 2 REHEE RS
Mr. Wang Desheng Interest in controlled corporation 2,070,000,000 @ 5 51.56%
IREEE REnEEER
Mr. Wang Dekai Interest in controlled corporation 2,070,000,000 @ 51.56%
IRRAEE XL E S
Mr. Wong Sheung Tak Interest in controlled corporation 2,370,000,000 @) e 59.03%
TeEEs R EE RS
Top Amuse Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 591,738,000 - 14.74%
REZRERAF EREAA
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

Number of Shares total issued

RO#E share capital®
EERRACRT

Name Nature of interest Corporate interest Share Option BRAH
1 BiitE DEER R E BREALO
Hony Capital Fund 2008, LP. Interest in controlled corporation 591,738,000 @ — 14.74%
Hony Capital Fund 2008, LP. Rt EEER
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Interest in controlled corporation 591,738,000 - 14.74%
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. EHlEEES
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited ~ Interest in controlled corporation 591,738,000 © = 14.74%
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited 312 /% Bz
Hony Group Management Limited ~ Interest in controlled corporation 591,738,000 © = 14.74%
Hony Group Management Limited 5 2l A%
Hony Capital 2008 Partners, LP. Interest in controlled corporation 591,738,000 @ = 14.74%
Hony Capital 2008 Partners, L.P. EHlEEES
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled corporation 591,738,000 @ = 14.74%
Hony Managing Partners Limited ~ S4Z#EE# %
Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 591,738,000 @ =5 14.74%
Exponential Fortune Group Limited {2l Az
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled corporation 591,738,000 () s 14.74%
BoBEE LA E R
Eminent Ascend Beneficial owner 300,000,000 e 747%
BH EafBA
Notes: Bt aE -

(1)  The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,014,844,000 shares issued as of (1

31 December 2018.

(2)  These shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is (2)
wholly-owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert
declaration executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, among other things, confirmed that since | January
2010, they had been operating the Group collectively and would through discussions reach
consensus among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on a unanimous
basis. As such, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders together control 51.56% interest in
the issued share capital and are deemed to be interested in 2,070,000,000 shares of the
Company through Most Trend.
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(10)

(1

Top Amuse Holdings Limited (“Top Amuse”) is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund 2008,
L.P., hence Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is deemed to be interested in the 591,738,000
shares held by Top Amuse.

The general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P,
hence Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is deemed to be interested in the 591,738,000
shares held by Top Amuse.

The general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP
Limited, hence Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is deemed to be interested in the
591,738,000 shares held by Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is wholly-owned by Hony Group Management Limited,
hence Hony Group Management Limited is deemed to be interested in the 591,738,000
shares held by Top Amuse. Hony Group Management Limited is also the general partner of

Hony Capital 2008 Partners, L. P.

Hong Capital 2008 Partners, L.P. controls 99.44% of the interest of Hony Capital 2008 GP. LP,,
hence Hony Capital 2008 Partners, LP. is deemed to be interested in the 591,738,000 shares
held by Top Amuse.

Hony Managing Partners Limited controls 80% of the shares of Hony Group Management
Limited, hence Hony Managing Partners Limited is deemed to be interested in the

600,000,000 shares held by Top Amuse.

Hony Managing Partners Limited is wholly-owned by Exponential Fortune Group Limited,
hence Exponential Fortune Group Limited is deemed to be interested in the 591,738,000
shares held by Top Amuse.

Mr. Zhao John Huan controls 49% of the shares of Exponential Fortune Group Limited,
hence Mr. Zhao John Huan is deemed to be interested in the 591,738,000 shares held by
Top Amuse.

Eminent Ascend is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Sheung Tak, hence Mr. Wong Sheung Tak is
deemed to be interested in the 300,000,000 shares held by Eminent Ascend.

&)

(10)

(1
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, to the knowledge of the Directors, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in Securities” and “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme” in this report and in note 31 to the financial statements, at
no time during the fiscal year under review was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company
(including their spouses or children under |8 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of

acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Board confirmed that none of the related party transactions set out in note 36 to
these financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions or nonexempt
continuing connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. During FY2018,
the Group had not entered into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant to the

Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company and its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's shares listed on the Stock Exchange.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, under which would

oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 3|1 December 2018

are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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ISSUANCE OF 13.75% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2018

On 15 December 2015, the Company issued |3.75% senior notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$ 100,000,000, which are due in 2018 (the “2018 Senior Notes").
The 2018 Senior Notes are listed and traded on The Singapore Exchange Securities

Trading Limited.

On 14 September 2016, the Company issued additional 2018 Senior Notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$60,000,000, which are consolidated and formed a single
class with the US$100,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 13.75% 2018 Senior Notes
due 2018 issued by the Company on |5 December 2015. The proceeds of the additional
2018 Senior Notes was primarily used for the refinancing of indebtedness of the Company

and the remainder for its working capital purposes.

Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 2 December 2015, 8 December
2015, 17 December 2015, 8 September 2016, 18 September 2016, 6 September 2017
and 18 September 2017 for details on the 2018 Senior Notes.

Pursuant to the exchange offer made by the Company on 24 April 2018, US$98,400,000
(approximately 61.5%) of the total aggregate principal amount of the US$ 160,000,000
2018 Senior Notes was validly tendered for exchange and accepted for the 2020 Senior
Notes (as defined below) as further elaborated in the below paragraph headed “lIssuance
of 12% Senior Notes Due 2020". As a result of the completion of this exchange on 9
May 2018, there was an outstanding principal amount of US$61,600,000 (approximately
38.5%) of the total aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Senior Notes.

Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 24 April 2018, 25 April 2018, 3 May
2018 and 10 May 2018 for details on the exchange offer.
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On 17 December 2018, the Company has redeemed all outstanding 2018 Senior
Notes on maturity. The outstanding principal amount of the 2018 Senior Notes was
US$61,600,000 and the accrued unpaid interest was US$4,235,000, so the total amount
paid by the Company was US$65,835,000 Following the redemption, all the redeemed
2018 Senior Notes have been cancelled thereafter and delisted from the Singapore

Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 17 December 2018 for details on

the redemption.

ISSUANCE OF 11% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2019

On 25 August 2016, the Company and certain subsidiary guarantors entered into a
subscription agreement with China Orient Alternative Investment Fund, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue and China Orient Alterative Investment Fund agreed to
subscribe for US$60,000,000, | 1% senior notes due 2019 (the “2019 Senior Notes").
The issuance was completed on 30 August 2016. The proceeds of the 2019 senior notes
was primarily used for the refinancing of indebtedness of the Company and the remainder

for its working capital purposes.

Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 25 August 2016, 6 September 2017
and 18 September 2017 for details on the 2019 Senior Notes.

ISSUANCE OF 12% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2020

On 24 April 2018, the Company offered its 12% senior notes due May 2020 in an
exchange offer to existing holders of 2018 Senior Notes. US$98,400,000 (approximately
61.5%) of the 2018 Senior Notes were successfully exchanged. Concurrently with
the exchange offer, the Company made a concurrent new issue of US$25,893,000 of
additional 2020 senior notes, which, together with the US$104,107,000 of the 2020 senior
notes issued pursuant to the exchange offer, constitute an aggregate principal amount of
US$ 130,000,000, 12% due 2020 senior notes (the “2020 Senior Notes"). The exchange
offer and the concurrent new issue were completed on 9 May 2018. The 2020 Senior

Notes are listed and traded on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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The proceeds of the 2020 Senior Notes was primarily used for the repayment of
debts including the redemption of the 2018 Senior Notes and financing acquisitions or
development of assets, real or personal property or equipment to be used in the ordinary

course of business, and certain amounts may be used for general corporate purposes.

Please refer to the Company's announcement dated 24 April 2018, 25 April 2018, 3 May
2018 and 10 May 2018 for details on the 2020 Senior Notes.

Pursuant to a purchase agreement dated 10 August 2018, the Company issued additional
2020 Senior Notes with an aggregate principal amount of US$27,000,000, which are
consolidated and formed a single class with the US$130,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of 12% 2020 Senior Notes due 2020 issued by the Company on 9 May 2018.
The issuance of the additional 2020 Senior Notes was completed on 5 August 2018.
The proceeds of the additional 2020 Senior Notes was primarily used for the repayment

of debts of the Company and for general corporate purposes.

Please refer to the Company's announcement dated 10 August 2018 for further details.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had complied with the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules during the Year. Principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 106 to 125 of

this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the public float of the issued shares of the

Company as required under the Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event of the Group after the reporting period.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 27 May 2019 to 30 May
2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be effected. In order to determine the identity of members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2019.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
years is set out on pages 34 to 35 of the annual report. This summary does not form part

of the audited consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During FY2018, no contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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AUDITORS

KPMG has acted as the auditors of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2018. The consolidated financial statements of the Company for FY2018 have
been audited by KPMG. There were no changes in auditor of the Company during the

past three years.

KPMG will retire at the forthcoming AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as the auditors of the Company for FY2019 will be proposed at the AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
WANG JIANLI

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE #HERERARE

INTRODUCTION

The Board hereby deliver the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG
Report”) of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. This Report describes the
system establishment and performance of the Group in terms of sustainable development

such as environment, society and governance in 2018.

ABOUT THIS ESG REPORT

Report Compilation Basis

This ESG Report has been prepared according to the core option of the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) G4 Guidelines, and the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide") as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. We has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the
ESG Reporting Guide.

In the reporting period, the Board of Directors has established the strategies on
environmental, social and governance issues, monitored daily compliance, and sought to
improve the performance of the Group through improving efficiency of business operation

and resource utilization, thus minimizing our carbon footprint in the environment.

This ESG Report includes forward-looking statements, based on a number of assumptions
and expectations as of the issuing date of this Report. Such assumptions and expectations
shall not be deemed to be reliable unless they are approved by internal review
procedures. Relevant statements include known and unknown risks and uncertainty, which
means that the actual results may be different from these expectations, predictions and
conclusions in this Report. The Group does not provide any guarantee on the accuracy of
these statements, and we make it clear that, if any of the statements do not come true or
are confirmed as incorrect, we shall not bear any responsibilities on amendment or update

of such forward-looking statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

We welcome any comments and suggestions you may have on this ESG Report, or on
our corporate social responsibility reporting in general. You may submit your feedback via
our company website. Comments and suggestions regarding the Group's corporate social
responsibility performance are also always welcome and can be sent to the Company's

investor relationship department at IR@hydoo.com.cn.

ABOUT US

The Company is a leading developer and operator of integrated large-scale trade and
logistics center in the PRC. The Company has put efforts on developing, constructing
and operating trade and logistics projects in cities over the years and is among the front-
runners in the industry in terms of the number of large-scale trade and logistics centers
developed and operating, the total gross floor area and the land reserve. The Company
has successfully merged the functions of commodity trading, e-commerce, commercial
complex, financial services, intelligent warehousing and logistics, corporate headquarters
and base, innovative enterprise incubator, star hotel, international conference and
exhibition, leisure and entertainment into the projects, and formed an intensive, large-

scale, full-format, multi-functional and modem trade and logistics model.

OUR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

In September 2015, the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development (20304 AI A& 3 &
#72), an agreement reached by 193 nation members, had been passed at the “United
Nations Summit for Sustainable Development”, which laid out |7 goals and contained
169 framework documents with specific objectives, aiming at realizing three long-term
targets which are beneficial to human beings: eradicating extreme poverty, fighting against
inequality and injustice and tackling climate change. As a leading developer and operator
of integrated large-scale trade and logistics center in the PRC, we believe bearing social
responsibilities and achieving sustainable development are our inevitable goals and the
upmost principles that we must uphold when making decisions. While striving to improve
operation results, we are trying our best endeavor to maintain sustainable economic,
social and environmental development and to strike a balance of interests between all
stakeholders, in order to generate value to the society and take part in the framework of

the United Nations to realize the long-term goals.
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RE #HERERARE

Related Sustainable Development Goals

Relevant Sections in this ESG Report

HESGHRERHEREE D

HENTHERRER
ey Gender Equality Achieve gender equality and
empower all women and girls
HERIF 5 ERMUTS  BYHARIERNEN

Innovation and

|ENYAT I LN
W RASTRICTLRE

Build resilient infrastructure, promote inclusive and

Bl Employment

Bl [EfE

A2 Use of Resources

0, Infrastructure sustainable property development and foster innovation
& " bl m o ¥ . =
BlFEAR ERABENERRE  REABTENAFEN

FHERE - AREERF

Sustainable Cities and

Make cities and human settlements inclusive,

A2 BIR{E

A2 Use of Resources

Communities safe, resilient and sustainable A2 BRER
ARERTRME  GETNEEEEARAN k2 BUEMAREME A3 ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES
A3 BRERRRER
Reasonable Ensure sustainable consumption and Al Emission
Consumption production patterns Al BER)
CO K RIR T R R A2 Use of Resources

Deteriorating air quality and global warming have become public concern in recently years.
As such, we acknowledge the importance of taking lead by setting ourselves as an example
to devote much attention to safe production and environmental protection through
adoption of environmental friendly production standards. In the previous year, we have
paid unremitting effort to seek for and implement more advanced ecofriendly technologies
to minimize our impact to the environment. We have maintained strict compliance with
relevant environmental laws and regulations to reach local and international standards.
We have made considerable progresses in reducing hazardous gases emissions and waste
disposals, saving resources, preventing pollutions and raising the awareness of our staff in

environmental protections.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In terms of corporate social responsibility, we adhere to business ethics, adhere to the
good faith management, strictly abide by the code of business conduct, and explicitly
prohibit employees from soliciting unreasonable remuneration in any form. We comply
with China's labor laws and the applicable employment laws of the jurisdictions where we
operate, and at the same time develop our human resources policies and procedures to
include bonuses and rewards in our remuneration system. In terms of nurturing talent, we
have established a continuous, all-round employee training, human resources development
and interactive career planning model. Through a comprehensive, diversified and
systematic development mechanism, we broaden the perspective of international talent,
deepen our expertise, strengthen our vision and present our insights to the ever-changing

environment.

In the coming vears, the company will continue to seek ways to minimize any negative
impacts of our operations on local communities, and to foster a transparent and
constructive communication with the community and other stakeholders to understand

the desires and needs of all aspects and create a harmonious community.

SUSTAINABILITY IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Underpinned by our spirit of sustainable development, the Group incorporates
environmental, social and governance sustainability into our operations. We continuously
optimize our corporate governance strategies and policies to create sustainable value
for our stakeholders. In the long term, the Group is keen to explore more sustainable
development opportunities for our business and the communities that we operate in to

promote engagement, transparency and trust among stakeholders.
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HERERRE

I

Corporate Governance

Our Board of Directors directs the overall strategy and development of the Group's
operations and business, and is responsible for monitoring and reviewing corporate
governance practices across the Group. The Board is of the opinion that the Company
had complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the Year. Principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section of the annual

report.

The Group values effective communications with stakeholders and maintains a high level

of public transparency by providing timely and accurate information.

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder's engagement is crucial to our long-term development and business
sustainability and our preparation of this ESG Report. As such, we value every connection
with our stakeholders and pay full attention to the precious opinions and suggestions
from stakeholders, as well as understand our shortcomings and formulate improvement
plans actively, so as to seize opportunities and strive for long-term improvement. We try
our best to meet relevant local and interational standards related to our operation, and
adhere to environmental protection and social responsibilities. We have consolidated
and identified various kinds of stakeholders involved in main businesses of the Group into
corresponding categories, including shareholders and investors, government and regulatory

authorities, employees, customers, suppliers, and communities.
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BodHERERBRSE

Stakeholders

Expectation and Requirement

Related Response

Communication Channel

BF0E ME KRR B BERE

Shareholders and Investors Financial Performance Improves profitability General Meetings

BREREE MBEE RRAMEESN BRAE
Protection of Interests Convenes general meetings Annual and interim reports
aiRE ARBRRAE FERPHHRE
Transparency Daily information disclosure Circulars/announcements/

notices/publications

LERERE AEEERE PNV YN
Risk contro Optimizes internal control and Investor relations enquiry

R\ % 61

risk management

BIEME RS2

REEMEEH

Government and

Operate in compliance

Law-abiding operations

Annual and interim reports

Regulatory Authorities with the law
B R EERE BiLTR A REE FERTHEE
Tax payment in accordance Tax payment on time and in full Circulars/announcements/
with the laws notices/publications
AR R R BB PNV YN
Support local development Actively implements Ongoing direct engagements
related policies
T ER RfEE EMRBUR REER2E
Proactively undertakes
social responsibilities
TEAREHEEE
Employees Career development platform Improves the career Intranet
promotion mechanism
BT BEXZRYR TEBEETHS QkkE

Remuneration and benefits

FIEET
Healthy and safe

working environment
REZZHOIERE

Competitive salary and
benefits protection
BHFENNFHEARENRE
Implements health and

safety management system
REREZEEEER
Equal communication

and complaint mechanism

P58 1 B ER T

Annual appraisal

R

Team building activities

LIV SN ()
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B oHERER
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Stakeholders

Expectation and Requirement

Related Response

Communication Channel

Business ethics and credit standing

AEERERGE

Carries out project cooperation
HRIERA1E

Performance of obligations
under any contract

in accordance with laws

KERITAR

BF0E MERHFR B BERE
Customers Product quality and All-round caring services Group website
cost performance
2P EmBEREEL 238D IR BB
Customer service quality Network security and Day-to-day communication
well-defined authority through frontline staff
RFR%mE PRz EERRE BBAIREINATER
Customer information security Law-abiding marketing Customer hotline
RFEERZ AREH RPRIBHE
Customer rights protection
RP#miRE
Suppliers Integrity cooperation Establishes supply Ongoing direct engagements
chain responsibility
R WIEATE TSR SEER2E
Win-win cooperation Promotes daily communication
AEfE REBEER

The Community

&

Care for the poor

FEEREE
Support social welfare
X ERE
Protect the nature
REBRRE
Promote social progress

REHEES

Participate in targeted
poverty alleviation
2ERERE

Participate in charity works
RORESE

Adhere to green operations

ERReE:

Ongoing direct engagements

REER2
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Materiality Assessment of Environmental, Social and Governance Issues

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, the Group entrusted an independent

consultant to carry out materiality assessment of environmental, social and governance

issues in 2018 to fully assess the environmental, social and governance issues that

were crucial to the Group's business development and were of the utmost concern

to stakeholders, which helped the Group determine the environmental, social and

governance management objectives for the coming year and the focus of the disclosure

of this Report in order to actively respond to the expectations and requirements of all

parties.
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Al Emissions

A2 Use of Resource

A3 Environment and natural resources

Al BB A2 BRER A3 RERARER
Emission management Eco-friendly workings Eco-friendly constructions
HmmER RERR RERE

Cope with climate changes Eco-friendly constructions

EHRIEZ HERT

Waste management Eco-friendly operations

BRYERE Rregs

Bl Employment B2 Health and safety B3 Development and training
Bl fEfR B2 RFEEZZE B3 R M7

Employee rights and benefits
BTi#x%

Employee activities
BTE®

Equal opportunity

FEHe

Safe production
ZEEE
Physical and mental health of employees

BIFURE

Employee trainings
BT

B4 Labor standard
B4 4 TR

B5 Supply chain management
BS {tREsEEIE

B6 Product responsibility
Be EmAIT

Prohibition in child and forced labor
BFETMEHST

Supplier Management

HEREE

Product quality
EnEE
Customer service

=P R

Advertisement content

EEAR

B7 Anti-corruption

B8 Community investment

B7 RES B8 it@IE
Anti-corruption Community investment
RES HERE
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A ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY A

Guided by the motto of sustainable development, we are devoted to creating a
sustainable future for our next generation. To achieve this, the Group goes beyond
the minimum requirement of adhering to all applicable legal and environmental
standards, and continues to put forth dedicated efforts toward aligning our
commitments with regional government’s environmental targets and programmes
on emissions, energy, water, material use and waste management. Throughout the
years, the Group has also been active in helping to raise public awareness about

climate change and environmental issues by supporting various initiatives.

Al Emissions

The Company bears in mind the corporate responsibilities of sustainable
development. All projects of the Group are complied with the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC (F # A R FBIBRIR(REZ), Law of the PRC
on Environmental Impact Assessment (2 A R XM BIRIFE R ETEE)
and related regulations, as well as specific regulations released by regional

governments.

Before the start of each projects, the project company will make respective
evaluation reports such as Environmental Impact Report (%38 B I73%
FERE) and Environmental Acceptance Report (38 H TIRIRFR I
#;EE) to regulate the construction contractors in relation to the noises
created by construction machineries, exhausted gas emitted from various
construction machineries and transportation vehicles, organic emissions
generated during decorations and renovations, wastewater generated from
operation at construction sites, solid wastes generated at construction
sites, energy consumption at construction sites, and household garbage and

domestic wastewater generated by construction contractors, etc.
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Al.l Dust All BE

Dusts from construction sites are mainly generated during the process
of foundation works. Dust emissions can mainly be attributed to wind
and kinesis. Construction materials such as sands and cements stored
outdoor are easily picked up by wind in dry and windy weather.
In addition, dusts are generated by external force in particular the
construction trucks and machineries during the process of excavation
and soil loosening. In practical, the volume of dusts are correlated with
humidity, road condition, speed of vehicles and wind velocity. The
Group complies with the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution Law of the PRC (1 AR LB KRS 4 #EE) and
Integrated Emission Standards for Air Pollutants (AN5&)5 2 W4 &
HERUIZZE) to minimize the environmental impacts of dust generated
in construction process. The Group also encourages the construction
contractors to comply with related regulations and adopt the

following measures:

J Construction sites should be fully enclosed, and road surfaces

at construction sites should be fully hardened;

s Certain level of humidity should be maintained during the
excavation and drilling process by watering the operation
surface; watering should be carried out regularly on loose and
dry soil at construction sites; and proper watering should be
carried out on dry surface of soil when backfilling the soil, in

order to prevent the creation of dusts;
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wE

Dedicated locations should be set up with enclosure for the
stacking and storing of building materials, and misplacements
should not be allowed. Unwanted residual materials should be
transported away as soon as possible, and accumulation of such
wastes should not be allowed. Sand and soil at construction

sites should be covered at all times when they are not in use;

During the process of demolition, watering should be made to

suppress dusts;

Car wash facilities and ground surface water trenches should
be set up at the entrances and exits of construction sites for
rinsing of transportation trucks. Transportation trucks should
be rinsed thoroughly before leaving the construction sites to
reduce dirt carried by the vehicles and chassis from scattering
on the roads. Soil scattered on the roads should be removed
immediately to reduce the creation of dust during operation;

and

Ready-mix concrete must be used for construction projects
located on both sides of the roads or within designated areas.
In order to reduce dust pollution, concrete mixers should not

be installed at construction sites.
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Al.2 Noise

Construction noises are created by various construction machineries,
including foundation pilling machines, excavators and bulldozes.
Noises are also generated by various types of machineries which are
used for decoration and renovation. These machineries include drills,
collecting machines, cutting machines and electric saws. The Group
complies with the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Noise Pollution (AR £MBIRE 5 EHEE) to reduce
the impacts of noise placed on the surrounding environment through
ensuring that the boundaries of the construction sites meets the
requirements of the national Emission Standard of Environment Noise
for Boundary of Construction Sites (2221 T 35 RIRIFE R S HEMR
124). The Group required construction contractors to adopt the
following measures in reducing the impact of such noises generated

by construction machineries:

. Traditional percussive piling process using steam and diesel
are prohibited during foundation works. Instead, construction
process with less noise and less pollution are adopted such as

drilling pile and hydrostatic pile;

3 The majority of construction process are prohibited during
non-working hours, noontime and nighttime. Any extension of
operating hours due to special circumstances must be reported

to and approved by the relevant authorities;

J For any construction process in which high noise-level
operation are expected, proper temporary shielding should be

installed as an integrated measure; and

. The entrances and exits for construction trucks at construction
sites should be arranged at places away from sensitive areas,

such as government properties and residential areas.
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Al3 Exhausted Gas Al3 JER

Exhausted gas is mainly emitted by various construction machineries
and transportation vehicles during construction process, as well as
organic emissions generated during decorations and renovations.
Exhaust gases emitted by various kinds of construction machineries
are mainly sulfur dioxide (SO,), nitrogen oxide (NOx) and
hydrocarbons. Organic air emissions are mainly toxic gases which
vaporized from various paints and coatings on plywood boards,
fine wood boards, medium-density fiberboard and particle boards.
These toxic gases include formaldehyde, benzene, ester, ethanol,
radon, polyvinyl chloride, ethyl benzene and polycyclic aromatic
hydrocarbons. The Group complies with the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution Law of the PRC (R AR HEFBI KA
SAFEE) to minimize the environmental impacts of exhausted
gases generated from construction. The Group also encourages the

construction contractors to adopt the following measures:

. Machineries should be turned off when idle to reduce

generation of exhaust gas from combustion;

J During the construction process, the use of disposed building

materials as fuel is strictly prohibited; and

J Environmental friendly material should be used during
decorations and renovations as to reduce the emission of

formaldehyde.
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Al.4 Greenhouse Gases

The Group has placed great concerns on various energy consumption
indicators. In addition to the compliance of the PRC's energy efficiency
standard, the Group strives to achieve the Assessment Standard for
Green Building (A% 232 53T {E1R4E) issued by the PRC Government
to improve energy efficiency. In order to avoid over-consumption of
energy and to reduce the emission of greenhouse gases, the Group
put efforts on saving energy, water, space and materials during the
development and operation of projects. Please refer to “A2 Use of
resources” and “A3 Environment and natural resources” below for

details of the relevant measures adopted.
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Emissions of Vehicle Exhaust Unit Emissions in 2018
ERBERIEN B 0I8FHHE
NOx Emissions Kilogram Approximate 2,700
REIY (NOX) B2 = #12,700
SOx Emissions Kilogram Approximate 10
ZRYEH (SOx) BERE i #H10
Particles Emissions Kilogram Approximate 240
BRMEENE T5 #9240
CO, Emissions Unit Emissions in 2018
&R B 018 FHHE
Emissions From Electricity Consumption Tonne Approximate 20
RAEELN_SIRINES I #20
Emissions From Processing Scrap Paper Tonne Approximate 240
EREERELN_ALRINEE I %240
Emissions From Processing Sewage Tonne Approximate 280
RIETKELN —ALHANEE WE #1280
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AlS5 Wastewater ALS BEK
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Our discharges into water mainly include wastewater generated
from office operations and construction sites. When dealing with
wastewater which generated in offices, the Group strictly complies
with the Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers (J57KBEAISE TKEKERZ) in directing all discharges
into municipal sewage. Wastewater discharged from construction sites
mainly include muddy water, wastewater from rinsing the cement
system, cooling water of machineries and wastewater from rinsing of
ground surface. In general, the pH value of wastewater is within the
range of 6~8, SS within 1000~6000 mg/L and petroleum of around
I5 mg/L. Pollution is generated mainly from suspended solids (SS),
dichromate chemical oxygen demand index (CODCr), biochemical
oxygen demand indicator (BOD5) and ammoniac nitrogen indicator
(NH5-N) in the wastewater. The Group complies with the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution (FZE AR
BT EE) to minimize the pollution generated during
constructions so that the discharging of wastewater is in compliance
with the requirements set out in the Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standard (/57K&R G BEBUEZE) released by the PRC Government. To
reduce discharges into water, the Group has adopted the following

preventive measures:

J Construction contractors shall strictly follow the Construction
Organization Design (i ZAB#%5T) and Special Plan for
Construction Safety (ZZ X BT HEIEAE) as reviewed
and approved by the Company and the project supervisors,
formulate design plans for the discharge of surface water, and
prohibit unorganized discharge, pollution to roads and the

environment, or flooding to the municipal facilities;
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Wastewater generated during foundation piling work must
be treated immediately through dredging and discharge
management. Pollutants in wastewater generated from
washing and rinsing machineries and construction vehicles
are mainly suspended solids, for which rinsing and washing
facilities should be set up at designated locations. Surface water
ditches should be directed to temporary sedimentation tanks
to allow suspended solids in wastewater to sediment. After
sedimentation, wastewater can then be recycled for use to

reduce the Group's use of clean water;

Muddy water generated during operation and sludge by
punching pile drivers and bored piles must not be discharged
without treatment and must not pollute the scene and the
surrounding environment. Temporary settling basins should
be set up at backfill dumps and at locations where sludge is
produced. Rainwater containing sediments and muddy water
should only be discharged after sedimentation in settling basins
to remove floating specks and reduce sediments concentration

so as to prevent any sewer blockage;

Provide temporary public toilets. Sewage can be discharged

only after it is properly processed by the septic tank; and

Establish wastewater diversion cannels, wastewater collection

pond, grit chamber and other preventive facilities.
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Al6 Solid Waste Al6 EIREEEY
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The Group's solid wastes include harmless wastes generated in offices

SENERENRERAE

and at construction sites. Wastes generated in offices are daily garbage EENBESEEMNEIER
which is associated with the social and economic development, as G TERREY - AR
well as enhancement in living standard. All wastes generated in offices EERNBEEYBAEMEE

are handled and recycled through the Group's property management
office. Solid wastes generated at construction sites mainly consist
of silt, muck, wasted construction materials, household waste from
workers and wastes generated from renovation. Wastes generated
from renovation include mortar surface cement wastes, packaging
materials, scrap metal wire, sawdust, and various hazardous wastes,
such as wasted oil drums, wasted plastic cloth, wasted chemical
materials and its respective packaging materials, and wasted asbestos.
The Group complies with the PRC Law on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes (2 AR
$E 0B B BB RE )5 L IRIR P A V%) to reduce the pollution from
solid wastes generated during construction process, and the Group
has required the construction contractors to adopt the following

measures:

J Different types of solid wastes generated from construction

should be collected and handled separately;

S Domestic waste should be disposed regularly after collection;
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Only proper quantities of residual mud should be loaded to
transportation trucks to ensure no spillage nor flying dusts
during transportation. Wastes should only be dumped to

landfill sites designated by the relevant authorities;

Wastes such as brick rubbles can be treated through the
general piling method. Wastes that can be reused, such as
wood and bamboo, should be recycled for the conservation of

resources;

Dump sites selected should not occupy farmlands or be placed
close to rivers or reservoirs. They should be located in low-
lying areas, with diversion ditches set up at upstream of the

dump sites; and

All'hazardous wastes should be handled and transported by

waste recycling companies approved by the government.
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A2  Use of Resources

A2 BRER

Energy Consumption Unit Consumption in 2018
RERHER B 018 FHZER
Total Electricity Consumption Kilowatt per Hour Approximate 16,600,000
BREE TR #916,600,000
Total Gasoline Consumption Tonne Approximate 360
FURHERE W #1360
Total Diesel Oil Consumption Tonne Approximate 20
KHHEREE I 820
Total Towngas Consumption Cubic Meter Approximate 11,250
RRBREE I7K #11,250
Total LPG Consumption Cubic Meter Approximate 6,000
RiHRBRRE IITK #16,000
Total Energy Consumption of Standard Coal Tonne Approximate 2,400
FraREREREREE I #12,400
Total Water Consumption Cubic Meter Approximate 658,000
BrkE UK #9658,000

The Group emphasizes the impact of its projects to the social environment
and living standards of human beings. From the choice of building materials
to the layout of project designs, the Group's projects are humanized and
accommodate to the natural environment in minimizing the use of resources
(in terms of energy, space, water and building materials), protecting the
environment and reducing pollution, so as to provide its residents with
a healthy, comfortable and highly efficient space, and buildings that stand

harmoniously with the nature.
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The Group has been infusing this environmental protection concept into its
ongoing construction projects, imposing strict control on these construction
projects to ensure adherence to the relevant construction regulations. The
overall designs of all ongoing projects of the Group aim to accommodate the
surrounding natural environment and fully utilise the local natural resources.
Constructions should be sustainable, eco-friendly and integrated with the
nature, with high energy efficiency, and should not harm the local eco-system.
The interior design of buildings under construction should fully utilise daylight
to save energy. Buildings should bring a sense of proximity to the nature and
provide a healthy living environment to their residents. By controlling and
reducing the exploitation and destruction of the natural environment, the
Group's endeavours to strike a balance between taking from and giving to
the national environment. To better protect the environment and optimise

the use of resources, the Group has adopted the following measures:

A2.] Measures of Energy Conservation

. Construction plans are designed based on the PRC's energy
efficiency standards for buildings, with an energy efficiency

review report issued by local authorities;

J Structural forms, architectural orientations, spacing between
buildings and proportion of windows to exterior wall space are
designed to utilize the natural conditions of the venues, so that
residents can enjoy adequate sunlight, ventilation and lighting.

Shading facilities are installed as necessary;

J Street lights and the lights installed at stores use LED lights with

time or light control;

RE #HEREARARS

SERERARESERAERERN
ERBERZT  HRBERARY
BEEMEERRR  ARAKETH
B BERTEREBERERT
MARRRTE - MBERIABMER
RAENREHERRENRR - B
BN MR EHREBRER
WA EMRFERERTE
MRFEERBINIE - HEE
BARRA TEIERRERR R
ARG - BEER  BEEE
BE—RBROBRNREE « RN
BRI - B BEA IR HI AR D4
BARENERAMBE T8
HRAB RNORERANE R 2 HEF
- RRERERBICERER -
S BSEUA TG -

A2l EDEEFE I

- BIBXRABERZE

/o

BN RE IS 1T RRET

< MRS E A&
AR LR
B EEMEEE
Bt REEES
i B R @A MK
Yoo WREFERE
PRt

- ENBENESHR
HHALEDKX R - &5
AREHREEE
#l

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %R

T



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRE

. Make full use of solar, geothermal and other renewable energy

resources according to local climates and resources conditions;

. Make use of natural lighting and ventilation (directly or
indirectly from entrances and exits, open yards, side windows,

skylights and other parts) in the underground area;
. Adopt insulation design for exterior walls and roof surface; and

. Ensure the design of buildings meets the requirement of indoor
and outdoor sunlight, and ventilation set out in the Code for
Planning and Design on Urban Residential Areas (31 /& ¥ &
HEIRETHE).

A22 Measures on Water Conservation

. Water system planning should be devised at the project
planning stage in order to coordinate, oversee and integrate

various water resources;

J Indoor pipes are made of stainless steel to avoid corrosion

which would do harm to water resource;

J Municipal supplied water and groundwater should not be used
for providing water to landscape. Circulating water supply

systems should be used for landscape purpose;
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. When using non-traditional water sources, such as recycled
water, water safety measures should be taken to ensure that
there is no adverse effect to human health and the surrounding

environment;

. Properly design rainwater runoff channels on ground surface
and on proof tops to reduce surface runoff, and adopt various

methods of infiltration to increase rainwater infiltration;

J Non-traditional water sources such as recycled water and
rainwater are used for non-potable purposes such as greening

the city and car wash;

e Adopt high efficiency and water conserving irrigation methods

such as sprinkler irrigation and micro irrigation; and

. Use water-saving appliances and equipment.

Measures on Material Conservation

In selection process of construction and renovation materials, the
Group strictly complies with related technical indicators and national
standards, such as the Indoor Decorating and Refurbishing Materials-
Limit of Formaldehyde Emission of Wood based Panels and Finishing
Products (ENREMREM B AEREER M AFEERR
), Limit of Ammonia Emitted from the Concrete Admixtures (&
B IMINEIFERREAIBRE), Limit of Radionuclides in Building
Materials (2EEHTHI AT IEAZ 2R 8), etc. The Group puts efforts
in minimizing the volume of toxics so as to protect the health of
the clients and as well avoid the adverse impact placed to the

environment.
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. The architectural designs should be simple, and free from large

amount of decorative elements;

e Encouraging the use of eco-friendly building materials such as

aerated block;

e Ready-mix concrete should be used for purpose of in situ

concrete;

e High-performance concrete and high-strength steels should be

used as structural building materials;

. The solid residual wastes resulted from construction work, old
building demolition and site clean-up should be classified for
different treatments, and materials which can be reused should

be recycled and reused; and

J Use self-insulation wall materials for buildings' exterior and

lightweight hollow wall for the interior.

A24  Eco-fiendly Working Environment

J Depleted ink cartridge and office equipment should be recycled
and disposed by administrative department and must not be

dropped randomly;

J Purchase energy saving office equipment and machineries such
as those air-conditioners with level | or level 2 Chinese Energy
Efficiency Label (F BIEERIT24%); and

J Make the best use double-sided printing to avoid the waste of
paper.
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Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands that business and project development place
significant impact, directly and indirectly, on environmental resources,
in particular land resources. Although the Group emphasizes on the
smooth development of the business, it understands the importance of
environmental protection. As a result, the Group put efforts on balancing
the both mentioned issues. Environmental evaluation is conducted by
construction contractor prior to the start of projects. Also, the design of
project proposal should be carried out in matching the eco-system of the
region in order to minimize overdevelopment and enhance the allocation
of social resource. In the meanwhile, the Group has adopted the following

measures to maintain and protect the environment:

. The water and soil conservation proposal should be made following
the Control Standards for Soil and Water Loss on Development and
Construction Projects (F% 2% 8 B /K LR KFAR%E);

. Construction should not bring destructions to local heritage, natural

water system, wetland, farmland, forest and other reservation area;

0 Drainage ditches and eco-friendly parking lots should be built around

the main construction site;

e Botanical colony with diversified species of plants based on local
climates and distribution of plants should be built to repair the

vegetation of the region after the completion of the project;

. Adopt native landscaping by planting appropriate native plants that
are accustomed to the local climate and soil conditions. The preferred
choices are those that require little maintenance, are resistant to
extreme weather conditions and pests, and not harmful to human

health;
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. The locations of construction sites should be free from threats such . BESMENBLELE
as floods, landslides and radon-containing soil. No sources of hazards RERRERTENRE -
such as electromagnetic radiation, fire, explosives and toxic substances RESH T2 BENEEY
should be found within the safe range of the construction sites; BEEENAN B BESY

BEEBRIR
0 The construction project should follow the topography; and U BESHESER MR
it R
d Reasonable development and utilization of underground area. 0 BEFAEN A TR -
B SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY B HENTHREKM
Bl Employment BI fEf®

BI.I Overview of Human Resources Bl.I ADNERER

The Group values and cultivates employees, and constantly attracts SERATREBNLER

E -BERATHEERR

outstanding talents from external sources based on advanced

82

management philosophy and positive corporation culture. The Group
strives to provide a platform for talents to fully exert their abilities
and realize their value. The Group has formulated a set of human
resources management policy and procedures to provide excellent
working environment and a healthy and safe workplace for them
to work and develop their strengths. The Group strictly complies
with the Labor Law of the PRC (% &))%) and the Labor Contract
Law (%84 [E)%), and has constructed the Human Resources
Process Management Manual (A B TRRIZEFEFM) following
related guidelines which enables employees to understand their own
rights and benefits. The manual also sets out a fair and reasonable

promotion system.
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The Human Resources Process Management Manual contains 20
sets of rules, including Operational Guidelines on Annual Human
Resources Planning, Operational Guidelines on Recruitment
Management, Operational Guidelines on Internal Recommendation
Management, Operational Guidelines on Trainees and Interns
Management, Operational Guidelines on Training Management,
Operational Guidelines on Employee Incentive Management,
Operational Guidelines on Employee Benefits, Operational Guideline
on Remuneration Management, Operational Guidelines on Labor
Contract Management, Operation Guidelines on Employee Tumover
and Operational Guidelines on Attendance Management, covering
recruitment and training, promotion, internal referral, performance
appraisal, dismissal and compensation, working hours, paid leave and

other benefits.
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Bl.2  Team Profile

The Group uses different recruitment channels, fairly and justly, to
hire talents from different nationalities, genders, ages and religions.

The Group has 1,074 employees as at 31 December, 2018.

By gender, the male employees in the Group account for about
63% and the female employees account for about 37%. By age,
the employees in the Group aged under 30, between 31-40,
between 41-50 and above 50 account for about 23%, 44%, 22%
and |1% respectively. Both genders enjoy equal opportunities and
compensations, which will be fairly justified by business development
and performance. We accept the equal guidance in the work between
male and female employees: (i) in the course of recruitment, there
is no discrimination with hiring the best candidates as per suitable
vacancies; and (ii) we provide equal opportunities for candidates
according to their capabilities and intentions in task assignment or
job rotation but not by genders. Based on the business nature, the

Group's male employees are slightly more than female employees.
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- H| Gender

37.00%

63.00%

= 5 Male = % Female

B1.3  Recruitment and Departure Management

Recruitment of the Group's employees is in accordance with the
Operational Guidelines on Recruitment Management (HHI2%E IR {E 2
#85l) and in compliance with the requirements of the relevant labor
regulations at national and regional levels, and strictly restricting child
labor and forced labor. The Group strictly complies with the above
regulations during the Year and reviews its recruitment practices
from time to time to prevent potential non-compliances. The Group
strives to ensure that the entire recruitment process complies
with relevant laws and regulations, and employees are required to
truthfully complete the application forms upon entries, with their
personal particulars (including copies of documents, such as resume,
identity documents, academic certificates, proof of qualifications,
title certificates, business qualification certificates, work licenses,
driver's license, original copy of proof of departure from previous
employments, and career profile background files) verified by the
human resources department before hiring. The Company would

organize recruitment events for outstanding talents from the society.
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In addition, to ensure that its future middle to senior level work force
are equipped with compound skills necessary for its development, the
Group has launched the "Hydoo's Apprentices” scheme by recruiting
excellent graduates from key colleges and universities since 2015.
Through various types of training for "Hydoo's Apprentices”, such
as internship rotation of different positions, mentoring, on-the-job
practice and project experience, outstanding graduates are provided

with comprehensive training.

The departure of the Group's employees complies with the Group's
Operation Guidelines on Staff Internal Transfer (B TE2#)E 12
YEZ4E3), which regulates how resignation, and discharge and
termination of labor contract are handled, and is in compliance with
the PRC Labor Contract Law (PZEARLNEBESRZE), the
Labor Law (FEE AR EFMEILED)E) and other relevant rules and
regulations of the Company. In relation to resignation, the Group's
human resources department would arrange a departure interview,
requiring the relevant staff to complete the Staff Departure Survey (2
TEFREAEMAR) and the Departure Interview Record (BEH:FH
AFOEEK) before and after the interview for fiing and analysis, and
for the human resources department to optimize human resources

management decisions.

In the reporting period, the Group has 430 departing employees,
among which, male employees account for about 60% and female
employees account for about 40%. By age of the departing
employees, the employees in the Group aged under 30, between 31-
40, between 41-50 and above 50 account for about 33%, 45%, 16%
and 6%.
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Working Hours and Holidays

The Group has formulated the Operational Guidelines on Attendance
Management (& E)EI2{EXFE3I), regulating employees’ working
hours to the standard of 40 working hours per week. The Group
advocates efficiency at work. Staff who are required to work overtime
should complete and deliver the Application Form for Overtime
Work (B TNIEEREEEE). Upon approval, staff may apply for
alternative leave. The Group's employees are entitled to national
holidays, company holidays, annual leave, funeral leave, marital leave,

matemity leave and sick leave.

Remuneration and Benefits

In order to standardize the benefit management, build a sound
benefit system, enhance team stability and cohesion, and stimulate
the Group's sustainable development, the Group has established the
Operational Guidelines on Employee Benefits (8 T EFE{E
%455I). The Group provides our employees “5 Insurances and |
Pension”, high-temperature subsidies, annual leaves, communication
allowance, meal allowance, accident insurance, body check, and
holiday allowance. In addition, the Company also adopted measures,
such as distributing gifts and benefits and lengthening holidays, to

further enhance the benefits system and its staff satisfaction.

The Group organizes salary surveying annually based on Operational
Guidelines on Salary Management (3B & I2{E¥E5]) and the
Group's development strategy to raise suggestions to the Company's

salary level and structural adjustment, as well as to gather statistics.
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Ble

Bl.7

Incentives and Praises

The Company has formulated a sound staff incentive mechanism. At
the end of each year, the Company would assess its staff for their
performance to select outstanding teams, managers and employees,
who would receive commendations and bonuses in recognition
of their contribution to the Company and of their efforts in jointly
reaching the Company's goals. Throughout the year, the Company
would also offer immediate promotion to staff with excellent daily
performance and give commendation to staff from time to time
in recognition of their handling of emergencies or as an award for
their early fulfilment of targets, thereby encouraging other staff to
contribute to the Company. In addition, the Company has adopted
comprehensive incentive measures in light of its various businesses to
fully mobilize the enthusiasm of the staff and ensure the Company's

sustainable development.

Employee Activities

To relieve employee’s work pressure and enrich their pastime,
the Group organized various staff activities during the reporting
period, including the New Year banquet, group basketball matches,
badminton matches, fishing matches, snooker matches, seasonal team-
building events, Women's Day event, staff birthday parties, outdoors
walks, hiking, fluorescent night runs and photography events, which
offers our staff a platform to showcase their talents and enhance
communication among themselves and between different centers and
departments, and strengthen its staff's sense of belonging and team

cohesion.
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Health and Safety

The Company strictly complies with national laws and regulations in
the employee occupational health work. The Group has developed
its occupational health guidelines to satisfy the needs of company and
employees in accordance with national occupational health and safety
standards (including OHSMS (B EZ 2 ERER), 150 9000 (B &
REFBER) and 1SO 14000 (FRIREIREE RITH)), to prevent occupational
diseases, protect workers'health, enhance employees'safety awareness and
ensure safety at construction site. The Group has purchased accidental
injury insurance for each employee in addition to social insurance purchased
in accordance with the relevant regulations, offering its staff all-rounded
protection. Furthermore, the Group arranges body-checking annually for
all employees to help understanding their own health status and identifying
potential health risks in advance in order to take timely medication or

treatment.

The Company has compiled with the Operation Guidelines on the
Management of Construction Safety and Legitimacy (%22 X A L E IR 1E
Z14E5I). Through prevention and control measures, the Company strives
to reduce the probability of workplace accidents in construction projects,
improve construction site environment, standardize safety management
procedures and equip its workers with accident-handling knowledge. Project
companies assess the management measures adopted by contractors,
conduct independent patrolling, sample-checking and monitoring at
construction sites, report to the relevant person-in-charge and the relevant
contractors when problems are identified, and monitor the relevant
rectification measures. The Group's projects management division monitors
project companies’ execution of safety management policies. The Company
requires contractors to hold frequent trainings on safety education and

techniques.
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B3

The Group's projects management division has set up internal safety
management teams to regularly inspect the safety and incident prevention
measures on the sites of ongoing constructions, the results of which will
be reported directly to the Company's management. During the Year, the
Group has strictly complied with relevant laws, regulations and guidelines to

prevent accidents from happening.
Development and Training

To strengthen the Group's operation and to meet the needs in its business
development, the Company has formulated systems including Operational
Guidelines on Training Management (3 3IE B {E%$E3]), Operational
Guidelines on Induction Training Management for New Employees ($18 T
A5 E B {ESF55]), Operational Guidelines on Position Mentoring
(ER BRI EIR{ERIES]), Operational Guidelines on In-service Immersion
Management (TEBR & E FR{ES185), Operational Guidelines on Staff
Intemal Transfer (8§ TEE)EIR{EEFES]) and Operational Guidelines on
Promotion Management (B & B E%4E3) to train outstanding talents.
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The Group has placed great importance on the training and growth of
its employees, giving them promotion potential in both technical and
management directions. Every year, the Company would offer promotion
to employees with outstanding performance. In principle, when there
are vacancies, internal promotion will be considered first. Only a certain
proportion of positions are reserved for external recruitment. At the end
of each year, in light of its development plans and the actual needs of its
various departments, the Company would formulate its annual training
plans, including internal and external training. In the middle of each year, the
Group will conduct reviews in light of the training operations, adjusting its
training plans for the second half of the year. All training plans closely reflect
changes in employees” working environment and aim to enhance their work

efficiency. Trainings provided by the Group during the reporting period are
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Induction training for new employees. Such trainings mainly introduce
the Company's development history, corporate culture, organization and
structure, and rules and regulations to help new employees familiarize
themselves with the Group's operation as soon as possible and improve
their work efficiency. In addition to employee training, the Group would also
assign a mentor to new employees to guide them through the Company's

operation and management;

Middle to senior level management training. The Group would regularly
organize training classes for management staff at middle to senior levels
every year, and hire professional lecturers to deliver. Through systematic
learning, the classes can enhance the technical knowledge and management
skills of the Group's employees at middle to senior levels, helping them

become leaders with the ability to create commercial values;
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Expansion training. The Group regularly conduct outdoor teambuilding
expansion trainings, creating an effective and interesting platform through
which communications between leaders and employees, and among

employees themselves, can be enhanced;

External leaming. To serve the objective of cultivating talents for the society,
the Group regularly sends employees away on external leaming to study the

latest trends in the industry, broaden their horizons and enhance their skills;

"Yi Class". It is the Group's pocket mobile learning platform for its
employees, enabling them to leamn at any time anywhere. The Company
can set the curriculum structure in light of its development strategies and
its employees’ professional competence and, through the management and
monitoring of the learning process, assist its employees in mastering the
knowledge and skills necessary for their positions, in order to enhance the

Company's performance; and

Continuing education. In order to enhance their professionalism and
qualifications, and eventually improve their comprehensive quality, the
Company supports employees to pursue in-service studies through three
channels, namely professional research and learning, education advancement

and EMBA/MBA.

Labour Standard
B4.1  Child and Forced Labor

We have regularly supervised the information related to employment to
avoid violation of the labor laws and regulations. We strictly forbid any child
labor and forced labor and prohibit the arrangement of underage workers
for restricted work. All employees must conform to the legal working
age and the human resources department will request the job applicants
to present effective identity certificates in the recruitment and perform
background check according to the materials provided as appropriate.
Meanwhile, the Group enters into the labor contracts with all employees on

the basis of Voluntary Principles.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBRMRIZEKRERLD T

B4

BREY: EHETERZARE
Al - APIMEIIT A - EEAR

BROFR MRAEERET 2
- BTHEMER:

MRS UAHEEBEARTR
g EHKEIINLEE  RER
HTESE  RREEIRE &7
BTHee

RE: EEZIBHEETS
I f% BMERRESE
N A AR AR B R B AN i B
N RERERR  VRAZER

BHERE En FEIFFHME
R VEO BN - SRFT
EEM R

B
g

HEHE  RRAIXKFEIEREE
BREEEZNEE  BERAMN
EMBA/MBA 28 = T 1T R
wE AREEIZEEKENER
BE  EMRABINGERE

MTHER
B4 EIRBHST

AT HEREREBEN ﬁ%
MRS ERERTE - B
%Eﬁil&ﬁﬂ%lﬂﬂ%ﬁ?
HRKEIREREIESE  FE
BIVRHEEATIESFR AN
ERBeNRERESCREE LR
B FNERE - WREHRME
MERBETMETERHASE - R
SEEMEEIEERRAER L

EA T @J/\H°



B5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Supply Chain Management

The majority of the Group's construction work and technical work are
outsourced to contractors selected through a bidding process. The selection
process of suppliers and technical service providers is very rigorous. The
Group has set up the Tender Procurement Management Process (1A12
RIBEETINIE) to regulate the selection and management of suppliers
to maximize the use of the Company's external resources and help to
achieve the Company's project targets and strategies. The Company has a
stable relationship with its suppliers. No difficulties were encountered in the
process of supplier selection, and the requirements in all the Company's
development projects were met. As most construction materials are
procured locally at the place of the development project, there should be no
problem in locating an afternative supplier of major construction materials in

the event that any supplier is unable to meet the demand of the Group.

The Company has compiled with the Supplier Management Process (£ &
ETEMIE) and set up a supplier information management platform through
which suppliers information are input to the database by category, after
qualification assessments or onsite reviews. With the setup and maintenance
of the suppliers database, suppliers information is collected and processed
systematically to ensure that quality services and products can be delivered
to the Company. At the end of each year, the contract tender management
division works with other management divisions and project companies in
reviewing and assessing suppliers’ contract performance, and screens out
suppliers that have not complied with the relevant rules and regulations,
and have brought environmental and social risks to the Company (such
as bringing harm to the Company's reputation by causing environmental
pollution at construction sites or employing illegal workers). To ensure that
qualified suppliers can provide the Company with quality service and have
good reputations, suppliers’ ratings are updated in the database according to
the assessment reports approved by the Group's management, while those

failing to pass the assessment are eliminated.
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Bé

Product Esponsibility

Bé./

B6.2

Quality Monitoning

To ensure that the properties built by the Company comply
with relevant regulations and standards as set out in the national
Unified Standard for Constructional Quality Acceptance of Building
Engineering (RETRETImEBKA—1RE) and Quality
Evaluation Standard for Construction (B22E T2 L mE FHEIR%E),
the Company has compiled the Operation Guideline on Engineering
Quality Control (LI2EEEEEEE3S|) and the Operational
Guidelines on Engineering Inspection (LZi2#{i&{E3$E3), which
are used to ensure that construction works comply with the relevant
regulations and technical standards, and fulfill the requirements as set

out in the relevant construction work/service contracts.

Project companies review construction plans, quality assurance
measures and business qualifications submitted by contractors and
suppliers, conduct site inspections and make sample-checks on the
quality of construction. The Group's project management division
provides technical support to project companies and review such

quality assurance measures.

Customer Feedback

To improve the quality of the Company's products, services and
management, it is important to ensure that customers’ complaints
are handled in a timely, accurate and reasonable manner. In order to
continuously enhance its products and services, the Company has set
up the Operational Guidelines on Engineering Maintenance Services
(LR #EBRM1EXES]) and Operational Guidelines on Merchant
Service and Supervision (7 AR 75 EEES BEZE #E5), and established
the Information File of Merchant's Complaints and Feedbacks (72
RFRBELSER).

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R

B6

EmER
B EEEE

B6.2

RERDAFENNENTE
BRBTA(RETIRET
mERRR—RE) - (BE
TRETIREFERE)S
HBRERES  REAHE
(TIRESEBEXESIN
MIRURIERIES) - A
EREENIRNAGERA
BMRE - RRE - WiEE
T2/ RBAREKX -

BERAERZABARRN
mIAR  EEEHREE
whyEEMESHNEER
BE  HRASEIEEET
Kmams - SETRER
ROEIER QAR
RRHEERERBETR
%o

EFPRE

BREBLXER RENE
BARY - BEMEENR
RRBER  BEEPHK
aRRE R - R SRR
R EIRESELRINE
A ARES ) B /) - AR HIE
(TREERBERESDN
MEPhR#HEEEFRE
51)» YRR PR RE

ERER)-



B6.3

B6.4

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Project companies’ sales department and property management
center are the channels through which customers’ complaints can
be made. The Group's business management center is responsible
for dealing with more serious problems from customer’s feedbacks,
and conducting regular review and analysis of the Information File of
Merchant's Complaints and Feedbacks (1 P FF R EE(E BIER),
in order to give project companies’ property management centers

instructions on how to improve their service quality.

Protection of Intellectual Property Right

The Group has formulated the Trademark Management System (7
TEIRHE) in accordance with the Trademark Law of the PRC (F
ZEARAFEIFIRE) to avoid any form of intellectual property
being misappropriated or infringed by wrongdoers or organizations.
The Group encourages all staff and customers to participate in
Hydoo's brand protection. All staff and customers are encouraged
to collect evidence to assist the Group's legal division and other
relevant departments in the handling of intellectual property rights

infringement.

Advertisement

The Group strictly complies with the PRC Advertising Law (FFZE A
REMBESZX).
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B6.5  Prvacy

In accordance with the Labor Law of the PRC (FH 2 A R LB
L 8)7%), the Group's template labor contracts stipulate that its staff
are obliged to keep confidential the Group's business secrets, which,
in accordance with the Law of the PRC against Unfair Competition
(FEARAMBE R EEFHFIE), refer to matters that are
not known by the general public, can bring economic benefits to
the Group, are of practicality, and include technical secrets and
operational information protected by the Group's confidentiality

measures. These secrets include but are not limited to the following;

. Technical information: Technical information generally includes
technical solutions, engineering solutions, circuit designs,
manufacturing methods, prescriptions, crafting processes,
technical indicators, computer software, databases, test results,
drawings, samples, prototypes, models, molds, operating
manuals, technical documentation, business correspondence

involving trade secrets and so forth;

J Operational information: Operational information generally
includes customer lists, marketing plans, procurement
information, pricing policies, non-public financial information,
trading contracts, purchase pipelines, production and marketing

strategies, bidding and tender content and so forth; and
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. Matters to be kept confidential in accordance with the
provisions of laws (such as the confidential information of the
other contracting parties) and the terms of relevant agreements

(such as technology agreements).

Anti-corruption

The Group does not tolerate any form of improper behaviors which will
affect our business activities. The Group dedicates in upholding the principle
of honesty, responsibility and fairness, and regards it as the core value to
maintain the Group's normal operations. Employees must comply with
the Group's Employee Handbook, which lists out the sanction for anyone
who violates the integrity code. Employees must sign the Integrity work
Commitment when they first entered the Company and they will be trained
in relation to integrity from time to time. Furthermore, in order to control
the risk associated with integrity work, the Group has established the
Operational Guidelines on Supervision of illegal behavior and Operational
Guidelines on Supervision and Management. The two guidelines stipulate
that all departments should always monitor whether any employee is
having any form of illegal behaviors. The process of investigation must be
demonstrated in terms of objective and independent, and sanctions will be
implemented once the employee is committed to the violation of guidelines.
The corresponding sanctions include warnings, demerit on employment
records and demotions. In some severe cases, the Company will terminate
the labor contract and transfer the case to the judicial authorities. The
Group believes that these kind of regulation can help in strengthening the
management and supervision to the Company and its subsidiaries, promoting
the construction of integrity, and improving the efficiency of administrative

management.
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In respect of internal auditing, the Group prohibits any forms of unfair
behavior that would interfere the audit work. To maintain the independence
and objectivity of auditing, the integrity and validity of internal control
and risk management, the accuracy and comprehensiveness of financial
information, efficiency and effectiveness of business activities, the Group
has formulated the Operational Guidelines on the Management of Internal
Auditing Work and Operational Guidelines on the Management of Internal
Auditor. These two guidelines can help in strengthening the internal
management and supervision of the Group and protecting the Group's legal
rights and interests, as well as improving its internal economic supervision
and inspection mechanism, and maintaining the validity of cooperation
between the risk control center and the audited entity. The guidelines can
also help to improve the efficiency on auditing, to ensure the safety of the
Group's assets and the legitimacy, authenticity and effectiveness of economic
activities, to ensure the healthy and orderly development of business
activities, to regulate internal audit work, and to clarify the responsibilities

and permissions of internal audit institutions and staffs.
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Community Investment

The Group is dedicated to building a harmonious, safe and prosperous
relationship between enterprise and community. The Group sees
contribution to the society as a responsibility, as its value and as a display of
positivity. The Group has formulated the Donation Management System,
standardizing the act of donating and integrating it into the Group's daily
management. During the reporting period, the Group donated a total
amount of RMB6.5 million to the society. The Group actively fufill our
responsibilities as a corporate citizen in the real community. Part of the

contributions made by the Group thereto in respect of philanthropy is as

B8
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T REERBETEA—REEA
ERREMENEME  Hb - &F
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Staffs of the Group formed a charity run group and

participated in the Near Year public welfare activity -

charity walk event “ZZH1TE". As a caring enterprise,

the Group donated RMBI20 thousands to support the

poverty alleviation event in Guangxi Hechi, and was

granted by the Shenzhen Project Care Foundation a

plaque of “Love Star”.

follows:

Month Activity Details
A EB 5
January Charity walk event " 17&"
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Month
AH

February

February

Activity

EE

Donation of work clothes to sanitation

workers in Wuzhou

BRIERTEMREEEIA

Initiate the Antarctic Environmental
Protection with hundred private

enterprises in the PRC

BaTBaRRELFFEFBIRFK]

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R

52
B

Details

B

“Thanks to City Beautician” sanitation cloth-donation

event was successfully held in Wuzhou Hydoo City.

The Group hopes to contribute to the development of

Wuzhou's environmental sanitation business through

this event. Mr. Xu Wenwei, deputy mayor of Wuzhou,

attended the event with other government leaders, and

awarded Wuzhou Hydoo City the plaque of “Enterprise

of Love Donation”.

(R X A REREBREDEBMRERA
NER  SEFEEBREDYNEMREEENE
R BNMEIMREXESRRAREHE T HAEE -
WRFEMBEHEORRERIEE

“Antarctic Environmental Protection Initiative by China
Entrepreneur” was jointly initiated by the Group and
more than 100 enterprises in China. Representatives
were sent to the South Pole and read out the proposal
which appealed, to all individuals, to pay attention to the
construction of ecological civilization and to protect our
home — the Earth.
[PECRRERRREZIZIEDHREEREAR
I0RKPEARELRAFERE  WIRARBRFEE
BESE  WESANEMILRBNHER  HATHE
WIRERIF K E
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AH

+A

October

W

December

MHIL S

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Activity

EE

Visit sanitation workers

HEREIA

Charitable visit during Mid-autumn festival

and National Day

RIRET R EERHRAEED

Charity donation of RMBI million to
support poverty alleviation through

education in Ruijin city, China

HEBRRARB 0BT HHEREM
HEKE

RE #HEREARARS

Details

B

Staffs in Heze Hydoo City coordinated a charity event
themed "BHEA—HFRFLAKERZEBER". They
sent watermelon to sanitation workers along the city for
the workers to cool off. In addition, they reminded the
workers to pay attention to the summer heat and make
reasonable arrangements for work and rest. At the same
time, they thanked to the sanitation workers for working
hard.

STERERABABRRT —AIBE-RREL &
REBXBRIREENAHEY - TIEABHBTH
BRETIAZ LAIVAZER®R - B9 - TEABTEE
RETHEABZIEMERE AR HHERNKER
- R RARE AR -

The project company in Yulin visited the elderly in
Liantang community in celebration of the Mid-autumn
festival and National Day, and brought the gifts to them
at the Liantang community office. The project company in
Yulin has been persisting in elderly visits for 7 consecutive
years.

IMBEARIEEHRHARE TPREEREZAR
g IHREARREFIERHRBATRGEA - £
MEBRFCEE 7 F IR R REELEEA -

The opening ceremony of Hydoo Poverty Assistance Fund
was held in Ruijin city to support the poverty alleviation
through education. The Group donated RMBI million to

a total of 620 students from poor families in Ruijin City.

REREDHEESP N RS ERABREAERET
BT REEREEEHREE 0ETARE - BBl
SMBRRESELC0A -
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Aspects
=g

Aspect Al:
BEAI:

Emission

7358

Aspect A2:
EEAL:

Use of Resources

BIREER

Aspect A3:
EMmA3:
The Environment and

Natural Resources

BRERRAER

Aspect Bl:
EHEBI :
Employment

EfR

Summary
AE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste:

BRBRLBERBHN - AAKRLHIS  BF

LEEERVNELSH

a)  The policies; and

a) HBE K

b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

b) BETHETAREATENRBERIER
MER

General Disclosure
—RBE
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including

energy, water and other raw materials.

ARERER(RERER  KREMEME)QBE

General disclosure
—REE
Policies on minimizing the issuer's significant impact on

the environment and natural resources.

RMEBTAHRERAREREXBEAT EOHEK

General Disclosure

—RBE

Following information on:

BRAATEENEH :

a)  The policies; and

a) B R

b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer.

b) ETHETABEAYENHBEENER

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R
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Details

#E

For more detalils, please refer to Page 66
ABARZ#HE  F2HF R

For more details, please refer to Page 76
BRESHIE  F2HET6R

For more details, please refer to Page 81
EHESHIE  #F2H%E8 A

For more details, please refer to Page 82
BHESHIE  F2H%E0A



Aspects
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Aspect B2:

B2 :

Health and Safety
BEEZe

Aspect B3:
[H B3 :
Development and

Training

R R

Aspect B4:
BB :

Labor Standards
ST

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Summary

AR

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

BRNTRENEH :

a)  The policies; and

a) HBE K

b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

b) ETHETAREATENHEERER

General Disclosure
—REE

Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills

for discharging duties at work. Description of training

activities.

BRRTEBBITIEREMNMBRRENEE -

U

e e

General Disclosure
—RIE
Relating to preventing child and forced labor:

AR LB T8I T :

2)
2
b)

b)

The policies; and

HE R

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHRTABEAYENRBAR AR
AR

RE #HEREARARS

Details

#E

For more details, please refer to Page 89
BHEZFHE F2H%9A

For more details, please refer to Page 90
BREZHE  F2HE0R

For more detalils, please refer to Page 92
BREZFHE  F2HENA
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Aspects
=g

Aspect B5:

MBS :

Supply Chain
Management

g E 2

Aspect Bé:
ETEB6 :
Product Responsibility

Aspect B7:
EHBT

Anti-corruption

REB

Summary
AE

General Disclosure

—RBE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

ERHEENRE R RBIEE

General Disclosure

—RBE

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress:
BRMRHERMRBNREELZS
RALBEE KM ER :

a)  The policies; and

a) HBE K

b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

R

that have a significant impact on the issuer.
b) BITUBTABEAFENRBERZRER
AR -

General Disclosure
—RHE

Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering;

BRAFLLERE - BR - BEFRTREN
a)  The policies; and

) HE R

b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

b) ETHETAREATENHBEIRIER
AR

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R

Details

#E

For more detalils, please refer to Page 93
ABRRZ#E  F2HFEBE

For more detalils, please refer to Page 94
BHEZFHE F2H%MA

For more detalils, please refer to Page 97
BRESHIE  F2HEITA



Aspects
=g

Aspect B8:
[H B8 :

Community Investment

HERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Summary
A

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities interests.
BRANHR2ERTRETACEREHERFEMN
EREEKZHEEELRNEMIE

RE #HEREARARS

Details

#E

For more details, please refer to Page 99
BHEZFHE F2H%9A
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The Board hereby present this corporate governance report in the annual report of the

Company for FY2018.

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving high standard of
corporate governance to enhance the corporate performance accountability and is
committed to doing so. The Board is also committed to the principles of the CG Code.
Save and except for the deviation disclosed in this annual report, the Directors are of
the opinion that the Company has complied with the provisions set out in the CG Code
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practice to ensure compliance with the CG

Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors. Brief biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 126 to 136 of this annual report. The overall
management and supervision of the Company's operation and the function of formulating

overall business strategies are vested in the Board.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board has complied with the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director having appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise, and the requirement that independent non-executive

Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has received annual confirmation from each independent non-executive
Director pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
each of the independent non-executive Directors is independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules. All the Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and the strategic review comittee of the

Company (the “Strategic Review Comittee”).

The CG Code requires Directors to disclose to the Company, the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organisations and other significant commitments as
well as their identity and the time involved. The Directors have agreed to disclose their

commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

ROLE AND FUNCTION AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and conduct
of the business of the Company. It delegates day-to-day management of the Company to
executive Directors and the senior management of the Company within the control and
the authority framework set by the Board. The delegated functions and responsibilities are

periodically reviewed by the Board.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including approving
and monitoring all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, intemal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to consult the Company's

senior management independently.

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategic Review Comittee various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference. Further details of these

committees are set out on pages |12 to |17 of this annual report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and its Shareholders at

all times.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors in

respect of legal actions against them.

Relationship between Directors

Save that Mr. Wang Jianli (the Chairman and executive Director) is the uncle of both Mr.
Huang Dehong (an executive Director) and Mr. Wang Dewen (an executive Director and
the chief executive officer) and Mr. Huang Dehong (an executive Director) and Mr. Wang
Dewen (an executive Director and the chief executive officer) are cousins, there are no

financial, business, family or other material relationships among members of the Board.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The changes of the information of the Directors and senior management since the date of
2017 annual report of the Company and up to the date of this annual report are set out

below pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Name of Director/Senior Management Changes
B/ BRERENSY &

ARRERHFBEEEERE  RAHEHHES
M ERRRERFRGRAE -

EEZENEE

FRIRAEE(ERFATER)RAERELLE
BITER)NERXEEBTEERERY
TENRRREREEEBMITES)NIRE
XAEBTESRERATE) RELSS -
E=eNBZAMENE X1 KikIEM
EPN A

ESREAEEEENEE
BARAABN/EFRABHEERFRAH
MESREAEREENEYRITRAUE
I3.51B(1) &SN -

Mr. Wang Lianzhou

(Independent non-executive Director)

Mr. Wang Lianzhou retired as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the

remuneration committee, a member of the nomination committee and a member of the Strategic

Review Committee of the Company on 20 March 2019

TENEECBUFATES)
BEeMBRRBEEZRENE

Mr. Yue Zheng

(Independent non-executive Director)

FEMEER209FIAWAREARRRABUFATES  ARAFMEESTR  BEZ

Mr. Yue Zheng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company, the

chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination committee and a member of

the Strategy Review Committal of the Company on 20 March 2019

FERELCBLIFMTES)
ZEENENRRESZEENE

Mr. Chen Zhongmin (Senior management)

consuttant of the Group in March 2019
RERELE(RRERE)

Mr. Zhao Yande (Senior management)

EELER019F3A20BEZERARARABLIFRITES  ARRFMZEE TR A

Mr. Chen Zhongmin was re-designated from the vice president of the Group to the corporate

RERFER2019F 3 AEAKERREBERSAREAREMA

Mr. Zhao Yande has ceased to be the general manager of Ganzhou project since May 2018, and he

has been responsible for the strategic planning of the Group since May 2018 and also been appointed

as the chairmen of Nanchang project since March 2019

HEBELEL(SRERE)
WI9F3ARETRHEBERNEER

HEBLELB0I8FS AR THEABMERALE ARABAEENBBAS TR
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Other than those disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed

pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and information to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of the Company's operations and business as well as
his responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. According to the
records of the Company, all Directors have attended training sessions conducted by the
Company's legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws on duties and obligations of directors of
companies listed on the Stock Exchange including connected transactions and corporate
governance. The Company also provides periodic legal updates and developments on
the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, news updates from the Stock
Exchange and the Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements to all of the Directors, as well as regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct of the Company
for Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the Year. Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of
unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or its shares are prohibited

from dealing in the shares of the Company during the black-out period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had complied with the code provisions as

set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company, which may be terminated in accordance with the respective terms of the
service contracts or letters of appointment. For details, please refer to page 41 of this

annual report.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Articles 16.2 and 16.3 of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), any Director appointed by the Board or by an ordinary resolution either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board, shall hold office only until the following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three

years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
set out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman

and chief executive officer.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision A.l.l of the CG
Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend, and include matters in the agenda for

a regular meeting pursuant to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with the meeting agenda and relevant information related to
the agenda in advance before the meeting. They have access to the senior management
and the company secretary of the Company at all time and may, upon reasonable request,

seek independent professional advice at the Company's expense.

Minutes of the meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company with copies
circulated to all Directors for information and records. Minutes of the board meetings and
committee meetings record sufficient details of the matters considered by the Board and
the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting was held.

Minutes of board meetings are open for inspection for the Directors.
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Nine Board meetings and one general meeting were held during the Year. Individual

attendance of the Directors is as follows:

%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ CBIITIREZEEER AR
CHESENERMT

No. of meetings attended/No.

of meetings held

HEERRE RSN

EUN

Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
= Exeed RRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wang Jianli (Chairman and executive Director) TREFITE(EEEHTEE) 99 1/l
Mr. Wang Dewen (Executive Director and IENEE(HTEEREEHTE) 919 /1
Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Dehong ERREE 6/9 [/1
Non-executive Director EHTES
Mr. Yuan Bing RERE 5/9 [/1
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Zhao Lihua FiAVE-i e 619 ol
Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson WEREE 5/9 I/1
Mr. Yue Zheng (appointed on 20 March 2019) EW%?EE(%ZOI‘) F3IR0BEEMT) ] -
Mr. Wang Lianzhou (retired on 20 March 2019) EMNEE(R2019F3 A20BRAE) 119 o/l
BOARD COMMITTEES EXZEE
The Board has established four committees, namely the Audit Committee, the ExetvlEZES  AIBZZES &
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategic Review WL E=e }E%éf'@&% %Eé%@ g
Committee, to handle particular responsibilities of the Board and certain affairs of the BEAEEE R TRENEBANRANE TS
Company. All board committees of the Company are established with defined written e RARIMEESZECHHHEREN
terms of reference which have been uploaded to the website of the Stock Exchange and EHBEGE HERESED LSBT
that of the Company, and are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. RARBRY  YERRHEEHERABITH
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 27 September 2013 in compliance
with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
I4 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Audit
Committee by the Board. The revised terms of reference have been adopted by the
Board on 27 December 2018 to comply with the new CG Code which became effective
on | January 2019. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information of the Company, to oversee the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to make
recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor

and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors and one
non-executive Director. The three members are Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson, the chairman
of the Audit Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Zhao Lihua, an
independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Yuan Bing, a non-executive Director. During
the Year, three Audit Committee meetings were held to, among other matters, (1) review
and recommend the half-yearly and annual results to the Board for approval; (2) review
the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management systems; (3) review
the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices; (4) review and consider the
whistleblowing policy and system; (5) review the external auditor’s independence and the
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; and (6) review the terms of reference of

the Audit Committee.

The attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings was as follows: —

AN A
EREBRSE

ERZEE®
ARNRBRETHAB2ME K326 2013

%
BHE EmRAINET A EERTAR
PEERREREFERTERZECNRE
B - EEERN20I84F 12 827 BIRHES
FTREEE - URFAR2019F 1 AIBERS
MEEEARATH - BRZESMNIEREARE
BALEMBEER  EEARENMBHR
BE EREERADELER  EEERA
B REF ENERARERIIPHEEEL
RERBTESSRRMEMITERBRE -

ERZBemMEBUFATES R -2
TESEK - —BRE AR MBEELL(ER
RESIRARBUNKUTES) BUERLLE
(BUFRTER)RREALCGEHHTES)
RAFEER BIITIRERZEEEH U
(EFER(NEGFFERFERE T2
EEeMA  QBRARENPBEE A
EERRAREENE : 3)BRAKEOME L
S BRLER () BERREBRRIR K
B O)BRIINERBAME L BN ERRER
DEBAN: R(OBERERZEENBER

o

JEE)

EELFEERZESRRNBRMT :

Number of
Directors Attendance
= HERE
Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson (Committee Chairman) WEREE(ZEE52ERE) 3/3
Mr. Yuan Bing RERSE 3/3
Mr. Zhao Lihua HUERE 33
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27 September 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities
delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the policy and structure of
the remuneration for Directors and senior management and to review and approve the

compensation payable to Directors and members of senior management.

Mr. Wang Lianzhou retired as an independent non-executive Director and the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee on 20 March 2019. Mr. Yue Zheng was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company on 20 March 2019 to fill up the vacancy of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one executive Director. The three members are Mr. Yue Zheng, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and an independent non-executive Director,
Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson, an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang Jianli,
an executive Director and Chairman of the Group. During the Year, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held to, among other matters, (1) determine the policy for
the remuneration of Directors and senior management; (2) assess the performance of
executive Directors; (3) approve the terms of executive Directors' service contracts; and
(4) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors, non-executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and

members of senior management.
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The attendance of the Directors at the Remuneration Committee meetings was as

AN A
EREBRSE

EXhFEFMZEg@RNBRNT -

follows: —
Number of
Directors Attendance
= HERE
Mr. Yue Zheng (Committee Chairman) FEEE(ZERTE) =
(appointed on 20 March 2019) (R2019F3 20 BEZHE)
Mr. Wang Lianzhou (Committee Chairman) TENEE(ZEELE) 012
(retired on 20 March 2019) (R 2019F 3 A20 ARM)
Mr. Wang Jianli TRMEE 212
Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson WEELAE 22

The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with their individual performance. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (all options under which were expired on 31 December 2018), other share
option scheme (if any) and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Director
includes mainly the Director’s fee, which is a matter for the Board to decide by reference
to the duties and responsibilities of the non-executive Director. Remuneration of the
independent non-executive Directors includes the Director's fee which is determined
by the Board based on the duties and responsibilities of independent non-executive
Directors and their participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (all options under

which were expired on 31 December 2018) or other share option scheme (if any).

AEEHHTESHEMBRNOTZEBER Y
TESNRMEAEARRES  UBERE
BRTES - WA BREELT S BAK
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TEENTHIZEEESHNE HEFES
ZERTESNBBERBEMNET - BUIEH
TESNTHEEESHEE HESELEE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 September 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix [4 to the Listing Rules and the
roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of Directors. In the nomination procedures, the Nomination Committee
makes reference to criteria including candidates’ reputation, integrity, accomplishment,

experience and professional and educational background.

Mr. Wang Lianzhou retired as an independent non-executive Director and member of
the Nomination Committee on 20 March 2019. Mr. Yue Zheng was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company on 20 March 2019 to fill up the vacancy of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The three members are Mr. Zhao Lihua, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Yue Zheng,
an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director and
Chairman of the Group. During the Year, two Nomination Committee meetings were
held to, among other matters, (I) review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to review the diversity policy of the Board; (2) assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; (3) review, consider and approve the nomination

policy, and (4) make recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors.

The attendance of the directors at the Nomination Committee meetings was as follows: —

REZEE
ARBIR2013F9IR27BRIIREEZES &
EERESEMS EmARRIMETmAE LR
BERATARCEERRERESFERTREZ
BEMBEERYE REZEENTERER
BEEENEE  AEREN  UREAER
EENEFSELES - NREAET
ZESLENEEREREANESE - H
BE K3 ERREXEEHEER -

Mooy o ¢ 19

FTEMNETER209F3IA20BEERLIESH
TEERIREZEGKE - EREEER2019F
3SA0BBZAARRABINELFNTEER
REEBENKE NREEEBQEBTRH - 17
LEECMMABUFNTEER —RITE
BHEK ZEKEBR: BUELE(REZE
SIFERBUFNTES) FELEE(BUHE
HITEE)RERMEE(BTEZRAREE
B) e RAFERN BT T2REEEEE
# A(EREE)(NERESENLRE  AH
REKREZS LR : Q) FEBLIER
TESNBEUMN : O)F%  ZRERIERER
B ROBRENZCESZNESZCRIES -

ESHRRAZESERANBERMT -

Number of
Directors Attendance
= HERE
Mr. Zhao Lihua (Committee Chairman) BYERE(FEEEE) 212
Mr. Wang Jianli TRMEE 22
Mr. Yue Zheng (appointed on 20 March 2019) EIFEE(R2019F320BEZRE) ~
Mr. Wang Lianzhou (retired on 20 March 2019) FEMNEE(R2019F3 A20BRAE) 02
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STRATEGIC REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Company established the strategic review committee in September 2013, as
an additional corporate governance measure to evaluate any potential investment
opportunities in Harbin presented to the Group. The Committee consists of one non-

executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

The Strategic Review Committee is aware of the restrictions under the non-competition
undertaking (“Harbin NCU") entered into by Mr. Wong Choi Hing and Mr. Wang
Dewen in favour of Harbin China South City Company Limited in 2012. The duties of the
Strategic Review Committee include reviewing and assessing any investment opportunities
in Harbin that are presented to the Company, at least once every six months, and
identifying the steps to be taken in respect of such opportunities. Neither Mr. Wong Choi
Hing nor Mr. Wang Dewen will participate in any review, assessment or the decision-

making process by the Strategic Review Committee.

The Strategic Review Committee met on 28 March 2018 and 30 August 2018, and

concluded that there was no potential investment opportunities in Harbin for the Group.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 24 March 2014 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), talents,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision
of all Board appointments should be based on meritocracy and the likely contributions
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee has
reviewed such board diversity policy in the Year. During the Year, the Company's existing
composition of independent non-executive directors as well as its senior management

team are highly diverse in age, educational background and professional experience.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board ratified and adopted a dividend policy (the "“Dividend Policy”) which sets
out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the Shareholders of
the Company on 27 December 2018. In accordance with the Articles of the Company
and subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations, when considering the
declaration and payment of dividends, the Board will take into account, among other
things, the financial results, cash flow situation, business conditions and strategies,
future operations and eamings, capital requirements and expenditure plans, interests of
Shareholders, restrictions on payment of dividends, and other factors that the Board may
consider relevant. The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip
or by other means that the Board considers appropriate. Any unclaimed dividend shall be
forfeited and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the Articles. The Board will

review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to time.
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CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS EEZRERZTEL

EFERKEREALTESE  RRREE
R/ SEBEEGEEE TR :

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following criteria should be

considered:

Character and integrity;

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the

Company's business and corporate strategy;

miREHE

B BREXEAR BT MERE
B URERRREBRREAENE
FEXEBETIERRAIELANZ TR

% .
Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board; REREFENE L TE MR TR
AEERE:

Requirement for the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference to the independence

guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of

qualifications, skills, experience, independence, gender and cultural diversity;

RELTRANESERT  UWLk2E
EHRARIRREAREREREL
M¥Esl

REANBXZER %17 &% BY
B HREEET T AT RESS

HROERBEERR
Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of RERERR D AR MR BT
the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company; FRANAIESEHEREIEECH

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company's business and
succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for nomination of

directors and succession planning.
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NOMINATION PROCEDURE OF DIRECTORS

Appointment of New Directors

May select candidates for directorship from various channels, including but not
limited to internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other member of the

management and external recruitment agents;

Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for

directorship;

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should rank them by order of preference based on the needs of

the Company and reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

Re-election of Directors

Should review the overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring

Director and the level of participation and performance on the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties including:

@

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED

to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in relation to its

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors;

to develop, review and monitor the implementation of the shareholders’
communication policy to ensure its effectiveness, and to make recommendation
to the Board where appropriate to enhance shareholders' relationship with the

Company; and

to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
CG Code).
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements for
FY2018 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the Group's results and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities

to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company's
consolidated financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with updates on Company's performance, positions

and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going

concemn.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report on pages 137 to 149 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. A defined management structure with specified limits of
authority and responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use
or disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for intemal use or for publications and the compliance of applicable

laws, rules and regulations.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular financial and
operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant management. The
works carried out by the intemal audit department ensure risk management and internal

control measures are in place and function properly as intended.

The results of the internal audit and reviews are reported to the executive Directors and
the Audit Committee, who carried out annual review on the internal control and risk
management systems for the Year, and they were satisfied with the effectiveness and the

adequacy of such systems of the Group during the Year.
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An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential inside information being
captured and confidentiality of such information being maintained until consistent and
timely disclosure is made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the

handling and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

®  Designated reporting channels from different operations informing any potential

inside information to designated departments;

o Designated persons and departments determining further disclosure as required;

and

o Designated persons being authorised to act as spokespersons and respond to

external enquiries.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group's independent auditors are KPMG. For FY2018, the remuneration paid and
payable by the Group to the independent auditors in respect of audit and non-audit

services provided by them were as follows:

AEEFAEERENE  BRGEZEEER
BHRYMARE  BEEZREMRAEL -
HERNBERL - ZHERERERERA
BHRBMI HRERUTRE !

c RRERRE BTREEBEUREE
BHEREEAREENEER

o BEALRBMARFERTE-FIBE
B R

o EEALIREEA DENAEH-

BILBANE
ARENBIGAMAEFRE A A -
RNIBHEFE - AEERBUZHEEE
izt EG LI ERRB N REMNBME D
T

RMB’000

ARETR

Audit and review services!" ERREHREO 4,100
Other consulting services H B AR 7 2,100
Total wmEt 6,200

Note:

(1) Including fees for statutory audit of annual financial statements and review of interim financial

report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sze Hon is the company secretary of the Company. During the Year and up to
the date of this annual report, Mr. Chan Sze Hon has undertaken not less than |5 hours

of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders and other
investment community is essential. During the Year, the executive Directors, the chief
financial officer and the head of investor relations of the Group held regular briefings,
attended investor forums and participated in roadshows and conducted meetings with
institutional investors and financial analysts in China, Hong Kong and overseas countries
to keep them abreast of the Group's business and development. Investors can also

communicate with the Company through email at if®hydoo.com.cn.

Shareholders' meetings provide a useful forum for Shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. Directors and the chief financial officer of the Group will attend Shareholders’
meetings to answer the questions raised by Shareholders. Published documents together
with the latest corporate information and news are available on the Company's website at

www.hydoo.com.cn.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting

Besides the request of the Board, the extraordinary general meeting shall also be

convened through the following measures:

(@)  on the written requisition of any two or more Shareholders who hold not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such principal office, the registered office,

specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by such Shareholders; or

(b)  on the written requisition of any one Shareholder of the Company which is a
recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) who holds not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the Shareholder.
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Putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general meeting in
accordance with the applicable laws and the Articles. If a Shareholder, who is entitled to
attend and vote at the relevant general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being
the nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she should give to
the secretary of the Company notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person stating his or her willingness to
be so elected, commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
relevant general meeting and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such

general meeting.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on

the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to the Board
could send their enquiries to the headquarters of the Company in Shenzhen at Level 42,
Block E, China Resources Land Building, No.I8 First Dachong Road, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, the PRC (email address: ir@hydoo.com.cn).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During FY2018, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Jianli (%), aged 59, has been the Chairman of the Group and executive

Director since August 25, 2014, and is primarily responsible for formulating the overall
development and strategic plans of our Group. Mr. Wang has over 23 years' experience
in the development and operation of large scale trade centers. As disclosed in the
Company's prospectus dated 18 October 2013 (the “Prospectus”), since 1995, Mr.
Wang Jianli, together with his siblings and their families (the “Wang Family Group”),
has engaged in the development and operation of trade center projects. As one of the
key family members of the Wang Family Group, Mr. Wang was directly involved in the
development and operation of trade center projects since 1995. Except for the foregoing,
Mr. Wang did not have any management role within the Group prior to the appointment
of the positions. Mr. Wang has been a member of the | 1th Jiangxi Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference (FBIARBUA B @ T4 %
T—EZE®) (the “Jiangxi CCPPCC") and a member of the | Ith Jiangxi Federation
of Industry & Commerce (IFIE % T —fELH XM S E) (Jiangxi FIC") since January
2013, an executive member of the 3rd Ji'an Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIARBUAHEERZELXME=EEZEE) (‘ian
CCPPCC") since September 201 | and the chairman of the Federation of Industry &
Commerce of Jian City (F & L& %EHBAE) since April 2008. Mr. Wang was also a
member of each of the 9th and the |0th Jiangxi CCPPCC and a member of each of the
9th and the 10th Jiangxi FIC from December 2002 to January 2013, and a member of the
2nd Ji'an CCPPCC from December 2006 to September 201 1. Mr. Wang has received
numerous awards, including the outstanding member of the Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Jian City for the year 2013 (2013 FEH

MEFMIKIHZES) in December 2013; an honorary citizen of Jian City (F & &R
ZMR) in March 2005; and the outstanding contributor to the building of socialism with
Chinese characteristics in Jiangxi Province (TR EBFTREELTEREEER
FHZE) in December 2004. Mr. Wang is the uncle of Mr. Wang Dewen, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company, and Mr. Huang Dehong, an
executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of
the Company.
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Mr. Wang Dewen (EfX), aged 40, has been an executive Director since 2015, and
has been the chief executive officer of our Group since 2014. Mr. Wang Dewen is
primarily responsible for the overall business operations and management of our Group.
Mr. Wang Dewen has over |0 years of experience in the development and operation
of large scale trade centers. From October 2009 to December 2012, Mr. Wang Dewen
served as the president of China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FAZZ =B R
A7), a subsidiary of China South City Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1668). In this role, he was primarily responsible
for project management and operation. From January 2008 to October 2009, he served
as the chairman and general manager of Jingdezhen Howard Commercial and Trade
Center Development Company Limited (RIEHESEE 5 E5HE AR 2 E]) and was
primarily responsible for project management and operation. He also served as the general
manager of Shenzhen Howard Investment Co., Ltd. (YT REIREBR A7) from
July 2006 to October 2009 and was primarily responsible for the company's management
and operation. Prior to that, he served as the project manager of the investment banking
department of China Great Wall Securities Company Limited (R3:EHERETA

a]) from August 2004 to May 2005 and the analyst of research department of Guosen
Securities Co., Ltd. (BI{E78 %121 B MR 2 7)) from September 2003 to August 2004. Mr.
Wang Dewen is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director and Chairman of

the Group, and a cousin of Mr. Huang Dehong, an executive Director of the Company,

and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of the Group.

Mr. Huang Dehong (B %), aged 40, has been an executive Director since 2013, and
is primarily responsible for the day to day management of the business of our Group.
Mr. Huang has |2 years of experience in the trade center development and operations
industry. He has been the director of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center
Development Company Limited since July 2009, the general manager of Ningxiang
Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company Limited since December 2010
and the director and general manager of Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade
Center Development Company Limited since April 2012. He was also the deputy
general manager of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company
Limited from July 2009 to December 2010. From January 2006 to June 2009, he served
as the executive deputy general manager of Shuozhou Howard Commercial and Trade
Center Development Company Limited (M REE 5 E5HEER R A), and
was responsible for assisting the general manager with the company’s operations and
management. Mr. Huang graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with a diploma in law
in June 1998. Mr. Huang is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director and
Chairman of the Group, and a cousin of Mr. Wang Dewen, an executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of

the Group.

EERGREEERBE

EBIKE - 405% 0 B0I5FHRBEENTE
%’QNMi%%EE$E§§FﬁﬁE°E
BXAREFEAREASENBEBEREEK

Bo FENAEREDTEOANEE w¢
DREREELER - B209F 10 AZ2012F
DA IENAERAREEBERAR(R
BRMER T RAERRERER A AR
R 1668) B AR B T2REE
BEEEERTIIE B2008F | AZE2009%F 10
H'ﬁﬁiéﬁg%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’*

?&DTEA2006¢7H12009¢ |0H EERIT
FERABBARGEE YEZARAFN
REEBTIE - AT - K 2004 F 8 A %2005
FSREARBEFERETATRERTH
THE &R - WHR2003F9 AE 200458 AT
BEEFROHERADMALINEG - TEX
FAERAEBMITESREFIRALENE
F ARAPMTESEREAERAERER
BEEIEHALEENES -

ik

BEERELE 40% BRFHHBLERT
B FEZRRAKEEXBANARER - &L
EHEET_FNREMRPLORAEREETE
ME - HBBWOFTAREAERRELRE
SEZHREERARIES  B20I0F 128
EEERREAREIESREERATEL
B RENF4ARETBNREFDEDR
BABERATNESRALIE - B209F7A
EVI0FNA BTCAERREXAVES
BSRERRATRALKIE - B20065F | AZE
mwiéﬂ'ﬁ“$E#M%@“%F%ﬁ¥
BRARFHEIBKE BEBYELE
ARE @&ﬁ@oa%i%&%iéﬂ%%%
RILKE  BEERZER - BEAERARE
EMTESZRERIRAEENET  ADH
BTESHERWMIBIEXAENERNA
CEEREEE I ERALENES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &3k

127



128

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuan Bing (&R£E), aged 50, has been a non-executive Director since 2011, and is
primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on the business and
operations of our Group. Mr. Yuan has more than 9 years of private equity investment
experience, prior to which Mr. Yuan has gained more than 14 years of experience in the
investment banking industry and has extensive knowledge in corporate financing, listings
and mergers and acquisitions transactions. Mr. Yuan joined Hony Capital in April 2009 and
has served as managing director of the investment department of its Hong Kong office
since January 2010. Mr. Yuan has been a non-executive director of Haichang Holdings Ltd.
(BEZERAR AT since August 2012, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2255). Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Yuan served as
managing director of the direct investment department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
from October 2006 to 2009. Before that, Mr. Yuan served as managing director of the
PRC enterprises corporate financing department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from
April 2004 to June 2006. Mr. Yuan also served as the vice president of Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited from September 2001 to March 2004. Mr. Yuan received a
bachelor of arts degree in English from Nanjing University in July 1990. He also obtained
a master's degree in international relations in June 1993 and a juris doctorate’s degree in

June 1998 from Yale University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Lihua (32 Z), aged 76, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 2014. He graduated from Hunan University (7 AZ2) in 1965 majoring in physics.
Mr. Zhao was a professor and a tutor of doctorate candidates of Hunan University. He
was a visiting scholar of the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States from
August 1979 to August 1981. He was a visiting professor of the University of Hanover in
Germany in 1989 and the vice president of Hunan University from March 1992 to March
2000. He served as the chairman of the board of Hebei Huda Technology & Education
Development Co., Ltd. (AL ARHEHE BB RM AR A F]) from March 2000 to
October 2002 and the chief supervisor of Sinosafe General Insurance Co,, Ltd. (E% 8t
ERBRIR D BER AT from July 2003 to June 201 1. Mr. Zhao has been an independent
non-executive director of China Glass Holdings Limited (FF BIIFIEIEAR B IR A 7))
since June 2011, whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3300). He was formerly an independent non-executive director of
China Fiberglass Co., Ltd. (F BIR AR {5 F R 22 ) from July 2003 to April 201 |, whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600176).

Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson (#R& &), aged 50, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 2013. He has extensive experience in professional accountancy in Hong
Kong. Currently, he is the chairman of Nelson CPA Limited. He has been appointed as a
non-official non-executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority Board of Hong Kong
SAR since May 2013. He has been the independent non-executive director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1313), since August 2008. He has also been appointed as a member of the Financial
Reporting Review Panel since July 2013 and a member of the Air Transport Licensing
Authority since August 2013. Mr. Lam is a practicing fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of several professional bodies in Australia, the USA
and the United Kingdom, including CPA Australia, the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales.
He is also a CFA charter holder and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Lam received a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from the
Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly known as Hong Kong Baptist College) in January
1992, a Master of Business Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 1998 and a Master of Science in Finance from the Chinese

University of Hong Kong in November 2001.
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EERGREEERBE

Mr. Yue Zheng (&%), aged 45, has been serving as a vice president of Chia Tai Land
Company Limited since July 2004. Prior to that, Mr. Yue served as a project manager and
a marketing director of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") China and PwC New York
from July 1997 to July 2004. He graduated from Fudan University (8B AKZ8) in July
1996 and obtained a bachelor degree in economics. He also obtained a master degree in

business administration in May 2002 from Yale University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Wang Dewen (Ef£3X), aged 40, has been an executive Director since 2015, and

has been the chief executive officer of our Group since 2014. For Mr. Wang Dewen'’s
biographical details, please refer to "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management - Executive Directors” in this annual report.

Mr. Wang Dekai (EER), aged 42, has been the chief operating officer of our Group
since 2014, and is primarily responsible for the daily operation and management of the
Group. Mr. Wang has approximately |18 years of experience in the development and
operation of large scale trade and logistics centers. From February 2000 to May 2006,
he served as the chairman and the general manager of Henan Xinyang Commercial and
Trade Center Development Company Limited (7 F{E[5 8 5 EHHEER A A),
and was primarily responsible for the company’'s management and operation. From June
2006 to October 2009, he served as the chairman and the deputy general manager of
Liaoning Chaoyang Howard Commercial and Trade Center Development Company
Limited (RZEHGREE 5 EHFREABRAA]), and was primarily responsible for
project management and operation. From November 2009 to July 2012, he also served
as the chairman and general manager of Jining Howard Lunan Modern Trade Center
Development Company Limited (BEZEREERRRYRHHAZEBRAR]), and was
responsible for project management and operation. From August 2012 to July 2014,
he served as the general manager of Mianyang Western Trade Center Development
Company Limited (#3F5 788035 KR & AR A 7)), and was responsible for
project management and operation. Mr. Wang Dekai is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli,
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Group, a cousin of Mr. Wang Dewen,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company, and Mr. Huang

Dehong, an executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. Jia Xinjiang (B55I), aged 64, has been the vice president of our Group since
September 2014, and is primarily responsible for the overall financial operations of our
Group. He has also been appointed as the president of Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Finance
Holding Company Limited since June 2015, and is primarily responsible for the overall
business operations and management of the finance affairs. Mr. Jia is a senior economist.
He obtained bachelor degrees in science of Marxist Basic Theory from Jiangxi University
(TFIAE) and in finance from the Economics Department of Zhengzhou University (£5
JHRE), and a master's degree in finance from Hunan College of Finance and Economics
ORI ET). Mr. Jia has 36 years of experience in management and operations
of banking business, including 21 years of experience in the Central Bank and 15 vyears
of experience in commercial banks. He has a deep understanding of China'’s financial
markets, and is familiar with China’s monetary credit policy and financial regulations, as
well as the methods of managing commercial bank business, risk-management and internal
control. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jia served as the director of corporate banking
department of Ping An Bank Company Limited (a joint-stock commercial bank whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000001), hereinafter
referred to as “Ping An Bank”) from September 2012 to September 2013, and was
responsible for the corporate banking business of its Chengdu branch, Chongging branch,
Kunming branch, Wuhan branch and Haikou branch. From May 2007 to September
2012, Mr. Jia served as both the director of corporate banking department of Ping An
Bank and the general manager of Ping An Bank's management department in Shenzhen,
and was responsible for the overall operations of business department in Ping An Bank's
business in the southern part of China. From May 2005 to May 2007, Mr. Jia served as the
deputy president of the Shenzhen branch of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (a
joint-stock commercial bank whose shares are listed on both the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0998) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601998)), and was responsible
for corporate banking, credit operations and foreign exchange business. From April 2004
to May 2005, Mr. Jia served as the deputy president of the Guangzhou branch of China
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. (a joint commercial bank whose shares are listed on both the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 6818) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601818),
hereinafter referred to as “CCB"), and was responsible for corporate banking, asset
management and operation management. From September 1998 and April 2004, Mr.
Jia served as the deputy president of the Shenzhen branch of CCB, and was responsible
for credit management, risk review, corporate banking, retail business and integrated
management. From February 1993 to September 1998, Mr. Jia held several positions
in the Jiangxi branch of People’s Bank of China, including the assistant to president and
deputy president, and was responsible for foreign exchange management, financing

planning management and issuance of currency management. From October 977 to
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February 1993, Mr. Jia held several positions in the Shangrao district branch of People’s
Bank of China, including deputy president and president, and was responsible for financing

planning, credit management, integrated management and the overall management.

Mr. Chan Sze Hon (FR2.8), aged 45, has been the chief financial officer of our Group
since 2014 and the company secretary of our Company since July 2017. He is primarily
responsible for the overall financial affairs of our Group and the secretarial matters of the
Company. Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong and a master's degree in corporate finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over 23 years of experience in accounting and financial management
and had worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong for over 8 years. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had held various positions with companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. From October 2012 to June 2014, Mr. Chan was the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1369). From 2009 to 2012, Mr. Chan has been an executive director, company secretary
and chief financial officer of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777).
Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director of each of BLU SPA Holdings
Limited, currently known as Super Robotics Limited (stock code: 8176) and China Mining
Resources Group Limited currently Known as Tongguan Gold Group Limited (stock
code: 340) from 2007 to 2012 and 2007 to 201 |, respectively. From 2007 to 2012,
Mr. Chan also served as an independent non-executive director of ERA Information &
Entertainment Limited, currently known as ERA Mining Machinery Limited, a company
whose shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and delisted in 2012. Mr. Chan was an
executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary of Greater China Holdings
Limited, currently known as Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 431)
from 2005 to 2008, and later re-designated as a non-executive director from 2008 to
2015. Prior to that, Mr. Chan worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1995 to 2004,

where he held various positions such as staff accountant, senior accountant and manager.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang Wenbin (B 3U&), aged 55, has been the vice president of the Group since
2011, and is primarily responsible for sales and marketing management of the Group. Mr.
Huang has 24 years of experience in sales and marketing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Huang was the vice general manager of Hong Kong Howard Group Company Limited
from February 2005 to November 2011, and was principally in charge of the sales and
marketing of trade center projects. Mr. Huang was also the deputy general manager
of Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited from May 2010 to
November 201 |, and was responsible for sales and marketing of the Jining Trade Center.
Concurrently, Mr. Huang served as deputy general manager of China South City Xian
Company Limited (AR ZEMMABRAF]) in charge of marketing from January 2010
to October 2011, and was responsible for sales and marketing management. Mr. Huang
served as the deputy general manager of Jingdezhen Howard Trade Center Development
Company Limited (REHESEE HESMEAR R F]) from January 2001 to June
2005. He also acted as the deputy general manager/general manager of Jiangxi Howard
Group Bioengineering Industrial Co., Ltd. (TAASEEE AW TIREEBR A F]) from
November 1998 to December 2000 and the deputy general manager of Ganzhou Lifa
Metal Products Company Limited (38 7% € B & mB R 2 7)) from March 1994 to
November 1998.
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Mr. Zhao Yande (BZ ), aged 42, has been a vice president of the Group since 201 |
and is primarily responsible for the strategic planning of the Group since May 2018, and
he is also appointed as the chairmen of Nanchang project since March 2019. He was a
general manager of the Ganzhou project of our Group from December 2012 to May
2018. From November 2011 to November 2012, Mr. Zhao served as the vice president
of construction management of the Company and was primarily responsible for the overall
construction management of the Group. Mr. Zhao has more than 18 years of experience
in construction management. Prior to joining the Group, he was also the deputy general
manager of Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited from February
2010 to November 2011 and was responsible for construction management of the
Jining Trade Center. Concurrently, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy general manager of
construction in China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FAZ2Z£RI37A R A &) from
October 2009 to October 2011, and was responsible for managing the construction of
the entire project. From November 2008 to October 2009, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy
general manager of construction in Jingdezhen Howard Trade Center Development
Company Limited (RBEREE HESFHE AR A R]), and was responsible for
managing the construction of the entire project. From May 2006 to November 2008, Mr.
Zhao worked for Shenzhen China Overseas Construction Limited (FYIIFF/E2E T2
B AT, and was responsible for managing the construction of the Futian Shangri-La
Hotel, Kerry Plaza and Zhuhai Silver Bay projects. From July 2000 to May 2006, Mr. Zhao
worked for China State Construction International Holdings Ltd., and was responsible
for managing the reconstruction of Kowloon Hospital, the 101 Area project and other
projects. Mr. Zhao received a bachelor's degree in construction management from
Chongging University in July 2000, and a Master of Science degree in project management
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R

HEBELE Q% BOIFRABEELRE
ERB% - BI8FSATEREAERMNE
RS YR2019F3A#THEBEAAE
ER-FBEWNFNAFEWISFSAREAE
AEBEMNBRLARKE2011F11AZE202
FIR BEERARAIREREGH
TEREAEEMEREIER - MELHER
BTN\FmIEREH - MAREER - #Ht
EERNI0F2AZWIIFIIAELEE

EBYRBREERARRAKE  AEEER
BMRPOMEIEE - R BEETER
000FI0AZNNFIOAEIRZERHNE
RARIIEHNEALE AEEBHEABKIE
o B2008%F 1A E2009F 108 #%x 4
CEIREERREIRGRAEARARIRE
HalLKE aEEREBEERIERE H#HEAE
& 200655 A £20084F | | A EB RN R F
BRETIRERAR  AERABTRENKE
5 RERRESRNEREEHEANELE
12 o 200097 AE 20065 A - HAEEE
BRPBEREEREBERAR BEANESR
frEg 10 BB RAMBEAER - HELE
M000F7 ARBEEASBRBERIXSEL
B WR2007FNAEBSEBSEIAER
BEREXREBTE( -
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Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan (AR JT), aged 46, has been the vice president of the Group since
2012, and is primarily responsible for the construction and cost management of the Group.
Mr. Zhou has 9 years of experience in construction management. From December 2010
to December 2012, he served as the general manager of the planning and construction
management department of Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (EJkEEBZERER A
A]), responsible for project development, planning and operation and the construction
management of the group. During the same period, he concurrently served as the general
manager of Taijian Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (FRE22ZE TIZER A A]) under
the group. He also served as the deputy general manager of Liyu Construction Design
Company (BRIEEEEELET7AA]) under the group, responsible for decoration, landscape
design and management from June 2012 to December 2012. From March 2010 to
November 2010, he served as the deputy general manager of Changsha Kaifu Wanda
Plaza Investment Company Limited (R 1@ & ZEE %R E AR A F), in charge of the
construction work. From July 2007 to February 2010, he successively served as the chief
of general housing management center and project general manager of Dongguan Vanke
Real Estate Co, Ltd (RE&RIEHEBR A R]), and was responsible for its project
development and construction management. From July 2004 to July 2007, he served as
the construction manager of Guangdong Century City Group Company Limited (& ttt
LS BBR AT, in charge of its project development and construction management.

Mr. Zhou received a Bachelor of Science degree in water conservancy and hydropower

engineering construction from Tsinghua University in July 1995.

Mr. Xiao Junxian (H8&), aged 68, has been the vice president of the Group since
2017 and is primarily responsible for the Group's risk control and management affairs. Mr.
Xiao is a senior economist. He has served as the special assistant to the chairman of the
Group from November 2012 to March 2017. He has more than 6 years of experience
in risk control management in the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xiao served
as vice president of Hong Kong Howard Group Co,, Ltd. from November 2006 to
November 2012. He was mainly responsible for the preliminary investigation of new
projects and the communication and coordination with the government. Mr. Xiao has 30
years of experience in banking management and risk review. From November 200! to
November 2006, Mr. Xiao served as the general auditor of the Bank of China Shaoguan
and Qingyuan Branch (in Guangdong Province, the provincial office). From November
1997 to November 2001, Mr. Xiao served as the general auditor of the Bank of China
Jieyang Branch. From November 1991 to November 1997, Mr. Xiao served as the bank
president of Jiedong branch of the Bank of China Jieyang branch. From November 981
to November 1991, Mr. Xiao served as the bank president of Jiexi County Branch of Bank
of China Jieyang Branch.

EERGREEERBE

AE AL 465% BONRFRBEERE
BRaf FZEEASENIERKAE
B BEERAENFHRIEREER - 20105
RAZWNENA BEEEEKEEER
BRERATHEREIERNELE a5
SEEARE  RANREEREIEE R
B RRLEZEEETRERETIRARA
AR HINR2012F6AE2012F128
EEZSEETERBERTARBALE -
BERHM  RERHANREE - BWI0F3AZE
0I0F 1A HEEERPAREERGRE
ARAREIALKIE  GEEITIIE - 520075
TRZEWI0F 2R REAREERZENE
WERRATDLBIEEERLOEERERA
£ BRIBERERBEIERE - B200457
AZEN7E7TA REEERRELHEES
RAABILE BEBEREREIER
BRERI1995F7 AEBBEEREKFIKEL
BREEERBE B o

HEBELE 68K BI/ERBREERS
BRla  FEEEAEENREREHERSE
BeoBARERBREER - HE2012F11A
REWI7TFIAREREEEERHAE &
AEERER A FRREHERLER - MAK
SR HALELR2006F 11 AE2012F 1]
AEEIEESESEERARERY 28
EMEEMNARERUARERFNERBAL
fE- BAERMANFNRITLLER  ARE
ET{ERS - B2001F 11 AZ2006F 11 A -
HAEEARRBRTRE BRI TEER(E
REATIRE) BI1997F 11 BZE2001F 11
A BEERERERITBEHTERER - 8
1991 FIIAZEI997F 1A HELETHEH
RITBE S THRRERX{TITR B 1981 F1I
AZIVIFEIA BEEEERERTES
AITBEAGSITIR

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &3k

135



136

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

Mr. Wang Xiangui (E88&), aged 61, has been the director of the project development
department of the Group since 2010, and is primarily responsible for project development
of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 23 years of experience in project development of
trade centers. From January 2010 to November 2010, Mr. Wang served as the manager
of project development department of Hong Kong Hydoo Group Investment Company
Limited and was responsible for the project development of the company. From August
1995 to November 2010, he was the manager of project development department
of Hong Kong Howard Group Company Limited, and was responsible for the project
development. He was awarded the title of the outstanding entrepreneur with social

responsibility of Weifang city in December 2010.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Hydoo International Holding
Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hydoo International Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 150 to
351, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2018 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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ERRRIRENERRENENGE

Transfer of inventories to investment properties and valuation of investment properties

FLRBIE BN I REI99ABEFHHE -

Refer to note |/ to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 199.

The key audit matter

BRENSA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRINEERRETSE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held a portfolio of investment
properties located in Jiangxi, Guangxi, Shandong and Hunan provinces
in Mainland China with an aggregate fair value of RMB2,623 million
which accounted for 18% of the Group's total assets at that date. The
investment properties principally comprise shopping malls and other
commercials.

R20185F 124318 - ERERFEANHEAMITE - & - 1L
REBAENRENFEAS  RERARKLOEET  HE
SEEEREMNI8% RENXIZBREARIBRRNRNIE
ehEES

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group transferred
inventories, which principally comprised shopping malls, with an
aggregate carrying value of RMB289 million to investment properties.
Management is required to exercise judgement in determining if the
relevant criteria as set out in the prevailing accounting standards have
been met in order to transfer inventories to investment properties.
Such judgements are principally qualitative in nature.

BE018F12A3IHLEFE  ERESAREEAR AR89
BEINRE  IRERGEARIRTEEBRERENE &
EEREUFEERAIREMERENARITEH ERITHRE
HOMRRIREAE L AT - BLH T BRI -

Our audit procedures to assess the transfer of inventories to
investment properties and the valuation of investment properties
included the following;

HASFEFERRRENE LRENEO[ERRNER
BFER:

. challenging management's criteria for determining the change
in use of the properties transferred from inventories to
investment properties by inspecting the lease agreements for
the properties, property management contracts and other
relevant documentation and inspecting management's business
plans for these properties;

« BEREVENEERE  MEEESRMEMEREX
HARREEEBHELMENESTE  hBEEE
HELFEBRIRENEREEMED

0 conducting site visits to investment properties transferred from
inventories, on a sample basis, to observe the leasing activities
of the respective properties and assess the change in use of
the properties as asserted by management;

« HRGEERIREMENARETEHRE - K
HABRBTRNENEERE  YHEEEBERAY
ERER
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Transfer of inventories to investment properties and valuation of investment properties

ERRRIRENERRENENGE

Refer to note |/ to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 199.

FLRBIE BN I REI99ABEFHHE -

The key audit matter

BRENSA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRINEERRETSE

The net changes in fair value of investment properties recorded in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss represented 24% of the
Group's profit before taxation for the year ended 31 December
2018, including an amount of RMBIOI million which arose from
the fair value gain upon the transfer of inventories to investment
properties.
REFBRERTFARENRENENRABFEDHERES
B&ZE2018F12A31 BILFE BRG] 224% @ BiEmlz
HEERRRENERELNAABREAREI0IBET

. obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared by the
external property valuers engaged by management and on
which the directors assessment of the fair values of investment
properties was based;

- DRIREAEEEZENINIYMRGERMAREEE
REFUREVENAAEFEDTENEENGER
4

. assessing the external property valuers' qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued and

considering their objectivity and independence;

o AHMENIMEGEMUAGENENERE KRINEX

B WEBEEBMEAELIE
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ERREIRENERRENENLE

Transfer of inventories to investment properties and valuation of investment properties

FLRBIE BN I REI99ABEFHHE -

Refer to note |/ to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 199.

The key audit matter

BRENSA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRINEERRETSE

The fair values of the investment properties as at 31 December 2018
were assessed by the directors based on independent valuations
prepared by a firm of qualified external property valuers. The
determination of these fair values involves significant judgement
and estimation, particularly in relation to selecting the appropriate
valuation methodology, capitalisation rates, market rents and average
market price of the comparable properties.
REMER018F A ANAAENAEEERN —HAER
SNEBEHEMBROBIUMEMG - HRZRINENHETE
W RERHE MG - FREEREENMBETE  BAMEH
A EEnENmEEe R FEHERR -

We identified the transfer of inventories to investment properties and
the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter because
of the exercise of management judgement in assessing if the criteria
for the transfer of inventories to investment properties were met and
because of the inherent risks involved in estimating the valuations of
investment properties, particularly in light of the current economic
circumstances and various property market cooling measures
implemented by local governments in various cities across Mainland
China.

RABPEFEERIRENE LKA ENEEERBRE
BER ARENEEEN AT EBRARENENRE
B UREREREVMENGESRNEERR - K=&
TS Bl A0 AR IR SR A 7 U 7 R B A 3 25 B3 T 4 L ) R A

BHEMSERERE - BEEHRETEAE -

. with the assistance of our internal property valuation specialists,
discussing with the external property valuers their valuation
methodology and the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in their valuations;

« ERMNABHERGESEXRBE T - EIEEHRMEER
AP G EEL RAERBNERMEFMERR

0 challenging the key estimates and assumptions (including
capitalisation rates, prevailing market rents and comparable
market transactions) adopted in the valuations, on a sample
basis, by comparison with available market data and/or
government produced market statistics; and

« BBEBEMSBBENRBUTREN TSR BIBET
B BREETRANEEGRGIRER (BEERL
& BITMSHESMAEETSERS) R

0 comparing tenancy information, including committed rents
and occupancy rates, provided by the Group to the external
property valuers with underlying contracts and related
documentation, on a sample basis.

« BEBEERTN $EEES  ERAGENESMAZ
= BEEERMGIIFNEGEEMOELS RN
XTSI -
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Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

AMEEENTERFE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 226 to 230,

BREE IR ZMN7F20 RE226 H 2230E B SFHR °

The key audit matter

BRELSA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRINEERRERSE

As at 3| December 2018, the aggregate carrying value of the
Group's properties held for development (“PHD"), properties
under development (“PUD") and completed properties held for sale
(together “inventories”) totalled RMB7,485 million. These principally
comprise wholesale trading market units and other commercials in
Ganzhou, Lanzhou, Jining, Yulin and Wuzhou.
R2018F 127318 EXRENFEERNE ( [BREREY
¥])  EEhE ([£89%) ) MEFECEINx (5
[FE]) WeEnEs ARARK740BET - ZEFET

ZEEREM - BN BT IREBNOBIRIRREE
TTREMEE -

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The calculation of the net realisable value for each property
development project at the financial reporting date is performed by
management.

BFEUKAETZEHRFEOBEEIE - SEYEREFRAR
MBS RN ERFERETIEEHE

The calculation of the net realisable value of inventories involves
significant management judgement and estimation in preparing
the updated estimations of the costs to complete each property
development project for PHD and PUD as well as in assessing the
expected future selling prices for each property development project
(with reference to recent sales transactions in nearby locations and
the rates of new property sales) and the estimated future selling costs
(including price discounts which may be required to stimulate sales).
REBEERDEREZDE LAY ERERERIKANR
#itar ARHESENERZFRRMNBHRREE (221
Mﬁ&ﬁ%%%%&%&%%%%gm)&M#XK%EW$

(BRGEHERREFROERTMN) & SAEFENTER
FEIRERERES

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of inventories

included the following'

B FEN A 2 FERDNEZEFEHE

0 assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the preparation
and monitoring of management budgets and forecasts of
construction and other costs for each property development
project;

c T ARRREMERZEAVERZHEENBEESE 22
it}

FEMKRANRRETOEZAMES - ERE - B)
MEE LB
0 conducting site visits to property development sites, on a

sample basis, and discussing with management the progress
of each property development project and the development
budgets reflected in the latest forecasts for each property
development project;
« DHEBESAEERERMETENRR  TRERE
S EYERERENEERRRREEYRAEE
BRMBRANERES

0 evaluating the valuation methodologies and challenging the key
estimates and assumptions adopted in the valuations, including
expected future selling prices, by comparing expected future
selling prices to, where available, recently transacted prices
for similar properties and the prices of comparable properties
located in the nearby vicinity of each development;

«  ERMEIAREEERETERBR TELHAMU
MERNZ 5 ER KA E%RIE R B E A A L
WMEEBELER - FHEBEDE  YHEETREBNE

EEERER (BRBEHARHEEER) REE5H
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Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

AMEEENTERFE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 226 to 230,

BRRIE G FEIREN 20 R FE226 A Z230B IS 5HBE °

The key audit matter

BRENSA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRINEERRERSE

We identified assessing the net realisable value of inventories of the
Group as a key audit matter because of the inherent risks involved
in estimating net realisable values, particularly in light of the current
economic circumstances and various property market cooling
measures implemented by local governments in various cities across

Mainland China.

RREE AT ERFES MNBEERR - HRIRREPENNLE
1HbﬁrnEﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬂkéﬁli*%tmﬂﬂﬁﬁT%/_Eﬁﬁzlﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%Z§?§Bﬁ U
FEEHEESEFEN 2R FEBRREZZR -

. for those properties held for future development and
properties under development for sale, discussing with
management, on a sample basis, the development progress and
challenging management's development budgets with reference
to signed construction contracts and/or unit construction costs
of recently completed projects developed by the Group; and

« HRARRERAREERFHENDE  BERETH
BHHNBRRER  AREMENER L 2ZXKERK

ATKEBRITNBESHR,REBARERE - BE
BENRREERLE

. performing sensitivity analyses to determine the extent
of changes in key estimates and assumptions that, either
individually or collectively, adopted in assessing net realisable
value, may result in material misstatements in inventories
and considering the likelihood of such a movement in those
key estimates and assumptions arising and the potential for
management bias in their selection.

o ETHEMSN  UREIZEFHERFEREEX

HENEPRE  YEBAFERMGTRERRLHAE
R REMEER FHRERRENBEN -
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Impairment loss on interest in and amount due from joint venture operated in Thailand (“Thailand Joint Venture”)

EREARENCELENERRBRSELXRAREBR(RESERX])

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on 193 to 194,

BRI HYERENEI5RE93EE 1945 B ZETHR °

The key audit matter

BRENSA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRINEERRERSE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's interest in joint ventures
amounted to RMBI33 million, including an interest in Thailand Joint
Venture which is engaged in property development in Thailand
("“Thailand Joint Venture") with carrying amount of RMB 126 million.
BZE2018F 128310 AEERRELXNESRERARE
IBEET  ERERBEENREFRAORELELE ([£
EEghR| ) migs ERAEAARK 12688 -

In 2018, Thailand Joint Venture was unable to get reimbursement
of the cost of certain pieces of land which have to be returned to
the original vendor by the order of the court. In addition, the joint
venture partner of Thailand Joint Venture was obligated to repurchase
certain shares in Thailand Joint Venture held by the Group but failed
to do so within the specified time frame. The above resulted in a loss
on the interest in the Thailand Joint Venture by the Group.

20185 FEAECEBIRGERERG SV ARERRE
TR LA ERR ARG E - WD - FEAELENSEBH
BEGRASERELFENZESELRNETRN - ERE
RRBETERBAL - EERAKEHFHSELRORER
5o

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment loss on interest in

Thailand Joint Venture included the following:

BAEARBRSEEFRAERRNETEFBREATAR |

0 obtaining and inspecting the legal opinion issued by the Group's
external legal counsel in respect of the Group's right to collect
the consideration from share repurchase or to obtain the land
pieces still held by Thailand Joint Venture as the joint venture
partner has failed to fulfill its share repurchase obligation within
the specified time frame;

© ERRBREAKEINDEEBRBLOEEER - LB
ARRAEERAR/REBHREERTNHRABITE
B REEBEREBRKRNBONREXEEDRES
EOEHFANL

il

. obtaining and inspecting the valuation report prepared by the
external valuers engaged by management and on which the
directors’ assessment of the fair values of the land pieces still
held by Thailand Joint Venture was based;

« ERRREHE IR ERD R S ER
& YTHEFURBRALEXNHENLHNAAEE
e R,

. assessing the external property valuers' qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued and

considering their objectivity and independence;

« HWINEEMEMHRAGEEENER  KRMEE

B WEBREEBRIENELIL,
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ERERENSECENERAERR((RESELE))

Impairment loss on interest in a joint venture operated in Thailand (“Thailand Joint Venture”)

BRI HYERENEI5RE93EE 1945 B ZETHR °

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 193 to 194.

The key audit matter

BRENSA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRINEERRERSE

The directors expect that the Group will be able to recover part of its
interest in Thailand Joint Venture by obtaining the land pieces still held
by Thailand Joint Venture based on the legal opinion obtained from
an external legal counsel. With reference to the fair value of these
land pieces which were assessed by the Group' s directors based on
a valuation report prepared by external valuer, the Group has made
a provision for impairment loss of RMB20 million on the interest in
Thailand Joint Venture and a specific loss allowance of RMB20 million
on the amount due from that joint venture.
RECINDEEERRESNEZRER - EFRPAEEKE
PESERALCENFIEN LI NREAEAERBESE 0%
WEDKRE - AEEEEREBIMNIGEMBROGERSTGE
ZEITHNDAEE  ARECHREREEENERREE
HREBRREARB0EETRERZAEEENETEHRE
BEARB0BEET -

We identified assessing the impairment loss of interests in Thailand
Joint Venture as a key audit matter because of the exercise of
management judgement in estimating the amount of to be recovered
from the Group's interests in Thailand Joint Venture.
RAEEFERBES L L ENBRERRR —HBRENZR
AAERIASERRER 2R XMNESN A RE S BEFTE
TEREHE -

. with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, discussing with the external valuers their valuation
methodology and the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in their valuations; and

o BERAREEFEERNBET - A REINEEEE
{8775 - SWHEEMEMRM RS 5 MIRR 7, A

0 challenging the key estimates and assumptions (including
comparable information and adjustments) adopted in the
valuations by comparison with available market data and/or
government produced market statistics.

« BBEBRBAMBSEEN/RBFEENTISR BIBRET
L8 BEETRANOERGANRR (RETLER
MHE) fRHEA -
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Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Mainland China

PEREEEES ([THEER] ) BB

Refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting judgement and estimates on page 251.

BLBE KB REY iF6 RE25| REV@ T HIBT R 155t -

The key audit matter

BRELSA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRINEERRERSE

LAT in Mainland China is one of the main components of the Group's
taxation charge.

FEAMN LR ERRERER G HNERAKRID

— o

LAT is levied on sale of properties, at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% based on the appreciation of land value. At the end of
each financial reporting period, management estimates the provision
for LAT based on its understanding and interpretation of the relevant
tax rules and regulations, the estimated total sales of properties less
total deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges for land use
rights, property development costs, borrowing costs and development
expenditure. When the LAT is subsequently determined, the actual
payments may be different from the estimates.
EREHERENEHET ER T EERRRER ZER K
30%-60% B M T IR ER - AREMGHA  EEEFRYEL
WIRERNFIRSFETHRE  AELGEMNHER T2
EENBREREABRGEZRERNRENERE - BetHE
FEHEBIS U AR ETERT AT IR 8 TR ~ R EE R B A
K-HMESER FRERS ESEEIMIEEHESS
K ERENHEEEESRRANSEFEEE -

We identified provision for LAT in Mainland China as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the estimated provisions for LAT are based
on management's judgement and interpretation of complicated tax
laws and regulations.

AR TR ERNFHRE A H M BRRNERY - REREE
H s R R A R R SRR AR RN E B ENIE RS
2 AEBMS L EERNRANSESERRERS
T8 o

Our audit procedures to assess the provision for LAT in Mainland

China included the following;
BARHE T B A R AR R ERRNEZEF B

0 assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management's key internal controls over the
calculation of the estimated LAT provisions;

«  FHMEEEEBRFEMF DEERBENBRAE
HlERET - BAEEBRIL

0 engaging our internal taxation specialists to evaluate the
Group's LAT provisions, on a sample basis, as at 31 December
2018 which involved challenging management's assumptions
and judgements based on our experience, knowledge and
understanding of the practices of the application of the relevant
tax laws by the various local tax bureaus;

« BREABHBERFEEEEN2018F 12731 B it
IREVRE  BERRERMANEE  FRNESHETR
BRERBEBUERRERRE - HERENRRMAE
RMESR

. evaluating management's assumptions and judgements based
on our assessment of the value of the estimated sales of
properties and the deductible expenditure; and

- BREFMEVEGTHEEENTNRAXOE B
REREANRR R AE &

. re-calculating the provision for LAT of the Group and
comparing our calculations with the amounts recorded by the

Group.
«  ENGEESENLIMEETEE  UERMNGER

EEECENSRETHR
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, then we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for

overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

AHUBBRRRELBAREUNNES

EXFHHAEEAE - HERBRETIH
RERANZEEE - BIEEAHIBER

= RBRMINEBE RS

KMEEHMBHRENERL T REEME
B BT AEZEEMEREREMATERN
E’]%um DFIFFE °

BEBMHAHBBRRNER - RMANE
TREEAMES - ElBRT  ZEEM
EERGEAHMBHRRIRMERZ AR
RAEENELFEEAEEREUTFE
BRERRAMNER

ERBFTHATHIE  MRAFRAEM
ERFEEAERRL  HMFEREZE
E-wEhm RVRAEMERS -

ESHAHUBRRARENEL

ESRRARBRAKREENESSRON
BB B @mEER REE (REED) K
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PAEREF S8 R 1T G BR e E A 8 SR Rk P 75 9
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

J |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

BY 2B RS

REMRER S BRRARNEL

BMNEE  RESHIBREEBRET
7 FR R EF ok 85 2R 1 28 B8 B K 88 AR PRt
RGEBRE  YHABERMEROZH
FIERE - RMBERZEBREFERE o BRI
oh - BFIERE TR REEMAE o &I

TRAHFENAT  HEMEBALRERNL
AEARRME -

ABREERKFNRE  BFERERR
(BAEREL) ETTNER  EX—BX
i R BRI FE A AR BE B3R o SR SRR AT LA/
HAFEERRS - MRAERYCMHEFN
ERERABERFERHUBTRRERE KB
HBRRMELNEERTE - ABBNHER
BRI EARIEERX o

ERE (BAEBERER) £TERNBER
T RFERTEXHAE - RETEXRR
REE - AT

« BT EBERREFRERMERE G
BRERFEEAERRANRR - &
R EZIR AR B LR - A
KERFZEMEENEZRE - ERK
MERMER - BRRFFAIEY RF
#HomE BEER ERRFL - R

BRAEESz £ - Bt RaEZERER
FMEROEAERRANBEBREARR
B3 IR R 36 AR 1T B BUA E A A ER BRI A
R o

S5

R R EE AR R ED R M%%@
ENERREF  BEMIFHERE
BEHNARUEBRKRER -

« HEEFMRAETHRANBELERE
SEHERH IR EN SN -
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0 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is

Wong Chun Pong,

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
[0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2019

BY 2B RS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
B EER

for the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ0I8F 2R3 HILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESIR)
2018 2017
(Note)
(Bf&E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®TFR ARBETT
Revenue 6 3 2,842,202 1,792,421
Cost of sales HEMA (1,699,285) (1,076,609)
Gross profit E7 1,142,917 715812
Other income Hi A 4 92,360 491,800
Selling and distribution costs HEMD HAA (110,978) (147,277)
Administrative and other operating expenses TREEMLERZ (436,806) (459,043)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables 25 REMERZIERERSR 5(c) (46,640) (2,639)
Profit from operations before fair value gain on RENEDABERGEAZERE
investment properties 640,853 598,653
Fair value gain on investment properties REME DA B Il 100,634 387,870
Profit from operation after fair value gain on RENEAABERSREERE
investment properties 741,487 986,523
Share of loss of an associate AEBE R EER 14 (880) (300)
Share of losses of joint ventures AERELEER 15 (19,904) (2,943)
Finance income BB 5(a) 35,287 5722
Finance costs N 5(a) (339,370) (275,021)
Profit before taxation BRBiA1F A 5 416,620 713,98
Income tax g 6(a) (306,733) (458,726)
Profit for the year FRFE 109,887 255,255
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BHEER

for the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ018F 2A3IBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBFIR)
2018 2017
(Note)
(B¥5E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt % AR®F ARETT
Attributable to: UT&FER:
Equity shareholders of the Company AREERRER 106,995 245,573
Non-controlling interests IR A 2,892 9,682
Profit for the year FRFE 109,887 255,255
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (RMB cents) EX(ARED) 9 2.7 6.1
Diluted (RMB cents) #E(AR%ED) 9 27 6.1
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition Mtz AREER20I85F | A | B & X FER B

methods chosen, comparative information is not restated except for separately presenting

impairment losses on trade and other receivables. See note |(c).

The notes on pages 160 to 351 form part of these financial statements. Details of

dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 32(b).

E160E351 BATHE M B

B EERE |55 R BR AR E =R
F95% - RECEROBELN - LRE
HATEY  HEB2FIEHREME
WHBRERR © BRI °

MBRmEA

4

—BH REEENADARSREREMF
TEEAPEE 32(b) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EOHEEREMEEHKER

for the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ0I8F 2R3 HILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESIR)
2018 2017
(Note)
(Bt&E)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBETT
Profit for the year ERFE 109,887 255,255

Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax FREMPERA (BHE

and reclassification adjustments) REHHERBE)
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: Ef&AJaEEF A EEERMIER -

Exchange differences on translation of financial MEREFEINF AR BERE

statements of subsidiaries outside the Mainland China )& i Z %8 (62,927) 78,671

Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZEBKA (62,927) 78,671
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2HEWALE 46,960 333,926
Attributable to: LR &R B

Equity shareholders of the Company AARERRE 44,068 324,244

Non-controlling interests IR A 2,892 9,682
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBALE 46,960 333926

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS |5 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition MisE:  ANEER20I8F 1A B ERERBERE
methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note |(c). TG RN | 55k K BIRR B 75 3R 5 ZE Al
F9% - RECEANBESR  LBRE

BATED - FRMEI(O) °

The notes on pages 160 to 351 form part of these financial statements. F160ZE35 | BEFFHMTERZENBRKN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B Ot BN R

at 31 December 2018
R20I8E 12A31H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHESIR)
2018 2017
(Note)
(B¥5E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®F ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER NS 10 441,210 457,896
Investment properties REYE [l 2,623,137 2,259,900
Intangible assets B EE 12 17,634 19,555
Goodwil BE 13 2,252 2252
Interest in an associate REEE P EER |4 2,820 3,700
Interest in joint ventures Re&tEln 15 132,672 146,451
Other financial assets HinSREE 16 121,003 84731
Deferred tax assets EREMIEEE 17(b) 157,568 148,399
Finance lease receivable RMEHERKHIE 19 27,394 19,155
3,525,690 3,142,039
Current assets RBEE
Inventories and other contract costs FEREMEHKAR 20 7,484,547 8,234,259
Prepaid tax BN 17(a) 53,354 95437
Other financial assets HinSREE 16 = 13,548
Other current assets Himeh & & 16 = 371,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE YA 21 1,772,278 1,088,503
Pledged and restricted cash BEERRXREERS 2 585,583 857,666
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREFEY 23 1,123,145 1,000,443
11,018,907 ['1,660,856
Investment properties classified as held for sale NERFERENRENME I 26,463 i
11,045,370 11,660,856
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SO HARR R

at 31 December 2018
RR2018F 12431 B

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHEIITR)
2018 2017
(Note)
(Pt zE)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR®T T ARETTT
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables g5 REMENTIE 24 2,923,528 4,152,778
Contract liabilities araE 25 1,843,463 —
Bank loans and other borrowings RTERRAMEE 26 487,661 1,201,859
Senior notes BRAEE 27 411,311 1,042,899
Corporate bonds NREIES 28 261,334 6,665
Current tax liabilities EHEEE 17(a) 803,651 869,706
Deferred income FEEMA 29 623,296 716,672
7,354,244 7,990,579
Net current assets RBEEFE 3,691,126 3,670,277
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRDERE 7,216,816 6812316
Non-current liabilities =R
Bank loans and other borrowings BTERREMEE 26 779,250 861,770
Senior notes BRAEE 27 1,054,670 390964
Corporate bonds NAlfER 28 — 259,770
Deferred income FEEMA 29 653 3,132
Deferred tax liabilities BEREEE 17(b) 103,349 77419
1,937,922 1,593,055
NET ASSETS BERE 5,278,894 5219261
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B Ot BN R

at 31 December 2018
R20I8E 12A31H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE3IR)
2018 2017
(Note)
(Bf&E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P EE AR®TFR ARBETT
Capital and reserves RAR % 32
Share capital R 31,825 31,825
Reserves Gl 5,207,006 5,159,765
Total equity attributable to equity ARAEGRREGEZAR
shareholders of the Company 5,238,831 5,191,590
Non-controlling interests RS 40,063 27,671
TOTAL EQUITY ERAR 5,278,894 521926l

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition Bzt ANEBEN20I18F | A | B EIXERBEEE

methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note |(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2019.

Wang Jianli
F @A
Chairman and Executive Director

LERHITEF

The notes on pages 160 to 351 form part of these financial statements.

RSB | 557 KBS B AS h  AE RI 2B 9
%o BECEANBESR  LEEMNT
FE o FFERMFEI(C) °

R2019%3 A28 BEZE @At A RIREETE -

Wang Dewen
FEX
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
HITEEREEHITE

FI0E3| AMENETBNZFTH BRI
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B EREER
for the year ended 31 December 2018

HBZE208F 12A31 BILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARES]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EHERSER

BZ018F 2A3IBILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARBFIR)

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Clr— R s R ER B E 1562091 &

'SIUSWIDIE]S [BIDUBUI 953U} JO Mied WO | GE 01 09 | Seded uo sajou oy |

o O) I BMYE - [EL HEEH  EUHFHHBDHY - Lo RYHNEN S SRS Y HHEEIY B H I H 1 H8100E S Y « B

'(9) | 910U 235 ‘Pa1eISU 10U ST UORBULIOJUI SARIEAUIOD 'USSOLD POUIRW SUOMISUR.. U} JPUN '8 | O A/BNUE( | 18 6 S| PUB G| Syd| Paijdde Ajierniul sey dnouo ay) :e30N

POB8LS 900 I8%TS 0T el i = (o9v79) LI9SE 0TS %98l S8l HE U H8100 8107 foqui3a( | 2e 30uteg

- - - (t89'%3) - - - - - 189%S - - (e)e aasal IO Yy 01 voneudosddy

(0007 (0007 = - - - = = = = = - SisE1U BUJ0103-U0u 01 PR USpI]

00S'l1 0011 - - - - = = = = = - sisaaul Suaauox-uou Aq uomalu e

- - = Jdl = = (o) - - - = = asdeypatHo} SUoRdo areug

W 8T oo el () oo stagaiduo) o]

wy - wy - wy - - - - - —~ — A0 ARG AR

8601 1681 6901 0l — - - - - = = = Bk 1014044

mmawﬁ_s 810740} famba ur sy

s 10 OU%6IS  9%YSLT  KS9Ey i Lw0l (o9v79) LI9SE ¥SELsr 998L6 el FHEEBE | H 1581000 8107 Aence | 12 g paisnlpy
e = it it = = = = - - - - BElRIE

e e | ) Jo oienydde ryu uo pecl

I9T6ITS 191 06ST6IS  EBLI9TT  pS9Ey 4 Lol (o9v79) LI9SE ¥SELsy %98l el (BH)BHmIcHUSLI00d (oN) 107 soqunag | 1e oueeg

UpgdY UdgdY UEgdY  UdgdY  UdgdY  LVig¥Y  UdgdY  UER¥Y  LER¥Y  UEEMY  LER¥Y  Lig¥Y
008WY  0O0EWY  O00SWY  00OSWY  CODGWY  O00SWY  000ZWY  000GWY  O00SWY  00GWY  O00SWY 000
(n)(plze Weke  Weke  Weke  WEke  Obke O

15 Q- L EE S HMBY  HEXE ¥R 84 ERN S LD L i
BlvE  GREY TR
Bxgfn B-98
LR U
fanb RICT T sjoud ahIasal EIVCY] EIVCS] ST T VE EICY] wmwaid - pden 30N
[Bo] Sujjonuod PRURIY afepxy  uondwepas  ewked Sujonuoy  eudey honms— areyg AIRYS
-loN oidey POSRG-aRYS  -UOU (M o
PafIas UomesUe
kb - 3MRSRY
JHERRAETY

Aueduor 3up Jo sJapjoya.eys Aamba 03 3gengumy

157

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &3k



158

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHREERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ0I8F 2R3 HILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AARBFITR)
2018 2017
(Note)
(Bf&E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®FR ARBETT
Operating activities ReEH
Cash generated from operations REXBHMERS 23(b) 892,123 606,442
PRC tax paid B ERIE (314,505) (353,543)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMBRELFE 577,618 252,899
Investing activities REEH
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE - BERREMERE
plant and equipment 524 992
Proceeds from disposal of other HERAAEFELHEEA
financial assets measured at EHRR(RAREFERH
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") BEFAERBR]O
Htt S BEEFGFR 60,150 280,000
Net proceeds from repayment of prepaid BEBMNREXNARGRIEFE
investment cost — 424,285
Payment for purchase of property, BEMX - BELREBRNT
plant and equipment (10,716) (19,369)
Payment for purchase of other financial assets BEHMEREENT (38,422) (20,647)
Payment for purchase of wealth BERIEMNN
management products (448,500) (371,000)
Proceeds from disposal of wealth HEBMERMEBHE
management products 826,590 4,036
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BERVEENK (121 (9,717)
Interest received BUFIS 25,338 5722
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEFRRIMFERER 23(d) 233,733 83,841
Acquisition of interests in a joint venture BE—ReehEER (6,125) =
Payment for investment in an associate REBE D EMNK — (4,000)
Prepayment for investment REBMNRIE (188,000) —
Net cash generated from investing activities REZDMBREFE 454,451 374,143
The notes on pages 160 to 351 form part of these financial statements. FI0EDBIBEMHAMTBRAZZABREN

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHBRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ018F 2A3IBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE3IR)
2018 2017
(Note)
(Bf&E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ AR®TR ARBETT
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from new bank loans and MERTERREMEE
other borrowings PSR 23(c) 1,316,590 832,344
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings BERTERREMEE 23(c) (2,113,308) (1,554,278)
Repayment of corporate bonds BEARES 23(c) (6,771) -
Repayments of senior notes ERELERE 23(0) (423,500) —
Net proceeds from the issue of senior notes BIBERBREREFE 23(c) 330,406 —
Interest and other borrowing costs paid ENFEREMEERR 23(c) (355,551) (340,784)
Decrease in pledged deposits for loans BREXRD 325,421 249,259
Net cash payment for acquisition of HEmRERIE T
additional interest in subsidiaries BIMER E’J@‘fﬁiﬁw\
from non-controlling interests — (23,395)
Dividends paid to non-controlling intetests REREIZl g I (2,000) —
Capital injection by non-controlling interests R ER ﬂ% T}fﬁ
to subsidiaries 11,500 6,250
Net proceeds from the issue of corporate bonds (T ARIEHFAEREFE 23(c) — 256,360
Net cash used in financing activities METHAARSTEE (917,213) (574,244)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERAEEEMENER 114,856 52,798
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIBIBNBEERESEEY 23 1,000,443 965,685
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEEXSBNTE 7,846 (18,040)
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December RNAIBNRERREEEY 23 1,123,145 1,000,443
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the transition MizE:  ZAREER20I8F| B | BHEIKFERBRRE

methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note |(c).

The notes on pages 160 to 351 form part of these financial statements.

FI160E3S5 | BEFTE M BN

—%5 -

TR &5 1557 K BB BT 75 3R 4 4R
F9% - RIFDBAMBEL N - LEA
BATES - BRI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“lASs") and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"), and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are

disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note |(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

"“Group") and the Group's interest in an associate and joint ventures.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") rounded to
the nearest thousand. The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the following assets
and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting

policies set out below:

= Equity investments other than investments in subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures (see note |(g));

- derivative financial instruments (see note | (h)); and

- investment properties (see note | (i)).

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount

and fair value less costs to sell (see note |(z)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

EXSHBEE)

(b)

MERRNERRERE

HZ2018F12A3 HLEENE
HUBRREEADBREEFA
Al(FE ARl ]) RASE R
TENGECEES -

ZERBBREAARKZT - OB
ERBRAOTAE - WIXEE K
KA - R BB TMR IS LA 27K
TMERGERE - A TEERA
ERAREIR

- BRERHEAR  BEQ
AR AR ERIRE
(BHE 1 (g))

- TEEBMIAMEIN):
&

- REMEME ) -

BERENIERBEERERER
DRABEREERAZBEETIR
(B 1) °

EEEARAENABRMBRELE
RIMBI B RKE - RIELHERA
BRREE & BARZLH
EHERERT ENFE - Bt R
R - fhat RIEARRREBEL
BERFABATRARENSE
HioREEL  EERRAEER
ERAREAMGEANRSNEE
K B {8 6 BR TED {865 £F i 41 B 0 4%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

(©

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Contd)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of these,

the following developments are relevant to the Group's financial statements:

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments

(i) IFRS I5, Revenue from contracts with customers

(iify  IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

Due to the transition methods chosen by the Group in applying the new
standards, comparative information throughout these financial statements has
not been restated to reflect the requirements of the new standards, except

for separately presenting impairment loss on trade and other receivables.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©

Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

The adoption of IFRIC 22 does not have any material impact on the

consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period, except for the amendments
to IFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation which have

been adopted at the same time as IFRS 9.

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement. It sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to

buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively to items that existed
at | January 2018 in accordance with the transition requirements.
However, there is no impact to the opening equity at | January 2018
by the initial application of IFRS 9. The comparative information

continues to be reported under IAS 39.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

EXSHBEE)

(©)
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REEY EEANE G 5 2R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

©

Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

()

IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Contd)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous

accounting policies and the transition approach are set out below:

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at
FVPL. These supersede IAS 39's categories of held-to maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets measured at FVPL. The classification
of financial assets under IFRS 9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual
cash flow characteristics. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded
in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope
of the standard are not separated from the host. Instead, the

hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont d)

a Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont d)

The following table shows the original measurement categories
for each class of the Group's financial assets under IAS 39
and reconciles the carrying amounts of those financial assets
determined in accordance with IAS 39 to those determined in

accordance with IFRS 9.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Cont d) () BFRRNEH(E)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9, () BIBRHBEEELEIH £

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont d)

BIR| GEERYFEH
EREREIRRERHME
BlEa 12 BT & 1Y I 16 ET 2
(&)

a Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont d) a. tREEREHAR
HHH (&)
IAS 39 carrying IFRS 9 carrying
amount at amount at
31 December 2017 Reclassification | January 2018
Gl S-Figiil BB KERE
F395R0 ERAR
2017% 128 2018F 18I A
31 BARRME(E ENMNE NEIRKAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT ARBTR
Financial assets carried R B A5 BR
at amortised cost tREE
Pledged and restricted cash EERRXREIRE 857,666 -~ 857,666
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR eEEY 1,000,443 e 1,000,443
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERFE 479,586 - 479,586
2,337,695 i 2,337,695
Financial assets carried at FVPL B AABEFTEEEEBHTA
ENRENEREE
Unlisted equity investment not RIFEFRHEZ
held for trading (note (i)) I LR E (M) . 84731 84,731
Wealth management Y2 8 2 o (FRYEE (1)
products (note (i) - 371,000 371,000
Derivative financial HiofrE & E (K (i)
instruments (note (ii)) 13548 - 13,548
13,548 455731 469,279
Financial assets classified as REBREHERIE 395
available-for-sale under ToERAHHEN
IAS 39 (note (i)) SREE (K 3) 45573 (455,731) =

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | EXGHBERE)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd) () SBFBENEH(E)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9, () BIBRHBEEEAEIH £
Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont d) AT R GFERYEER
LEEBEIORAEEBH
BRORTRA IBETE
(&)
a Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont'd) a, THEEREHEE
BB

Notes: Bzt -

0) Under IAS 39, unlisted equity investments not held for trading (i) BB & 5%
and investments in wealth management products were AIE395% - A3k
classified as available-for-sale financial assets. These investments B5RAZEL
are classified as at FVPL under IFRS 9. At | January 2018, there MHERARERE
was no investments designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) by HE@RRERD
the Group. BRAfthE:

BEE - REE
BR 3t 7% 5 22
F% - AERE
PEREARE
AEREHEZH
AEHBRENSE
BMEAE - K208
FIR1A K
EEYTERERE
EREBDAEE
AE At 2 E A
(TAgE) -

(i) Derivative financial instruments were classified as financial iy BEEREGFE
assets at FVPL under IAS 39. These assets continue to be Al & 395 7
measured at FVPL under IFRS 9. YERMTIASE

REDNAEFE
BEHEFFAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont d)

a Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont d)

For an explanation of how the Group classifies and measures
financial assets and recognises related gains and losses under

IFRS 9, see respective accounting policy notes in notes |(g), (h),

(m)(), (p) and (s).

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities remain
the same. The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities at |
January 2018 have not been impacted by the initial application
of IFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any financial

asset or financial liability at FVPL at | January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont d)

b. Credit losses

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with the
“expected credit loss” (ECL) model. The ECL model requires
an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under

the “incurred loss” accounting model in IAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont d)

b, Credlt losses (Contd)

The Group applies the new ECL model to the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
restricted and pledged cash, cash and cash equivalents,

trade and other receivables); and

- financial guarantee contracts issued (see note | (m)(i));

and
- lease receivables.

For further details on the Group's accounting policy for

accounting for credit losses, see note [(m)(i).

No material additional loss allowance was recognised as a

result of this change in accounting policy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont d)

C Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of
IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as described

below:

= Information relating to comparative periods has not
been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the adoption of IFRS
9 are recognised in retained earnings as at | January
2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under IAS 39 and thus may

not be comparable with the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to IFRS 9,

Prepayment features with negative compensation (Cont d)

c Transition (Cont d)

= The assessments for determination of the business
model within which a financial asset is held have been
made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at | January 2018 (the date of initial application
of IFRS 9 by the Group).

- If, at the date of initial application, the assessment of
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would have involved undue
cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has been recognised for

that financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©

Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue and some costs from contracts with customers. [FRS |5
replaces IAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and IAS ||, Construction contracts,

which specified the accounting for construction contracts.

IFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty

of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect transition method
and has recognised the cumulative effect of initial application as
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at | January 2018.
Therefore, comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under IAS || and IAS [8. As allowed
by IFRS 15, the Group has applied the new requirements only to

contracts that were not completed before | January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EBEASHBERE)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd) () BHBENEH(Z)
(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd) (i) ERHBHEEEREISH

The following table summarises the impact of transition to IFRS 15 on

retained eamings and the related tax impact at | January 2018:

[BEF&#YE (%)

TRINRBEZ BB % 35R
LRI 5554 20184 | A
| BRRB B H R AARE TR
A

=

RMB’000
ARBTR
Retained earnings REEA
Capitalisation of sales commissions HERENERL 3,733
Related tax HBHE (560)
Net increase in retained eamnings
at | January 2018 K218 | A | BRB AN K FIE N 3,173

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes on previous

accounting policies are set out below:

a Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from construction contracts and
provision of services was recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods was generally recognised at a point
in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods

had passed to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

a Timing of revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
This may be at a single point in time or over time. IFRS 15
identifies the following three situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being transferred over

time:

A. When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity's

performance, as the entity performs;

B.  When the entity's performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced:;

C. When the entity's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

Timing of revenue recognition (Cont'd)

If the contract terms and the entity's activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, then under IFRS |5 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that is considered in determining when the transfer of control

Ooccurs.

The adoption of IFRS |5 does not have a significant impact
on when the Group recognises revenue from property
management and other services (see note | (w) (iii)). However,
the timing of revenue recognition for sales of properties is

affected as follow:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

a

Timing of revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Sales of properties: the Group's property development
activities are carried out in Mainland China. Taking into account
the contract terms, the Group's business practice and the legal
and regulatory environment of Mainland China, the property
sales contracts do not meet the criteria for recognising
revenue over time and therefore revenue from property sales
continues to be recognised at a point in time. Previously the
Group recognised revenue from property sales upon the
delivery of the property to customers, which was taken to be
the point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the property were transferred to the customer. Under the
transfer-of-control approach in IFRS 15, revenue from property
sales is generally recognised when the property is delivered to
the customer, which is the point in time when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHETY - HUARBFIT)
| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EBEASHBERE)
() EFEENEE(E)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) ERHBEHREEREISH

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

[EF&EHKE (%)

a Timing of revenue recognition (Cont'd) a, Wz EREVFHE ()
This change in accounting policy had no material impact on R20I18FI1 A8 -
opening balances as at | January 2018. However, in future SHBREELHED
periods it may have a material impact, depending on the timing BRETEEATE -
of completion of the Group's property development projects. AR - R OREARE AT B2

SHAKENFER
BETRERELE
N7 X

b. Significant financing component BEAHHERX 7

IFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for
the time value of money when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in advance of revenue

recognition or significantly deferred.

ﬁﬁ ERKEER
ARERELIARE
e R B’
BREIERE S 15519
EREBRREEER

EZBEFLHE -
Previously, the Group only applied such a policy when W AEERRE
payments were significantly deferred, which was not common A BE R (AR5
in the Group's arrangement with its customers. The Group EEAEFRNTH
did not apply such a policy when payments were received in WAER)RBULRK

advance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHRRI - IUARKIIT)
EAEHBRE)
BHBENEEH(E)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) I

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd) (c)

(i) ERHBEHREEREISH

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

[EF&EHKE (%)
Significant financing component (Cont d) b BAHEEALG (&)
It is common for the Group to receive payments significantly in ARAEELHEER
advance when properties are marketed by the Group while the RWE - MEZWED
property is still under construction. In this situation, depending RREZIRE
on market conditions, the Group may require the customers AEEKIKEER

to pay off the full consideration within an agreed frame while
developments are still ongoing, rather than on competition
of relevant properties. Such advance payment schemes
result in contract liabilities being recognised throughout the
remaining property development period for the full amount
of the contract price. In addition, the contract liabilities will be
increased by the amount of interest expense being accrued

by the Group to reflect the effect of any significant financing

PHRESTEEER
B-HUEERT R
BmHEER ARE
AJREEREFPRASR
AT (A28
BAMENHES) RN
EREAN N 2B Y
B ZERNHRGE

benefit obtained from the customers during the period BYEHNABENEME
between the payment date and the completion date of FermE R BMAR
delivery. As this accrual increases the amount of the contract BRERD AR -
liabilities during the period of development, it therefore o AR B EKIE
increases the amount of revenue recognised when control of AL BTN E

the completed property is transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

Significant financing component (Cont d)

Where payment schemes include a significant financing
component, the transaction price is adjusted to separately
account for this component. In the case of payments in
advance, such adjustment results in interest expense being
accrued by the Group to reflect the effect of the financing
benefit obtained by the Group from the customers during
the period between the payment date and the completion
date of legal assignment. This accrual increases the amount
of the contract liability during the period of construction,
and therefore increases the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed property is transferred to
the customer. The interest is expensed as accrued unless it
is eligible to be capitalised under IAS 23, Borrowing costs, in

accordance with the policies set out in note | (y).

As a result of this change in policy, the Group has made
adjustments which increased inventories and contract liabilities
by RMB62,769,000 at | January 2018. As all of the accrued
interest was eligible to be capitalised into projects still under
development, this change in policy has had no effect on

retained earnings as at | January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEEI - BUAREIIT)
| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EBEASHBERE)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd) () BHBENEH(Z)

(i) ERHBEHREEREISH

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

[EF&EHKE (%)

Sales commissions payable related to property sales contracts BHERNEBAE

HERE
The Group previously recognised sales commissions payable AEBZAREYE
related to property sales contracts as selling and distribution HERNABMEN
costs when they were incurred. Under IFRS |5, the Group HEREREERR
is required to capitalise these sales commissions as costs RAHEM D HK
of obtaining contracts when they are incremental and are Ao RERER AR
expected to be recovered, unless the expected amortisation HFREBFISHK B
period is one year or less from the date of initial recognition of FEHBHARENX
the asset, in which case the sales commissions can be expensed BRREERERN—
when incurred. Capitalised commissions are charged to profit FHUT HERE
or loss when the revenue from the related property sale is AIREZEERGFAR
recognised and are included as selling and distribution costs at A BAREBRER
that time. ZEHEREEARL

RBBAORHKA

As a result of this change in accounting policy, the Group has
capitalised sales commissions payable related to property sales
contracts amounting to RMB3,733,000, increased deferred tax
liabilities by RMB560,000 and increased retained earnings by
RMB3, 173,000 at | January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

d

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under IFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group
has an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note |(w)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the promised
goods and services in the contract, then the entitlement
to consideration is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a
contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised when a
customer pays consideration, or is contractually required to
pay consideration and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. For a single contract
with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on

a net basis (see note 1(0)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

d

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities (Cont d)

To reflect these changes in presentation, the Group has made
the following adjustment at | January 2018, as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 15:

“Receipts in advance” amounting to RMBI,441,910,000 which
was previously included in trade and other payables (see note

24) is now included under contract liabilities (see note 25).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

e Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts reported in
respect of the year ended 3/December 2018 as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 15 on | January 2018

The following tables summarise the estimated impact of
adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, by
comparing the amounts reported under IFRS 5 in these
consolidated financial statements with estimates of the
hypothetical amounts that would have been recognised
under IAS 18 and IAS || if those superseded standards had
continued to apply to 2018 instead of IFRS 5.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

EXSHBEE)
BHBENED(E)

(i) ERHBHEEEREISH
[BEFE# Kz /(&)

R2018FI /I8 &
BRG] 75 iR 2B A
ZISHHEZE2018F
12831 BiFFEAZ
B % Bl ELR
FENKE

TERERBREZE
BEMBREPRE
IR A B 4R 5 22 QI 28
ISEEHHESBERA
EREER g E8
F 185 RER g%
B | SRR RE
SEOMFB(REZ
EREMANTELE
BARI8F » MF
7 B R Bt 7 R 5 2 A
£ 155 )ETHR
BRET R EEAE IS
TEASEEZE20I8
F1A3BLEEM
me M BEROGET

B/ 488
FE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EBEASHBERE)
Changes in accounting policies (Contd) () BHBENEH(Z)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

(i) ERHBHEEEREISH
[BEFE# Kz /(&)

e Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of
the adoption of IFRS 15 on | January 2018 (Cont'd)

K2018F | AI1H #F
AR B T AR A E A
EISHEHEZ20/18F

12831 AiFFERZ
RO BT ELER
FENRE(E)

These tables show only those line items significantly impacted

by the adoption of IFRS 15:

ZERBEIRE K
A BB P 7 S 5 A R
FISRAFEERN
173\ER :

Amounts Difference:
reported in Hypothetical ~ Estimated impact
accordance  amounts under

with IFRS 15 IASsI8and Il IFRS 15 0n 2018
R

REERMYE ERSHERN REENF 5K
BERF 15T FI8HERF K H20I18FH

of adoption of

E2HNER HERREE -H8-2
® ®) (A)-®)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARETR ARETR
Line items in the consolidated RERMER TR REER
statement of profit or loss and ESRMEITENEE
other comprehensive income 0I18F 12831 BLEEE
for year ended 3| December AOHEEREMEE
2018 impacted by the adoption WaEKRATRER !
of IFRS 15:
Revenue Wk 2842202 2793304 48,898
Cost of sales HERKAR (1,699,285) (1,650,387) (48,898)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)
[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
©

Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d)

| EXSHBR(E)
) EHBEN2EH(E)

(i) ERHBEHREEREISH

[EF&EHKE (%)

e Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts reported e R2018F | HIH #
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of RET BB 5 &2
the adoption of IFRS 15 on | January 2018 (Cont'd) FISHEHEZ20/8F

12431 BAILFEHTZ
B2 B las EEH
FENRE ()
Amounts Difference:
reported in Hypothetical ~ Estimated impact
accordance  amounts under of adoption of
with IFRS 15 IASsI8and Il IFRS I50n2018
EE:
KRB
REEMTYE ENSHERN REENE 5K
RERAE 155 FIBKRFIIE  H20I18FH
2HNER HEREE g
*) ®) (A-B)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TFR AR¥TR
Gross profit E 1,142,917 1,142,917 —
Selling and distribution costs ~ SHE R SEAKA (110,978) (112,297) 1319
Profit from operations before REYX A AE KR A
fair value gain on investment  AZ& F 8
properties 640,853 639,534 1,319
Profit before taxation BRBEAT R 416,620 415,301 1,319
Income tax FiEH (306,733) (306,063) (670)
Profit for the year ERFE 109,887 109,238 649
Profit attributable to equity A R4 B R FE(G FI
shareholders of the company 106,995 106,346 649
Earnings per share SREF
Basic E-YN 27 26 0.1
Diluted 3L 27 26 0.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EBEASHBERE)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd) () BHBENEH(Z)
(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd) (i) ERHBHEEEREISH
[BEF&# Wi |(£)
e Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts reported e R20/18F | A1 H K

in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of
the adoption of IFRS 15 on | January 2018 (Cont'd)

BN G 75 iR 2B A
ZISHHEZ2018F
12831 BiFFEAZ
B % Bl ELR
FENRE(E)

Difference:

Amounts Estimated

reported Hypothetical impact

in accordance amounts under  of adoption of

with IFRS I5  IASsI8and Il IFRS 15 0n 2018
EE:
RMERA
REEMNYE ENSHERN REENZ 5K
BERUFI5F FI8HERF K H20I18FH
E2HNER HEREHE he 2
(A) ®) (A-®)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR AR AR¥TR
Line items in the consolidated [ 44 B B} Bt 7% 3R & % Al
statement of profit or loss FISTEMZTLENEE
and other comprehensive WI8FE 1231 HEEE
income for year ended EftEEREM2EK
31 December 2018 impacted #wmFRATRIER :
by the adoption of IFRS 15:
Total comprehensive income  FEREMZEELRA
for the year 46,960 46,31 649
Total comprehensive income AN Bl 2 IR S FE A
attributable to the equity FHRABE
shareholders of the company 44,068 43,419 649
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EBEASHBERE)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd) () BHBENEEHE)
(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd) (i) EIRHBEEEREISH
[EF&EHKE (&)
e Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts reported e R2018F1A18 &
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of BT 5 B R
the adoption of IFRS 15 on [ January 2018 (Cont'd) ZISHHEZ20/18F
12431 HILFZHTZ
ez B lGaEL L
FENRE(E)

Difference:

Amounts Estimated

reported Hypothetical impact

in accordance  amounts under of adoption of
with [FRS I5 IASsI8and Il IFRS 150n2018

R

e

BEERGE ERSHEN REERE ISR
WEERE 5% FISHEREIIHE  H20I8FMH
EHNEE NERREE CHE%

(A) (B) (A)-(B)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARET

Line items in the consolidated R R 4 2 PR B 7 4 5 2
statement of financial position BISHRMEFENEE

as at 3| December 2018 2018F 12 A3 HIEEE

impacted by the adoption BOEBRRRAT

of IFRS 15: NER ¢
Inventories and other contract costs 17 & & H & A A 7484547 7449127 35420
Total current assets REBEELAE 11,045,370 11,009,950 35420
Trade and other payables B5 REMENTIE 2923528 4736623 (1,813,095)
Contract liabilties AHEE 1,843,463 = 1843463
Total current liabilities TBAEEE 7,354,244 7,323,876 30,368
Total assets less BEERABEE

current liabilities 7216816 7.211,764 5,052
Deferred tax liabilities ERHIBERE 103,349 102,119 1230
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELRE 1,937,922 1,936,692 1,230
Net assets EERE 5,278,894 5,275,072 3822
Reserves [ 5,207,006 5,203,184 3822
Total equity attributable to equity AR FIERRREGESZLE

shareholders of the Company 5,238,831 5,235,109 3,822
Total equity BEEE 5,278,894 5,275,072 3822
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EBEASHBERE)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Contd) () BHBENEH(Z)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

e Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of
the adoption of IFRS 15 on [ January 2018 (Contd)

Amounts
reported

in accordance

(i) ERHBHEEEREISH
[BEFE# Kz /(&)

e. R20/8FIAIA K
BB BT 3R 5 2B A
ZISHHET20/18F
12831 AiFFRATZ
a2 BT EER
FENKE(E)

Difference:
Estimated
Hypothetical impact

amounts under  of adoption of

with IFRS 15 IASsI8and Il IFRS I50n 2018
B
KRB
REBBRYE EREER REEUFISH
BERUFI5F FI8KERFIIK  H20I18FH
EHNER NEREE FHEZ
(A) (8) (A)-(B)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR ARETR
Line items in the reconciliation R 5 4 1 PR B 7 4 5 2 )
of profit before taxation to ERMEITLENEE
cash generated from operations ~ 20184F 12 31 HILF[E
for year ended 3| December BRERAFBREEXY
2018 (note 23(b)) impacted by FEREHENT
the adoption of IFRS I5: HE (KEE23(b))
Profit before taxation BRBLAT R 416,620 415,301 1,319
Increase in inventories and other 775} H A& 415K A 3E A1
contract costs 616,363 580,943 35420
Increase in trade and other B 5 R E R FIAE M
payables 201,953 577476 (375,523)
Increase in contract liabilities & 48 EE N 338,784 . 338,784
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Contd)

(i)

IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date of the
transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part
of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity receives or pays

advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the
date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability arising
from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising the related
item, the date of the transaction for each payment or receipt should
be determined in this way. The adoption of IFRIC 22 does not have
any material impact on the financial position and the financial resutt of

the Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls

an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns

through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has

power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont d)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes |(q) or (r) depending on the nature of the

labiliy.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont d)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note I(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate and joint venture (see note | (e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(m)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as

held for sale) (see note |(2)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or company has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management, including

participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and

have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale) (see note |(z)). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate or joint venture that forms part
of the Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the investee's net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes |(f)
and (m)(iii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees” other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Cont d)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the
joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or the

joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or
vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment

continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

| BRSHBEE)
H HE
B () B () MES -

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the

amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair

value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;

over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities

measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill

arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,

or groups of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

| (m)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable

amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or

loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(g)  Equity investments @ RERE
The Group's policies for equity investments, other than investments in AEBUEERE(BRHEFRA
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set out below: BELERGELENREMNK
REZIOT -
Equity investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group BERBERARAEZBE LE
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The investments are initially stated ZIRE 2 BT ARER /R EHER -
at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those ZERBRELA A ENEEEE
investments measured at FVPL for which transaction costs are recognised RGEAHE - ERAREHER
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines HEPFAZHERNERRE
fair value of financial instruments, see note 33(f). These investments are oM BEREASENAET SR
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their classification. TERRENRE  F2HMT
(N - ZEREBE(RTHBRERR
THH A
(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (A) R2018F 151 HEEHFH
BE
Investments other than equity investments BoRELIRE
Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into the AEBRANFEERRED
following measurement categories: BRTIIGEER
= amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of - BHEMA WMEAR
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of BB MARREAD
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment is Rene HEgRA
calculated using the effective interest method (see note | (w) EGEAERAEMN
(vii)). R REMBEMN

=)
WA T BB =
Eat BRI (w)

(vi)) 5 3
= fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment does not - WRESKEERER
meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or RAGFERERANE
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the investment AAEMZEBKA(R
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss. B)NREREAR

HEERHSEHHA
HHBE  REMD
REEH(BENE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Equity investments (Cont d)

(A)  Policy applicable from [ January 2018 (Contd)

Equity investments

An equity investment is classified as FVPL unless the equity investment
is not held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate the investment
at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer's perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained eamings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOC], are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set out

in note | (wW)(v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Equity investments (Cont d)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to | January 2018

Investments held for trading were classified as financial assets
measured at FVPL. Any attributable transaction costs were recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being

recognised in profit or loss.

Investments which did not fall into any of the above categories were
classified as available-for-sale financial assets. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value was remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve (recycling).
Dividend income from equity investments was recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policies set out in notes |(w)(v). When
the investments were derecognised or impaired (see note |(m)(i) -
policy applicable prior to | January 2018), the cumulative gain or loss

recognised in equity was reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on

remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held
under a leasehold interest (see note I(I)) to eamn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for future

use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from

investment properties is accounted for as described in note | (w)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease to
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
[(1)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied to other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease

payments are accounted for as described in note | (1).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note | (m)(iii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads

and borrowing costs (see note | (y)).

Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when it is ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against

construction in progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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Estimated

residual value as

a percentage

Buildings
Motor vehicles
Office equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and

impairment losses (see note | (m)(iii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date

they are available for use and their estimated/contracted useful lives are as

follows:
Software 5-10 years
Franchise granted I5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a

right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in retumn

for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

()

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note | (i)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Leased assets (Contd)

(i)

Obperating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment property (see note

[ (i), or is held for development for sale (see note |(n)).

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and
it is clear that the transaction is established at fair value, any profit
or loss shall be recognised immediately. If the sale price is below fair
value, any profit or loss shall be recognised immediately except that,
if the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at below
market price, it shall be deferred and amortised in proportion to the
lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to
be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value
shall be deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is

expected to be used.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Leased assets (Contd)

(i) Assets leased out under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title may or may not

eventually be transferred.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and initial
direct costs is included in the statement of financial position as loans
and accounts receivable. Any unguaranteed residual value is also
recognised at the inception of the lease. The difference between the
sum of the minimum lease payment receivables, initial direct costs,
the unguaranteed residual value and their present value is recognised
as unearned finance income. Uneamed finance income is recognised

over the period of the lease using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables

)

Policy applicable from | January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit

losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
restricted and pledged cash, cash and cash equivalents,

trade and other receivables); and

- lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity
investments measured at FVPL, and derivative financial assets,

are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all expected
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash

flows that the Group expects to receive).

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

BEREHBEKE)
(m) ERABBRREERE
() ZHIAREEENZTEY

ERER
A) R20/8FIHIH &

BB R

AEEHTIIER#®
REHEABENE
B -

- REBHERAH
ENGCREE
(BEXRH R
EERRE
RekBeSF
EW- BEHRK
H o & U &
B): &

HE YA -

BAAEFENESR
BE(BRRAAER
EREBHFAZY
Bast ENESRE
EOTESREE)BA
ETRREREEF
Ha

BHERERHE

RHMERBERER
5 18 0 X o0 #E ik
it EREBRRUM
BERFAHTERN
REFEW : Riza
2 MRARENR
emERHASER
FINREREZE
HER) o

pi

o

—~

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &3k

205



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd) m) ERABEEREEREE)
() Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables () ZEBIARHEEUNEL
(Cont'd) ERAER(E)
(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Contd) A) K2018F1H1H &
BROBE (&)
Measurement of ECLs (Cont d) EHEAEBRGE
(&)
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following WBERFEBEKX A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Contd)

Measurement of ECLs (Cont'd)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed

to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about past events,

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

= |2-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the 12 months

after the reporting date; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Contd)

Measurement of ECLs (Cont'd)

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the expected

lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs
on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic conditions

at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Contd)

Measurement of ECLs (Cont'd)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

*

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont d)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
(including a loan commitment) has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising investments (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Contd)

Significant increases in credit risk (Cont d)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition:

= failure to make payments of principal or interest on their

contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if

available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

= existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor's ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

*

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Cont d)

Significant increases in credit risk (Cont @)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument's credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt
investments that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Contd)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note | (w)(vi) is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial

asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have

occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Contd)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Cont @)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the

following observable events:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd) m) ERABEEREEREE)
() Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables () ZEBIARHEEUNEL
(Cont'd) ERAER(E)

(A)  Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Contd) A) K2018F1H1H &

BENBH(E)

MEBARGERE

Basis of calculation of interest income (Cont d)

(&)
— the disappearance of an active market for a security - HRBITAH
because of financial difficulties of the issuer. 3B R IR B
EH R ™
5% -
White-off policy MR
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset and lease ERBRER LT

EHE AREAE
MHE(BrR2H) &

receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent

that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally

the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not REEMBREE-

have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient ZEABBLHRER

cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. SERTREBALE
BEXAELRHR
T RE N RARIRR
BEEMENTER

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written & 12 I /0] 5% A 35 2

off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss BERKESEERE

in the period in which the recovery occurs. RRPHERRHNER
@ o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Contd)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to [ january 2018

Prior to | January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used to
measure impairment losses on financial assets not classified as
at FVPL (eg. trade and other receivables, and available-for-sale
investments). Under the “incurred loss” model, an impairment
loss was recognised only when there was objective evidence of

impairment. Objective evidence of impairment included:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

EABHRE(E)
(m) ERERREERE)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) I

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables () EHBIARHMEEUNEHN
(Cont’d) EREE (&)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to | January 2018 (Cont d) B) K2018E1H1H A
BHABE (E)
If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was WFEEZERR
determined and recognised as follows: BRI T A I
BITRERBR :

For trade and other receivables, lease receivables HRESHRH
and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, b, & 4T 5738 -
impairment loss was measured as the difference ME RN KA
between the asset's carrying amount and the present RH R E i
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the A R K S
financial asset's original effective interest rate, where MEE WA
the effect of discounting was material. This assessment BN EBE
was made collectively where these financial assets X REE#
shared similar risk characteristics, such as similar past NEEZRE
due status, and had not been individually assessed as BEENEHE
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which ERERN X
were assessed for impairment collectively were based FT B 3R O fif 5T
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk ARBRERE
characteristics similar to the collective group. REMNEERT

E-mzEs

MEEABA

RS &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
(Cont'd)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to | January 2018 (Cont d)

— Ifin a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreased and the decrease could be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss was reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
was only recognised to the extent that it did not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss

been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd) m) ERABEEREEREE)
() Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables () ZEBIARHEEUNEL
(Cont'd) EHEBE)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to | January 2018 (Cont d) B) K2018F1H1H &

BRABE (E)
When the recovery of a trade debtor or other financial fisd 3 A 4 85 AX
assets carried at amortised cost was considered R 51| B 19 & U
doubtful but not remote, associated impairment losses R H M
were recorded using an allowance account. When the BB E A
Group was satisfied that recovery was remote, the B M 4 R % 3
amount considered irrecoverable was written off against A T8 B 3 JE
the gross carrying amount of those assets directly. B Al
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged ERNRES
to the allowance account were reversed against the BUBBERA

allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables

(Contd)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to | January 2018 (Cont d)

For available-for-sale investments, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of
the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised within “trade and
other payables” at fair value, which is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm's length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group's policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received or

receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the

guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (Cont d)

*

Policy applicable from | fanuary 2018 (Contd)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs
on the financial guarantees are determined to be higher than
the amount carried in “trade and other payables” in respect
of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A |12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and the same

assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in

note | (m)(i) apply.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (Cont d)

*

®)

Policy applicable from | fanuary 2018 (Contd)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks

specific to the cash flows.

Policy applicable prior to | January 2018

Prior to | January 2018, a provision would be recognised if and
when it became probable that (i) the holder of the guarantee
would call upon the Group under the guarantee and (ii) the
amount of the claim on the Group was expected to exceed
the amount carried in “trade and other payables” in respect of

the guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Intemal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
intangible assets;
goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company's statement of

financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | EXGHBERE)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd) m) ERABEEREEREE)
(iii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Cont d) (i) RMHFRBEEREE)

Recognition of impairment losses BRREEE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying BEERHMER®
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it EHEUNREER
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses BE A S R
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated REBERERE

first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Contd)

(iv)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an intenim financial report in compliance with I1AS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the

financial year (see notes |(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year to

which the interim period relates.

(n)  Inventories and other contract costs

()

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, in the process of production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in

the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value as

follows:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(n)  Inventories and other contract costs (Contd)

(i) Inventories (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b BEEI - HIUARIIT)
| BAEHEERE)
(n) BEREMEHREE)
() FE(E)

—  Property development - DERE
Cost and net realisable values and determined as follows: RARA SR FHE
EWF
- Properties under development for sale - REEEME
The cost of properties under development for sale FREERMEMNKE
comprises specifically identified cost, including the (RECTREER )
acquisition cost of land use right, aggregate cost of A LM ERE
development, materials and supplies, wages and other MRER A BRE -
direct expenses, an appropriate proportion of overheads R K M e K
and borrowing costs capitalised (see note |(y)). Net A IERHEMEE
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less X @ElzE
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred BEERARER(LER
in selling the property. AR B FE () e
o 2R FER R
BB E T TRA
R EMERELHN
MARNEE o
- Completed properties held for sale —  BEGFEERImE
The cost of completed properties held for sale BIEHEES T TIME
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and M ABIERAEES
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their R~ B AR LG
present location and condition. BEEELHELE
RS RS E M
H AR o
In the case of completed properties developed by the METTIMERANE
Group which comprise of multiple units which are EXRNBIEZEE
sold individually, the cost of each unit is determined by BHEWNSEMN A&
apportionment of the total development costs for that 1 28157 B P 7N 30 3% 2%
development project to each unit on a per square foot BHEEMNZEBAKK
basis, unless another basis is more representative of the BIESTEHFREES
cost of the specific unit. Net realisable value represents KREEEEUmE
the estimated selling price less costs to be incurred in T BRIEBHEER
selling the property. B B 955 B B0
Ko IR FER/MG
AEERAELNE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(n)  Inventories and other contract costs (Cont d)

(i) Inventories (Contd)
- Other inventories

Other inventories mainly include low-value consumption goods
and goods for sale. They are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue

is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in

which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Inventories and other contract costs (Cont d)

(i)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a

customer which are not capitalised as inventory (see note | (n)(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would
not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained (e.g. an
incremental sales commission). Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs relate to revenue
which will be recognised in a future reporting period and the costs
are expected to be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract

are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly to
an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used to provide goods or
services in the future; and are expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to the
customer and other costs that are incurred only because the Group
entered into the contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors).
Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment or intangible assets, are

expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Inventories and other contract costs (Cont d)

(i)

Other contract costs (Cont d)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are recognised
to the extent that the carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services
to which the asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have not yet been recognised

as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised. The

accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out in note | (w).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration

before the Group recognises the related revenue (see note [(w)). A

contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional

right to receive consideration before the Group recognises the related

revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised

(see note | (p)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©)

Contract liabilities (Cont d)

When the contract includes a significant financing component, the contract
balance includes interest accrued under the effective interest method (see

note I(w)).

Policy prior to | January 2018

In the comparative period, amount received before the control of properties
was transferred were presented as “receipts in advance” under “trade and
other payables”. These balances have been reclassified on | January 2018 as

shown in note 24 (see note | (c)(ii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an unconditional right

to receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method

less allowance for credit losses (see note | (m)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(9)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for

borrowing costs (see note | (y)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of

discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are

assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note | (m)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)  Employee benefits

()

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Obligation for contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are included in

properties for sale not yet recognised as an expense.

Equity settled share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the equity
settled share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)

Employee benefits (Contd)

(i)

Equity settled share-based payment (Contd)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company's shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the equity settled share-based
payment reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred

tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they

relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

BEREHEEKE)
v EEBFE)
(i) HERZEELRGBEELY
& (&)

i

GEONNERNESNLSE
HEBIRERR - RERER
AXAERBERAREE &
AEBEFANEBRARTA
/L@ﬁﬂ/ﬁtﬂ FEMREZE 5
EERFEBBRMER G
AEg - YHUEREEN
B RERE M RFEFHED
HERE - REERY &
HERRAXMEEELR
B AR B EREDN
ERHSB(WHUEREE
AR BB N SRR 1
HAEEE)  BERKE
EREADRRNTEER
FEGREMERINER
ERIRRSN - st & BRI IAME
mAEE ARG RERN K
FERR  EEERERET
FERSERZRTEE)
FEREER(ENSEE
BARENE) AL -

S5

FE ST e R IR I8 R TR
HEEHEARBES - BEFHIELE
Lmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

WL/\

BfZFREERE 2K

E%%EE%%\ﬁEmEHﬁ

- AIBEBEHRED HIRE 2 ER

ﬁ%iﬁﬁ%%m B e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)

Income tax (Cont d)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)

Income tax (Cont d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note |(i), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are

recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)

Income tax (Cont d)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(v)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

()

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from
the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the

contract and the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(W)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of
g00ds, the provision of services or the use by others of the Group's assets

under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred
to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant financing

component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(W)  Revenue and other income (Contd)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition policies

are as follows:

()

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties developed for sale in
the ordinary course of business is recognised when the property is
delivered to customers, which is the point in time when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits of the property. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in the statement of financial position under contract liabilities

(see note 1(0)).

When payment schemes include a significant financing component, the
transaction price is adjusted to separately account for this component.
In the case of payments in advance, such adjustment results in interest
expense being accrued by the Group to reflect the effect of the
financing component of the financing benefit obtained by the Group
from the customers during the period between the payment date
and the date of delivery of the properties. This accrual increases the
balance of the contract liability during the period of construction, and
therefore increases the amount of revenue recognised when control of
the completed property is transferred to the customer. The interest is
expensed as accrued unless it is eligible to be capitalised under IAS 23,

Borrowing costs, in accordance with the policies set out in note | (y).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(W)

Revenue and other income (Cont d)

()

(i)

(i)

Sales of properties (Contd)

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of properties was
recognised upon the delivery of the property to customers, which was
taken to be the point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the property had passed to the buyer. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition were included in the statement of financial position under
trade and other payables and no interest expense was accrued on
payments received in advance. As a result of the change in accounting
policy for accruing interest on payments in advance, adjustments have

been made to opening balances as at | January 2018 (see note | (c)(ii)).

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.

Service fee income

Service fee income in relation to property management service,
advertising service and other ancillary services are recognised when

such services are provided to customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(w)  Revenue and other income (Contd) (w) WRER(E)
(iv)  Finance lease income (iv) BEHESUA

Finance lease income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the net
investment of the finance lease or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the net investment of the finance lease.

(v)  Dividends v)

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(vi)  Interest income (vi)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset
(see note | (m)(i)).Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(W)

(x)

Revenue and other income (Cont d)

(vii)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of assets are initially recognised
as deferred income and subsequently deducted from the carrying
amount of assets and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss when the inventories are sold or transferred to investment
properties upon meeting the relevant conditions, if any, attaching to

them.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at

the dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (Contd)

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred,

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

@

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a
group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will be transferred in

the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the above criteria for classification as held for sale are met,
regardless of whether the Group still retain a non-controlling interest in the

subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of
the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for investment properties
which are measured at fair value), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group are concerned are investment properties. These assets, even if
held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the policy

set out in note | (i).

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As
long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not

depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(aa) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

i The entity and the Group are members of the same Grou
Y p P
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(aa) Related parties (Cont d)

()

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies: (Contd)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (2)(a).

(vii) A person identified in (z)(a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

vii)  The entity, or any member of a Group of which it is a part,
Y Y P P
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(bb) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(@)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has

made the following accounting judgement:

Classification between inventories, owner-occupied properties and

investment properties

The Group develops property projects with an initial intention to be held
for sale and retains a portion of properties held for own use. Judgement
is made by management in determining whether a property is designated
as a property held for sale, owner-occupied property or investment
properties. The Group considers its intention for holding the properties at
the early development stage of the related properties. During the course
of development, the related properties under development are accounted
for as (1) properties under development included in current assets if the
properties are intended for sale after their completion; (2) owner-occupied
properties included in properties, plant and equipment if the properties are
intended for own use; and (3) investment properties under development
if the properties are intended to be held to eam rentals and/or for capital

appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

2

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes |1, 3| and 33 contain information about the assumptions and their

risk factors relating to valuation of investment property, fair value of share

options granted and financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

Recognition of government grants

Government grants are initially recognised by the Group as a deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position when an
amount is received and are subsequently recognised or amortised
in profit or loss on a systematic basis when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the specific conditions
attached to the government grants. The Group is required to fulfil the
requirements agreed with the local governments when conducting
the related infrastructure construction and the Group assesses
whether the conditions attached to the government grants are met
based on management's best estimates, particularly in interpreting the
fulfilment of conditions which are not clearly stated in the respective

agreements.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

2

St M Rt (F)
e AR EE XN RIR

(b)

RRARENRME

MARERERIANRAENR

ERLERE

RRERRREOE BN T

| ~31 %33

EERE S

HipERHRRIT -

()

BT

7R 55 B B T T 4 B 1
AR BRARDTERA
BIEWA - B85 BHEE R
SERR TR BN BN
BHERAGEEERRA
MRS E - ARERET
HAERRERERBATS
B3t 75 B 56 < BE AR
CEREERENZEM
i AMEREEMEBNE
PR S GEYE - LEREMR
8 19 7 3 M FA B R R TR 1T 15

HEER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(i)

Provision for PRC LAT

As explained in note 6(a), the Group has estimated, made and
included in tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual PRC
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects and the tax
authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for
PRC LAT is calculated. Significant judgment is required in determining
the level of provision, as the calculation of which depends on the
ultimate tax determination. Given the uncertainties of the calculation
basis of PRC LAT as interpreted by the local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than those estimated at the
end of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the actual
outcomes/estimates will impact the income tax provision in the

period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(i)

Inventories

As explained in note I(n), the Group's land held for future
development, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group's recent experience and the
nature of the subject property, the Group makes estimates of the
selling price, the costs of completion in case for properties under

development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, provision for completed properties held for sale, properties
held for future development and under development for sale may be
resulted. Such provision requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which

such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Given the volatility of the PRC property market and the distinctive
nature of individual properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs
and revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the provision would

affect profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(iv)

)

Impairment for trade and other receivables

The Group expected credit losses (ECL) for trade and other
receivables resulting from the inability of the customers to make the
required payments. The Group bases the estimates on the aging of
the trade and other receivable balance, customer creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual provisions would be higher

than estimated.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised and measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. In determining the carrying amounts
of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a significant level of judgment
exercised by the directors. Any change in such assumptions and
judgment would affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to

be recognised and hence the net profit in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(v

(vi)

Recognition of construction costs on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under
development during construction stage and will be transferred to
profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of the properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs and other costs
relating to the sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management's best estimates. Any variations on
the development costs upon final settlement will impact cost of sales

included in profit or loss in future years.

Determining the deferred taxation on investment properties

The Group has leased out certain of the completed properties to
third parties whereby the directors consider that such arrangement is
not temporary. In the circumstance, the Group has decided to treat
those properties as investment properties (and reclassifying them
from completed properties held for sale to investment properties)
because it is the Group's intention to hold these properties in long-

term for rental income and/or capital appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Cont'd) 2 EIHERMGEHE)
(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d) b) RAFEERZRNRRE)

i) EEREYEZELHE

(vii) Determining the deferred taxation on investment properties

(Contd)

Under IAS 12, deferred tax is required to be measured with
reference to the tax consequences that would follow the manner
in which the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the
assets in question. In this regard, IAS |2 has a rebuttable presumption
that the carrying amount of investment property carried at fair value
under IAS 40, Investment property, will be recovered through sale.
This presumption is rebutted on a property-by-property basis if the
investment property in question is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.

In this connection, the Group has reviewed its investment property
portfolio on a regular basis and has concluded that as at 3| December
2018, the Group has determined that each of these properties
are held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time and consequently the presumption in IAS 12 is
rebutted for these properties. As a result, the Group has continued to
measure the deferred tax relating to these other properties using the
tax rate that would apply as a result of recovering their value through

use.

(%)

RIZEIRSEERIE 125 -
BB AR R D E B
BRABEREE A6
EEZHBRREE - Bt
mE - BERGEERE 125
SIA—TRA FEEZ B :
RZEIR G EAIF 105K
BYE WAREIRZEK
BYFREEMSBRNLE
K@ e kBRRAEBOES
ERARRE  BROZRE
NERANUMERN—BE
BREARA - MARAME
MR TERUAR BIEREZER
BYMFEABO KBRS
FEHE o

BUME  AEEEEHRE
BRRENFHELBHE
7 R2018F 128318
AEEEREREEENE
ETZEBEXTRER
BRARBEERENERE
BZBABDBENZ -
HZEMEREBEE 2%
Al 12RP 2R - At
AEEEERAREERR
AmkEEEzERTER
IHREFRZFEMYESE
ERERIA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

WERSBES
AEENIREBAETENMETR
BYRTOREENENRE  HER

= o

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

The principal activities of the Group are development, sales and operation of
commercial trade and logistics centres and residential properties in the Mainland

China.

\

B

BRAEHGREREZFTHENEEY
¥ DEEERBBAREEEERE
WS BARBA

Revenue represents income from sales of properties, property management
services income and rental income net of sales related taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

@@ WEDHFE

(@)  Disaggregation of revenue

RPANKGEETIRERIREE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major products

or service lines is as follows: BOBEMT
2018 2017
(Note)
(Bt zE)
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers R BmEERSE ISHEERMN
within the scope of IFRS 15 EFEHWE
— Sales of properties —MEHE 2,712,484 1,697,273
— Property management services —-MEEBRRE 57,458 49,664
— Others —Hfth 32,537 21,583
2,802,479 1,768,520
Revenue from other sources H At 2R B9 2
~ Rental income —HERA 39,723 23901
2,842,202 1,792,421
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. i ARBEERAZBEAEEER

ERBEBRSEREEANEIS
% BEZAZ  LBEERT
TEI - WREEER g ER
F I8 RBER G ERE 15
mE (RMEI(Q)) -

Under this method, the comparative information is not restated and was

prepared in accordance with IAS 18 and IAS || (see note |(c)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Contd)

(@)

Disaggregation of revenue (Contd)

The Group's customer base is diversified and include only one customer
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue. In
2018, revenue from sales of properties to this customer amounted to

approximately RMB1,032,429,000 (2017 Ni).

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial data
and information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and geographical
locations. No segment information is presented in respect of the Group's
operating segment as the Group is principally engaged in one segment in the
Mainland China. The Group does not operate in any other geographical or

business segment during the year.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from contracts

with customers in existence at the reporting date

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future
related to performance obligations that are unsatisfied at 31 December
2018.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

3 WERIBHE(E)

(2)

Wik ()

AEENEFEZZ L EHE
HP—2XPNR B AEEK
@A 0% £ o R20I18F + M
EEFPHENEMBREANAR
#1,032,429,0007T(2017F : &)

RARBERTAGKBERBERB RS
{3t 5 A B A S RS A5 I & (Y
EHOXE  AREEEHRARHT
HERERAYBHELER - M
RZSHBEREND A FRILED
BEREHABRRBENEDE
BEEE - ARNARERTERNY
TERE—EDH  HALEZ5K
SENEENTEN - FRALKHE
I MR E A b [ 3 R 7 0 BB AR

BHREANFEANEFSOMER
FAR A RERN RS

TREHBE0I18F 128318 H
ABITHBAEEEHR BERER
B UES

2018
RMB’000
ARBTR

Remaining performance obligations expected to be satisfied: BT EBAEERTR AT HRET
Within | year | A 1,030,138
Within | year to 2 years |22 454,479
Within 2 years to 3 years 2E3F 628,109
2,112,726
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Contd)

(b)

(©

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from contracts

with customers in existence at the reporting date (Cont d)

These amounts represent revenue expected to be recognised in the future
from pre-completion sales contracts for properties under development
entered into by the customers with the Group. These amounts include the
significant financing components of the pre-completion properties sales
contracts under which the Group obtains significant financing benefits from

the customers (see note | (w)(i)).

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS
I5 to its property management service contracts such that the above
information does not include information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it has a right to invoice, which corresponds directly to

the value to the customer of the Group's performance completed to date.

Total future minimum lease payments receivable by the Group

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group in future

periods as follows:

3

iR 2R E ()

(b)

BEREANFENTFESOMEH
BN RER WS (F)

ZECRIERERFEASERE
RMERT I METERHES N
RARERNKE - ZEeBRE
BERNEHRESONERRE
- AEEBEREFPREEAR
Bz (R 1(w)(i)) °

AEBRHENMEERRBANE
FABIR M RS £ RIS 155858 121
BRMERER L - g Ll &R
PEAEEAREALZREER
BEWREEER - MABKRE
AEBLZSTRABNEEFPNE
BEEZAR -

FEERKNARREEENRE
#

AEENRKBRREN RS B
EEM AR L EHERRNA
RREEENZTABMNT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Within | year | FR 23,140 35513
After | year but within 5 years | 1% - B5FR 73,373 66,434
After 5 years 5F% 31,813 53,547
128,326 155,494
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

OTHER INCOME 4 HftlA
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT ARETT
Government grants (i) BN #58 () 31,798 6,890
Unrealised fair value gain/(loss) from financial assets A7 B2 B8 A
measured at FVPL EHBREN
TREENRES
ArfEkER/ (EE) 20,757 (22,446)
Net gain from disposal of financial assets HERAAEFEEHEEHA
measured at FVPL EHRENEREAENRGFE 28,772 127,472
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 23(d)) HEF A A B e F AR (T RE 23(d)) 6,570 198,175
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE RRENRREE
plant and equipment 164 643
Dividend income REWA — 867
Income from retumn of prepaid investment cost BRRE K AL RE KA = 178,585
Others A 4299 1614
92,360 491,800

During the year, the Group transferred certain properties under development
for sale to investment properties (note |I). The related government grants of
RMB29,601,000 (2017: RMB3,604,000) previously recorded as deferred income (note

29) were recognised in profit or loss as other income during the year.

() FA AEEHETHELETED
XEBZREME (k1) o %Al
ABRIARTERA (H729) K1EH
BRIFH B AR #29,601,0007T (2017
F o AR¥3,604,00000) FAREZ
RNERBEMUNA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5

Profit before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

(@)  Finance income and finance costs:

BRBLATRIE
BB AFBEGEA), /MR T8 ER

/8
=

@) MBRARBERE

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Finance income g 3 ON
Bank interest income HFATHBWA (16,186) (5722)
Other interest income HEaF S WA (19,101) —
(35,287) (5,722)
Finance costs MEME
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings  $R1TE A R Kt EERF & 142,656 147,250
Interest on corporate bonds AREFNFE 21,583 15,830
Interest on senior notes BEAZEF S 248,560 195,650
Accrued interest on significant BREENERRE GRS
financing component of contract liabilities 16,497 =
429,296 358,730
Less: interest expense capitalised B BRMCBAERMENF SRS
into properties under development * (105,712) (91,125)
323,584 267,605
Net foreign exchange loss X BEEE 15,786 7416
339,370 275,021
o The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 5.15% - 9.60% * BERKAEREMNES. 15%

per annum (2017: 5.15% - 9.03%).
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(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Contd) BRBAIRE(E)
Staff costs: (b) BIMA:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 217,536 242,682
Contributions to defined ERETURAKGTE
contribution retirement plans 10,683 10,561
Equity settled share-based payments AR EE AR D AERRN R
(note 31) (P&E31) — 3
228,219 253246
Other items: (c) HtEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Depreciation and amortisation IE R 29,035 33,738
Impairment losses REEE
—trade and other receivables — 85 RH MR 46,640 2,639
— property, plant and equipment (note 10) ~ — %1% ~ iR Ra% & (HT5E 10) — 956
— intangible assets (note 12) — B EE (MG 12) - 243
— inventories -FE = 497
Write off of goodwil MHEmE — 1,379
Reversal of over-accrued BOBHTH LR B BE
estimated compensation in relation to
a sub-lease arrangement — (35,956)
Auditor’s remuneration 72 Gl e 4,100 3,850
Operating lease charges RERES W 18,670 15,105
Rentals income from investment properties X E W ER S WA R EZFR Y
less direct outgoings of RMB8,362,000 AR 8,362,0007C
(2017: RMB3,061,000) (2017 : AR¥3,061,0007T) 7,565 8933
Cost of properties sold (i) EEMERA () 1,621,033 1,017,722
(i) Cost of properties sold is after netting off of utilization of deferred income (i) HE2I18F 12831 HIEFE

in respect of government grants of RMB 160,230,000 for the year ended 3|
December 2018 (2017: RMB220,649,000) (note 29).

B BEEMERREMGBRE
FB R T 478 B O B ST MR A A R B
160,230,000 /5 (20174 :
AE#220,649,0007T)  (HifsE

29)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 6

OR LOSS

(@)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

AHHRBERANREH

() AHHEERANBIRE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Current tax BEABLE
PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI RAAEH
(“PRC CIT") (iii) ([REIEFRBH i) 167,990 175,192
PRC LAT (iv) B £ 3R E T (v) 122,542 198,754
290,532 373946
Deferred tax EEHIE
Origination and reversal of temporary R EENESE RER (M 17(0))
differences (notel7(b)) 16,201 84,780
306,733 458,726

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS (Conta)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:
(Contd)
() Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the

(i)

Group is not subject to any income tax in this jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group did
not earn any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
(2017: Nil).

PRC CIT

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to statutory tax rate of 25%

on their assessable profits.

In July 2013, Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Logistics Park
Development Co,, Ltd. (“Ganzhou Trade Centre") was approved to
enjoy a preferential PRC CIT rate of 15% for the years from 2012 to

2020 according to a tax notice issued by the local tax bureau.

In December 2015, Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Centre
Development Co, Ltd. (“Wuzhou Trade Centre”) was also approved
to enjoy a preferential PRC CIT rate of 15% for the years from 2015

to 2020 according to a tax notice issued by the local tax bureau.

The preferential tax treatment was based on various tax rules and
regulations in relation to PRC government's strategy in encouraging
investment and development of wholesale trading markets in certain

regions in the Mainland China.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

6 AHBERRANREHE)

() ABHREBRANBEE: (F)

(iif)

REFASHRERATER -
ARERZAEERBAR
REEAEH

FA P75 [ A TR 0 4 R ER AT
Al 7B 8 4 B 75 13 B 89 LK
A ARG EBREE
REBEQI7E:T) -

PEIBRAER

AEENTETARAERE
FERR T A B 25% M A TE B
REH

W0I3F7H BMRERE
MR EREERAR (M
BEMREDREM AR
BREMOT K BEAELE
2012F £2020F F F15%
NEBPBECEMERH
= o

28

WIS5FNA BMBERD
BYRBAEER DR
NEENRRE ) REMA
P R A 0 B A T
HEWISFEE00FZF
|5% &) BB P B (> EEFT 1S B
B o

GZHBEETERNERER
BEBPERLE TR
RERBREBEEMRENR
REBNZRBEHRA KA
B e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS (Conta)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:
(Contd)
(iv)  PRCLAT

PRC LAT which is levied on properties developed for sale by the
Group in the Mainland China, at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including lease charges of land use rights,
borrowing costs and all qualified property development expenditures.
Deferred tax assets arising from PRC LAT accrued are calculated
based on the applicable income tax rates when they are expected to

be cleared.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group were subject to PRC
LAT which were calculated based on 6% to 8% of their revenue in
accordance with the authorised tax valuation method approved by

respective local tax bureau.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the authorised
tax valuation method is one of the allowable taxation methods in
the Mainland China and the respective local tax bureaus are the
competent tax authorities to approve the authorised tax valuation
method in charging PRC LAT to the respective PRC subsidiaries of the
Group, and the risk of being challenged by the State Administration of

Taxation or any tax bureau of higher authority is remote.
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6

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

AOHRERANRER(Z)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS (Contd)

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax

6

(b) FEHREERBRTENETH

rates: BHHE:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Profit before taxation P B Bl A1 416,620 71398
Notional tax on profit before REBERERRT BN X
taxation, calculated at the rates applicable STEARTAIA B 2RI
to profits in the countries concerned 191,223 286,286
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TANBRE TG 2 4,754 6,293
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRRMBARNTIET 2 (2,098) (217)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RERRENARIBBENTN BT E 29,077 30,126
Tax effect of temporary AEREREZENTBTE
differences not recognised 3,504 12,029
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {if F % Al K &< SR M) B 1B /65 18 (6,224) (18,800)
PRC LAT (note 6(a)(iv)) FR B £ 3 R (B (PR 2 6(a) (iv)) 122,542 198754
Tax effect on PRC LAT PE LR ERT BT 2 (29,299) (48,348)
Tax concessions (note 6(a)(ii)) TR B (BT =E 6(a) (i) (6,746) (7,397)
Total income tax Friemen 306,733 458,726
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

7  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEFH
Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong EXHMBER B L AGEAIE383() K
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the companies (Disclosure of Information RRAR(HKBEEENRER)RHIE 285
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows: BT
2018

Equity settled

Salaries Retirement share-based

allowances and scheme payment

Directors' benefits inkind ~ contributions ~ AEZR&E
fee H& 2R B URBA Total
EEhe RENER SRR BN At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR AR®Tn ARMTn AR%TR

Executive directors: HITEE:
Wang Jianl TR 100 4224 — — 4324
Wang Dewen FEX 100 4,087 89 — 4276
Huang Dehong HER 100 2,105 63 — 2,268
Non-executive director: FUTES:
Yuan Bing rE 254 — — — 254
Independent non-executive directors: BUKHTES:
Zhao Lihua fhVE: 100 140 — — 240
Lam Chi Yuen Nelson HE & 254 — — — 254
Wang Lianzhou (retired on TEMR2009F

20 March 2019) 3A20BR) 100 140 = = 240

1,008 10,696 152 — 1,856
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7  DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

7 EBEFME)

2017
Equity settled
Salaries Retirement share-based
allowances and scheme payment
Directors  benefitsinkind ~ contributions Az E
fee  H& 2H g\ ARk A Total
E30E  REDMEN G EROAR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR AR%T:x
Executive directors: HITEE:
Wang Jianli T{E7 100 3916 = = 4016
Wang Dewen FEX 100 2963 88 — 3151
Huang Dehong BEL 100 2052 5 ~- 2204
Non-executive director: FUTES
Yuan Bing RE 260 - . . 260
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:
Zhao Lihua By E 100 140 — o 240
Lam Chi Yuen Nelson MEER 260 — = 3 273
Wang Lianzhou (retired on TEMR20019F
20 March 2019) 3A20BEM) 100 140 = 13 253
1,020 9211 140 26 10,397
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 BEHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017: three) are directors. TEBERGEATHAERE(QQI7E: =
The emoluments of these directors are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the LRES - ZZEZNFTMBEBENM T
emoluments in respect of the other three (2017: two) individuals are as follows: 70 Bt =% (20175 : WA) ALTHVEB
I
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Retirement scheme contributions BIREHEIEE 70 70
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e EMREMEYEF 9,271 6,103
9,341 6,173
The emoluments of the three (2017: two) individuals with the highest emoluments ZHQ07F : MA) &= AT A M
are within the following bands: NFEUTEE
2018 2017
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /& 7T 2 3,000,000 87T |
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 & T2 4,000,000 7 7T | —
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T E 4,500,000 % 7T I
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9

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB 106,995,000 (2017:
RMB245,573,000) and the weighted average of 4,014,844,000 ordinary
shares (2017: 4,014,844,000 ordinary shares).

Diluted earnings per share

All options are lapsed and therefore there is no effect of deemed issue
of shares under the Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 3|
December 2018.

In 2017, the effect of deemed issue of shares under the Company's Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme for nil consideration was anti-dilutive.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

BREF

(2)

BREXEF

BREARMEADAIEERE
FE 5 7118 A R 106,995,000 75(2017
F: AR ¥2455730007C ) R &
i % 0 F 19 £04,014,844,000
(20174 : 4014,844,000 %) 5+ o

BRBFET

R2018F 128318 AMBEER
BERN  WAEERBAAAE
RAFRERAIBRE IR ERT
RINEIZE -

R2017F  REARAEXARE

BRI ST AT HEREET
BRONZECKREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 9% BERZE
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
BT RE BARE wst

Note  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
Wik AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR ARET:R

Cost: R
At | January 2017 R2017F 1A 1B 421,759 129,454 46,122 597,335
Additions RE 536 14,924 3909 19,369
Disposals HE (24) (3323) (1,081) (4428)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFARAE — (3743) (1,868) (5611
At 3| December 2017 R2017F 128318

and | January 2018 K2018% 1 A1 H 422271 137,312 47,082 606,665
Additions RE — 7946 2,770 10716
Disposals HE — (1,960) (395) (2,355)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFAT 23(d) — (9,547) (2,176) (11,723)
At 3| December 2018 R2018F12A31R 422,271 133,751 47,281 603,303
Accumulated depreciation: 23t E
At | January 2017 R2017F 1A 1B 6,762 73,114 37,161 117,037
Charge for the year FRAZH 12,126 13941 6,178 32245
Whritten back on disposals & EE i ) — (3,088) (991 (4,079)
Disposal of subsidiaries & F 2 B — (3,061) (1,669) (4,730)
At 31 December 2017 2017412431 A

and | January 2018 K2018% 1 A1 H 18,888 80906 40,679 140,473
Charge for the year FAXH 12,170 10,984 3839 26993
Written back on disposals ) B A =) 7 (1,708) (287) (1,995)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEF AR EHE 23(d) == (2,502) (876) (3,378)
At 3| December 2018 R2018F12A31R 31,058 87,680 43355 162,093
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont) 10 9% BERZREEZ)
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
BF RE BARE Bt
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izt AR%Trn AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%®TxR
Accumulated impairment: RKiHREE
At | January 2017 R2017F 1A 1B - 6391 949 7340
Charge for the year FAXM - 654 302 956
At 31 December 2017 and K217 124318
| January 2018 K20I18F 1 A1 A — 7,045 1,251 8,296
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFRA 23(d) - (7,045) (1251) (8296)
At 31 December 2018 2018 12 A31 A — = = =
Net book value: IREFEE :
At 3| December 2018 R2018F12A31R 391213 46,071 3926 441210
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 1231 B 403,383 49,361 5,152 457,896

The buildings are all situated on land in the Mainland China.

Certain bank loans granted to the Group were jointly secured by property, plant
and equipment with a book value of RMB357,053,000 (31 December 2017:

RMB367,070,000) (note 26).

The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land of properties is as follows:

b

Z2E BT RMURTEAM -

b=l

AEEEENETROTERBREEA
X #357,053,0007C(20174 12 A31 B
AR 367,070,000 70) KI5 ~ BB Rk
LR EE R (BT 26) ©

BEHELHNDRERAEITAT :

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F ARETFT

In the Mainland China ERE R
— held under long leases (over 50 years) -~ RERHBEOCOFU L)FE 34,160 36313
— held under medium-term leases (10 - 50 years) ~ —REBEFHBELN(10E50F)FE 357,053 367,070
391,213 403,383
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

[ INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(@)  Reconciliation of carrying amount of investment properties

I RENERDBERFEHENREY
ES

@) RENERAEHR

Properties

Completed under
properties development Total
ERINE HEUE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®FR AR®ETFR

At | January 2017 R2017F 1A 1B 1,520,800 — 1,520,800
Transferred from inventories BOFE 158,445 192,785 351,230
Fair value adjustments DREAE 152,655 235215 387,870
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F 12831 B R

| January 2018 20185 | A I H 1,831,900 428,000 2,259,900
Transferred from inventories ERFE 5,268 283,798 289,066
Fair value adjustments NTRIEE S (12,161) 112,795 100,634
Classified as assets held for sale (b) 2 X ABRFELENEE (b) (26,463) — (26,463)
Transfer upon completion TELRER 437,000 (437,000) =
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F 12 A31 H 2,235,544 387,593 2,623,137
Representing i
Valuation - 2018 fBE—2018%F 2,235,544 387,593 2,623,137
Valuation — 2017 H{E—2017%F 1,831,900 428,000 2,259,900
Book value IREE
At 31 December 2018 M2018F 12 A31 H 2,235,544 387,593 2,623,137
At 31 December 2017 ®2017%F 12 A31 B 1,831,900 428,000 2,259,900

During the year, the Group transferred certain completed properties held
for sale and properties under development for sale to investment properties
as there was an actual change in use from sale to earning rental income
purpose. A fair value gain of RMB106,522,000 (2017: RMB384,391,000),
and corresponding deferred tax of RMB26,630,000 (2017: RMB96,187,000),

upon the transfer had been recognised in profit or loss.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

R HRASEBETHEETINER
BELRYMECERR2HARBEEXR
BREAS KA EMKEIH%EEW%E%
ERENE FAEERERERBEERD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

Il IINVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES I RENERIBERBELENREN
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Contd) E36-))
(@)  Reconciliation of carrying amount of investment properties (Contd) @) REVEERHEEHRE)
During the year, a decrease in fair value of RMB5,888,000 (2017: an FR AEERREREDE
increase in fair value of RMB3,479,000) and corresponding deferred tax of RERERIIABRIARE
RMB287,000 (2017:RMB979,000), have been recognised in profit or loss in 5,888,000 7T(20174 : D7 AL AN
respect of the existing investment properties. AER#3,479,0007T) Rk AE IR LT

B AR 287000 (20174 © A
E#979.0007T)

(b)  Reconciliation of carrying amount of investment properties classified as (b) PEAREHENREVMEERHE

held for sale R

2018

RMB’000

ARBTR

At | January 2018 201851 A1 H o

Transferred from investment properties BEREREANE 26,463

At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12431 B 26,463

Book value REE
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31 8 26,463
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12R31 8 —

During the year, the Group transferred certain investment properties to TR ARAEEBETIRENECERRE
investment properties classified as held for sale as there was an actual change HENESBWAENARRLEE  HAERRE
in use from earning rental income to sale. ERVEERZ D BAREHENRENE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Contd)

(c)  Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's investment

properties measured at the end of the reporting period on a

recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as

defined in IFRS I3, Fair value measurement. The level into which a

fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to

the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technigue as follows:

Level | valuations:

Level 2 valuations:

Level 3 valuations:

Fair value measured using only Level |
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the

measurement date

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level |,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

RENERDBAFFLENREN

E36-))
) RENENDAENE
AREER

TREFINHERRAEFIERA
AAENAREREMELAGE XL
RERMBREERSE B3RAA
B ERREDBR=EAAER
Bl e AREFEBLEUTHERE
FERNBARBZIBRERE
MmO BRETE R :

E— i  EFE — RBR
ENDARIE  BIRG
EAMEERTSY
BREESAEKE
BEOEE

FoBEE ERFE _RAEHE
WRAE ARG
F-RMAIBRAE
RARBRATABER
MEEHIE - T B
REBLEEING
i E R B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

[ INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Contd)

(c)  Fair value measurement of investment properties (Cont d)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Contd)

RENERDBAFFLENREN

X&)

(0 REMENDAEERE

() RAAEERE

Fair value as at

N—

Fair value
measurement
as at

31 December
2018
categorised into

31 December level 3
2018 R2018 5
M20185 12A31 B
12A31BH 2EIREZR
MRE NRRERER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR ARETFR
Recurring fair value measurement REMDAAETE
— Investment properties and investment — X B ERERIRENE
properties under development 2,623,137 2,623,137
Fair value
measurement
as at
31 December
2017
Fair value as at categorised
31 December into level 3
2017 F2017 4
R20175 12A31 B&
12A3188 HEIRFE=A
"hE WRAERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Recurring fair value measurement REMAARETNE
— Investment properties and investment — 1% & Y% RIEEI E Y5
properties under development 2,259,900 2,259,900
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Contd)

©

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Contd)

()

Fair value hierarchy (Contd)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no transfers
between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017
Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

All of the Group's investment properties and investment properties
under development carried at fair value were revalued as at 3|
December 2018. The valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Savills, who have among their staff Fellows of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The Group's property
manager and the senior management have discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when

the valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting date.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

RENERDBAFFLENREN
R#E)

RENENDAEFE(E)

(©)

(i)

AREER(E)

BE2018F1A3IBLSE
B F-REE KB
REY RIEEAREL
E=MQOI7F : &) - K&
BHBRRREBEENR
EMRBRARABEERZ
R o

R2018F12A318 A&
BMAENAREIIRZRE
MERERRENESRB Y
BEMTE-—RTEES
(EETEGBRAHUEME
SEREE BN BHA
HENERELE KBS
RIS 5 ) EAT
B REEMELERS
REREERERHRER
HERHETHERENE
MzmABEERERGE
BR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B2 AEIN - HUAREFITR)
Il INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES Il RENERIEASEHENREN
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Contd) R(B)
() BREWMENAAEEE)

(c)  Fair value measurement of investment properties (Cont d)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) BEEE=RLLETEZE
#
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
BER% TABRENEAHE HE
Investment properties and Income capitalisation method Yield 4.5% to0 5.5%
investment properties YR EARZE Yezs (2017: 5.0% to 5.5%)
under development
REMEREEREME Market monthly rental rate 200-111.0
(RMB/sq.m.) (2017:20.0 - 106.0)
mi5gARE
(ARET/F7K)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Contd)

(c)  Fair value measurement of investment properties (Cont d)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Contd)

The fair value of investment properties and investment properties
under development is generally derived using the income capitalisation
method. This valuation method is based on the capitalisation of the
income and reversionary potential income by adopting appropriate
capitalisation rates, which are derived from analysis of sale transactions
and valuers' interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation
have reference to recent lettings within the subject properties and

the estimated rental incremental observed in other comparable

properties.

Certain bank loans granted to the Group were jointly secured by

investment properties with a book value of RMB683,900,000 (3|

December 2017: RMB720,200,000) (note 26).

The Group's investment properties are held on leases of between
3 to |5 years in the Mainland China. Total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

combined with others which are stated in note 34(b).

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

RENERDBAFFLENREN
R#E)

RENENDAEFE(E)

(©)

(i)

BEHE=RLAETEZE
HE)

BREMERERRENZEN
ARE-RERRZENE
BT - WREETDEDERSE
BRBEE BN R
RUAREEE R BART
BA - MENEHRTEB
HEERFHRMEEHITE
BREEBRIHEMS
o BERARANHER
& HRBZ D FE AL HER
BREEMLATELEMEE
BREOGESEMME

iE °

AEBERNETRITER
PABRE{E A K ¥ 683,900,000
TL(017F 128318 AR
720,200,000 7T ) K 1% & )
EVEEAR (Pt 26)

AEERPEAHREY
EENTIZE ISENHEEBRE
B FAMELEHENR
BRREHSEHEREMFUR
— R BT EE34(b) Il B FE K

R



INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

Software and

franchises granted

BHRR TR
g
RMB’000
AR®T R
Cost: B
At | January 2017 R201751 A1 H 5,089
Additions NE 18,340
Disposals HE (625)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFRAE (14)
At 31 December 2017 and | January 2018 R2017F12A31BR2018%1 AR 22,790
Additions NE 121
Disposals HE (31
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFRA 313)
At 3| December 2018 R20185 12 A31 A 22,567
Accumulated amortisation: Rty
At | January 2017 20171 A1 H 1,520
Charge for the year FRXH 1,493
Disposals HE (12)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFAHE )
At 31 December 2017 and | January 2018 R2017F12A31BR2018F 1 AI1A 2990
Charge for the year FAXM 2,042
Disposals & 31
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFRE (70)
At 31 December 2018 M2018%F 1231 H 4933
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd) 12 BFEEE)
Software and
franchises granted
BUERR TR
RERE
RMB’000
ARET T
Accumulated impairment: ZERE
At | January 2017 R2017F 1A 1B 613
Provision for the year FREE 243
Disposals HE (613)
At 31 December 2017 and | January 2018 R2017F 12831 BK20I18F 1 A1 H 243
Disposals of subsidiaries HEFRA (243)
At 3| December 2018 R20184% 12 A3I B —
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12431 A 17,634
At 31 December 2017 R2017E 12831 8 19,555
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

GOODWILL BE
RMB’000
ARBTR
Cost: B
At 31 December 2017, | January 2018 R2017F 128318 20185 1 A1 B
and 3| December 2018 R20I18F 128318 2252
Carrying amount: REE :
At 3| December 2017 R2017F 12 A31 B 2,252
At | January 2018 and 31 December 2018 R20I18F I A1BKR20I18F12A31R 2252
The Group carried out impairment testing of the goodwill at the end of each FEERERERREBEETRER
reporting period. In assessing the impairment of goodwill, the recoverable amount o EFEEBRER EREAE
of the cash generating units ("CGU") is determined. The CGU related to the EEBN(REELEN )N TKME
goodwill comprises the Company's knowledge and expertise of the management B - ARERENRASELEUBR

and existing customers. The directors determined that no significant provision for

impairment of goodwill is necessary as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

APRIEBEERBERFNANERE
e BEAE P20I8F K274 12
A3 BRBHEERERLEAEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

4 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 14 REZEDENES
TRE — ML D ERAES - B
BOELEEETAR BEAREMSR

g :

The following list contains the particulars of an associate, which is unlisted corporate

entity whose quoted market price is not available:

Proportion of ownership interest

PRl
Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest Held by Held by
Name of associate REfR AR BETR KE&EME  theCompany  asubsidiary  Principal activity
£ REXBE BERAFHE BRER ALRAFK FOAME IRER
Wuzhou Junyi Creation and China RMB10,000,000/ 40% — 40%  Property
Cutture Company Limited RMB 10,000,000 management

BMMEREIE UL BRAR mE  ARK100000007T, 40% ar 0% MEER

AERH10,000,0007T

Wuzhou Junyi Creation and Culture Co.Ltd. (“Junyi”) is mainly engaged in the
property management. The Group does not control Junyi, but has a significant

influence over it.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements.

Information of an associate that is not individually material:

BMTHRAIZXEERRR(HR))
I%%&%i@%%fi o AE B I RIE
ERHABREYE

ZHECENGAMBRRAFEAER
>£)\EE°

ARG EMERRMBEBER :

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

ERIFFEBBEARN

Carrying amount of an individually immaterial

associate in the consolidated financial statements EHUBRERNEEAE 2,820 3,700
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share AEBREZHERFIRRE

of an associate’s
Loss for the year FEER (880) (300)
Total comprehensive income FHKEBE (880) (300)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES I5 REELENER
Details of the Group's interest in the joint ventures, which is accounted for using AEEREEENER(REDENS
the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows: HHBHEIR)FBEWT

Proportion of ownership interest

PR fl
Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by  Principal
Name LK ERTRE rEE Company  asubsidiary ~activities
a8 b BERAFE HERER AXEHE FLAME IEXH
Hydoo Best Group Co, Ltd. Thailand Baht2, 196,003,600/ 3643% - 3643%  Property
("Hydoo Best") Baht2,196,003,600 development
Hydoo Best Group Co,, Ltd. RE 2,196,003,600 &, 3643% i 3643% FEHIERE
(“Hydoo Best') 2,196,003,600 %k
Shenzhen Tiandihui China RMB5,000,000/ 25.00% — 2500%  Logistics service
Hydoo Road Port RMB2,000,000
Management Limited
AR EREAREEE tE  AR%S50000007T, 25.00% - 2500%  MRERTE
BRAF AR¥2,000,000 7
Shenzhen Yinling Century China RMBS5,000,000/ 50.00% — 5000%  Investment
Technology Company Limited RMB: nil management
AYITS| B LR BRAT] B AR50000007T,/ 50.00% - 5000% HAEE
AREE
The Group and the other shareholders of the above joint ventures agree to share AEERAFEZECENEMBERESY
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement FHEDFUIALRHEE IR - WHEE
based on the composition of governing bodies. REBHPIRERRER LT HRFERE -
As at 3| December 2018, the Group's interest in Hydoo Best amounted to M2018F12A318 + AEEEHHydoo
RMB 26,200,000. Bestt) I & &8 A AKH 126,200,000
T o
In 2018, Hydoo Best was unable to get reimbursement of the cost of certain pieces FE2018%5F + Hydoo Bestf& /XS HI%ERT
of land which have to be retumed to the original vendor by the order of the court. e NERERIRE 7 H) 1t HFEERK
In addition, the joint venture partner of Hydoo Best was obligated to repurchase ZREE(E o IhA) + Hydoo Best) A & R
certain shares in Hydoo Best held by the Group but failed to do so within the BEBIEAERFE DB MHydoo Best
specified time frame. The above resulted in a loss on the interest in Hydoo Best HE TR - BREESBITERBEE
held by the Group. f - EEBUREE ¥ Hydoo Best®iRE
Bk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

I5 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Contd)

The directors expect that the Group will be able to recover part of its interest in
Hydoo Best by obtaining the land pieces still held by Hydoo Best based on the
legal opinion obtained from an external legal counsel. With reference to the fair
value of these land pieces which were assessed by the Group's directors based on
a valuation report prepared by external valuers, the Group has made a provision
for impairment loss of RMB 19,752,000 on the interest in Hydoo Best and a specific
loss allowance of RMBI19,613,000 on the amount due from that joint venture (note

20).

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually material:

I5

REELRNER(E)

BERNSLEZBERNREESNEZEE
R EFRHREEKEMNESHydoo
Best{J35 B M) £ # - LA W[l E 7E Hydoo
Best I HAIKRE - AEEEFREING
HEMGHEMNEERSTIHZE L
HMRREE RNEELHHydoo Best
MEZREELREBBRBEARE
19,752,000 7T & JE Wi & & 1 M R E 5
BEHBARE 196130007 (HFE21)

ERIFFEER 2R RAL

CRb
i
M

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually ERFEEFEREEE

immaterial joint ventures in the RefIBRRNRALE

consolidated financial statements 132,672 146,451
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share AEBEREEZEELE

of those joint ventures'
Loss for the year FEERER (19,904) (2,943)
Total comprehensive income FHRRERE (19,904) (2943)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

l6 HitemEE

3| December

| January 31| December

2018 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETR AREFT ARETFT
Non-current FRE
Financial assets measured at FVPL RAREHEEHSHTAED
BRNEMERE
— unlisted equity investments — W RHEEER
not held for trading (i) I ETRERRE () 118,594 84,731 =
— derivative financial instrument —TEERIA 2,409 — i
Available-for-sale financial assets AHLESHEE
— unlisted equity investments —WHRHEEER
not held for trading (i) FLEMERRE () — == 84,731
121,003 84,731 84,731
Current Vi)
Financial assets measured at FVPL RAREFEEHSHTAED
BENEREE
— Derivative financial instrument —TEERIA — 13,548 13,548
— Wealth management products (i) — BB m (i) — 371,000 371,000
— 384,548 384,548
() Available-for-sale investments were reclassified to financial assets measured () FHHEREN0I8FI AIBEAE
at FVPL upon the initial application of IFRS 9 at | January 2018 (see note BRI B R E RN EIR BB S
[(Q)(0)). BERARGEFEEEZHTAZH
BuEmeREE (RMEI00) -
(i) Asat 31 December 2018, all of other financial assets are measured at FVPL (i) A20I18F 128318 - FIEEMERE
under IFRS 9. EREEIRH 5HRE LA FIFIE R
REFEEEZHHASHERR
(i) As at 31 December 2017, wealth management products were classified as (i)  M2017F128318 - EHMERES R

other current assets, and were reclassified to financial assets measured at

FVPL upon the initial application of IFRS 9 at | January 2018 (see note |(c)
()

REMRENEE - WH2018F1 A1 B
HIRER BRI B RS ERFERE
BN RERAREFEAEED
AEHEENSRMEE (BRMHEI(
@) e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 17  EBHERERRRANFEH
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@)  Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position ) EHFBRRERANDIEBIEE
represents:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Prepaid tax: BAAHE
PRC CIT B RS 9,180 1,190
PRC LAT o B £t s (E Y 44,174 94,247
53,354 95,437
Current tax liabilities: AEBFEEE
PRC CIT B EFTSR 356,764 392,883
PRC dividend withholding tax B AR S TR 33,038 33038
PRC LAT B A 413,849 443,785
803,651 869,706
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 17 EHMERRRANREHE)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: () ECRIBLHBEERAE:
(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax assets and liabilities () EBEHREEREEEMAL
HrE5
The components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in the RE BB R ERE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements EHE(BE) BENEK
during the year are as follows: WD RENNEEIT
Deferred tax arising from: BREBRERA T REES
Fair value Amortisation Fair value
adjustment of capitalised Provision  adjustment
for contract for  for other
investment Advertising costs Creditloss  Deferred Provisionfor construction  financil
properties  Taxlosses  expenses (Note) ~allowance income  PRCLAT cost assets Total
RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  AMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB0OO  RMBO000  RMBO00  RMBU0O
RENZ Enfal RE Lk
WAAE s i i e ER EEN

A% BEER REE (W) EERR BTN\ EHEBE AABR OnEER 4%
ARMTT ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARBTR ARMTZ ARMTR

At | January 2017 01751 A18 (14714 65157 284 - — 238 65,722 = - B
(Crgedcredtedto  RAHERER
the consolidated statement ~ (#%) AT

ofproftorloss note 6a)) ~ (Fif&Ee(a)) gromy (918 (1689) = — 089 04 9 - )
Disposd ofsubsidaries ~ HEFAT - = = e L Y (1,35 - (67
At December 017 2017 1231R LBy s 11T = — M s - 0%
Impact on il application - 1201851 A1 AE RERER

of FRS 15 | fanuary 2018~ BTt 2288 | 555 A0 /8 = = = (560) = = = = = (560)
At | anuary 2018 H0I8EI1A 1R Qs s LIS (560) — M5 Sde 27 - 7040

(Cared)rediedto  RaMEER
the consolidated statement (1) 3FA

ofproftorloss (rote 6(2)) ~ (F3F6(2)) 27930 2978 (567) (670) 400 (41200 14855 @7 (34 (1200
At3 December 018 R2018%12A31A (@971 82628 5% (1,230 4010 146025 712! - (9346) 54219
Note: Upon the initial application of IFRS 15, the Group has recognised Bz BRERBERSERS

deferred tax liabilities arising from the capitalisation of contract BB 55 %  AEH
costs which had been expensed in prior periods (see note | (c)(ii)). ERZANBANEE S
HORORAERE

EREEHREAE (R
ECIONIK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Cont d)

(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position

17

AHBBRRRANAEH(E)

(b)

CRABEHREERAR(E)

(i) BEHHBERIZEHK

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT

Net deferred tax assets recognised RE B B &

in the consolidated statement HERAEER IR
of financial position BEFE 157,568 148,399
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised A& BB R
in the consolidated statement HERAEER IR
of financial position BEFHE (103,349) (77,419)
54,219 70,980
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised ) AERELHBEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note |(u), the Group
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of certain subsidiaries of RMB561,065,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB596,916,000). The directors consider it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the

relevant tax jurisdiction and entities.

The unrecognised tax losses will expire by the end of the following years, if

BEMFI(WMENSEBR
R2018F 128318 KEBET K
RETFRANRFAHMEBEA
R¥561,0650007C(2017F : AR
596,916,000 7T ) ERIEILEFI 1B &
E -EERBTRITRERBETL
AEEEREBESTARNKHEE
BHRIRFERBLFIE o

i RAEGER - RHERAOHIRE B

unused: RIATFRERRER
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
2018 201845 — 33,520
2019 20194 78,124 81,809
2020 20204 119,491 135,507
2021 2021 £ 128,561 220,280
2022 20025 118,583 125,800
2023 20236 116,306 —
Total et 561,065 596916
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(@)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As set out in note 6(a), withholding tax is levied on Hong Kong companies in
respect of dividend distributions arising from profit of PRC subsidiaries. Since
the Group could control the quantum and timing of distribution of profits
of the Group's subsidiaries in the Mainland China, deferred tax liabilities are
only provided to the extent that such profits are expected to be distributed

in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2018, temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,830,433,000 (2017:
RMB2,417,178,000). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB[41,522,000 (2017:
RMB120,859,000) have not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the Group
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

17 AHBBRARANHAEHE)

(d)

AERELERERE

AP EE 6(a) FTEL - AEE R FK
NBEFARENEENBRS SR
B - AR RE G ARE
B AT A RlRE N BB &
R MAKBEEEZ SN EES
KR A AR ARKIEEOBR T atte
EEHRAE -

R2018F 128318 F 24 A &
ARFBENERZEARARY
2,8304330007C(2017F : AR ¥
2417,1780007C ) ° AR B KRR
P IkZ S RE B AT IERER
BRERIABRARK 141,522,0007T
(2017F : AR¥ 120,859,0007T) *
BAAAEEZEHZEFARNRKRE
BRAEETARIERAERR
R A o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

18 RFARMKRE

TREFNHEAKERE  BEXAE
BEAFENTIBETARMNFE - K
HERHE DARBARDNER AL

il

Proportion of ownership interest

Fre Rt Bl
Place of Group’s
incorporation Particulars of effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
AR B®fT r&E
NAEH Exmk Rate ERER AQFFE FAAMK IERXR
Hongkong Hydoo Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% —  Investment management
BRREERARAR &R 100,000 & 7t REEE
Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou) Company Limited The PRC U5$32,050,000 100% o 100%  Property development and
REEXEMBRARF t 32,050,000 % 7T investrent holding
FHER%
RiREER
Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Centre The PRC RMB60,000,000 100% = 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited t N FiERE
ERREAVESRERERRAR 60,000,000 7
Jining Hydoo Logistics Centre Development The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% — 100%  Property development
Company Limited ("Jining Logistics Centre”) t ARM FHERE
EEREMRBAEARA A 200,000,000 7%
(TE=MRE))
Mianyang West Modem Trade Centre The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% = 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited G N B ERE
(“Mianyang Trade Centre’) 200,000,000 7t

BERBRRMRNARERA RN
(BB
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I8 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

18

RIDANKRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

AL
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
REM ALK BRI A58

NEER EXE Rz BRER ZX0AFE FLEME EIRER

Shenzhen Hydoo Investment Management The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% — 100%  Investment management
Company Limited t AR% RAER
MImBEEEEERRAA 30,000,000 7

Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade The PRC RMB800,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development
Logistics Park Development Co, Ltd, G AR% FIERE
(“Ganzhou Trade Centre) 800,000,000 7t
ENREREMREREERAR
(ENEEMRE))

Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Centre The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% = 100%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. G N B ERE
("Wuzhou Trade Centre”) 300,000,000 ¢
BNREHEMRHAEBR AR
([ENEEMRA)

Heze Hydoo Commercial and Trade Centre The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% = 100%  Property development
Company Limited (“Heze Trade Centre) i N FiERE
ERREEMRAARAA 300,000,000 7
(FHEBgmRn)

Guangxi Yulin Modem Trade Centre The PRC RMB220,000,000 100% m 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited G N FHERE
(“Yulin Trade Centre’) 220,000,000 7t

BREIMERMAHREARL AN
(T EMAE )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

I8 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

18 RIRFANKREE)

Proportion of ownership interest

AL
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
REM ALK BRI A58

NEER EXE Rz BRER ZX0AFE FLEME EIRER

Yantai Hydoo Intemational Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development
Trade Centre Company Limited G AR% FIERE
(“Yantai Trade Cender”) 300,000,000 7
EaREERBHENERAR
([Ea@gmRnl)

Lanzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Centre The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% — 100%  Property development
Company Limited t ARM FHERE
RNREEENERARN 300,000,000 7

Ganzhou Jiuzhi Property Management Services The PRC RMB5,200,000 70% - 70%  Property management
Company Limited i ARM services
EMHABMRERARAA 5,200,000 7T mEERRH

Jiamusi Hydoo Commercial and Trade The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% r 100%  Property development
Centre Company Limited G N FHERE
EAMSEREN AN ARAR 300,000,000 7

Heze Hydoo Industrial Company Limited The PRC US$45,000,000 100% — 100%  Property development
TERRHERARAA i 45,000,000 % 78 FRERE

Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Financial Leasing The PRC RMB320,000,000 100% = 100%  Finance lease
Company Limited t AR% BERS
MR ERENEARAR 320,000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

18 RIRFANKREE)

Proportion of ownership interest

AL
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
REM ALK BRI A58
NEER EXE Rz BRER ZX0AFE FLEME EIRER
Liuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Center The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% — 100%  Property development
Company Limited t AR% FIERE
INBREENRAARAR 300,000,000 7
Yulin Jingde Real Estate Company Limited The PRC RMB40,071,114 51% - 51%  Property development
INSREHEREARA E NG FHERS
40,071,114 7T
Shenzhen Hydoo Microfinance The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100%  Finance
Company Limited t ARM BE
AMImEE BERERA A 300,000,000 7
& These entities are all PRC limited liability companies. The English translation of the " ZEERBOATEERAR - ZFR
company names is for reference only. The official names of these companies are in AMRXEERERRE - ZFAF
Chinese. RN ABRE AR °

The directors consider that no individual non-controlling interest is considered

material to the Group as at 3| December 2018 and 2017.

R20IBFER2017F12A318 EFR
A BEEREAREEBE AL

4=/
Zs o
Im

=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

19  FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

19 BEEERRE

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT

Finance lease receivables RMEHE R 85,002 41814

Less: due within one year (note 21) & I EREE(HEE21) (57,608) (22,659)
27,394 19,155

As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments receivable R20I18F12A3IE REMEHEE

under finance leases were as follows:

WARSEESEBMT :

2018 2017
Lease  Unearned Lease Uneamed
payments finance Loss Carrying payments finance Canrying
receivable income  allowance amount  receivable income amount
RER ARZ

EpEE RERA BERG BEE EhEE  BAERA REE

RMB'000

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR AR¥TR ARETR ARETRT ARETR

6071)  (12450) 57408 25463 804) 22659

(4564) (556) 27,39 204 (2869) 19,155

Within | year (inclusive) | ER(BEZE) 76,129

After | year but within 5 years | 254
(inclusive) (BREERF) 32,514
108,643

(10635 (13008 85002 47487 (5673 41814
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20

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 20 FERAMESHRE
31 December | January 31 December
2018 2018 (i) 2017 (i)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETFR ARETT ARETFT
Inventories FE
Property development MEFE
— Leasehold land held for further —FERRGFRERE L
development for sale 1,090,240 [,141,148 [,141,148
— Property under development for sale (i) —FEERWE (i) 3,247,891 3,334,527 3271758
— Completed properties held for sale —FEETINZE 3,140,175 3,820,422 3,820,422
7,478,306 8,296,097 8,233,328
Others Htt 1,189 93l 931
7,479,495 8,297,028 8,234,259
Other contract costs (i) H A& KIBC (i) 5,052 3,733 —
7,484,547 8,300,761 8,234,259
()  The Group has initially applied IFRS |5 using the cumulative effect method and () AKEEBRFZEEZERERER
adjusted the opening balances at | January 2018. Comparative information has not BT SRE R 155, - WIHER2018
been restated. FIRIBOFNERS - WEEFI LR
BH o
(i) Upon the adoption of IFRS |5, opening adjustments were made as at | January (i) REMBIRMEREERNE | SRE
2018 to accrue interest on certain advance payments received from customers. This R20I18F I A I BEHETHAE - UR
interest was eligible for capitalisation into the carrying value of the Group's properties ERREPERRMNETFE - ZF2
under development for sale, which has resulted in an increase in that balance as at AERLEASEAGEERMENK
that date (see note |(c)(ii). EHE SHRNKBENGREN (F
HEAICIHE
(i) Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, opening adjustments were made as at | January 2018 (i) RERMBIRSBEREENESHE

to capitalise certain sales commissions which were expensed in prior periods. This has

resulted in an increase in contract costs as at that date (see note | (c)(ii)).

F20185F | A I BYEHGFHHAZE - A&
AMeBEHRTENETHERS
WEREFRZANELRAEM (5
FBIRE (o) (ii)) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

20 INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS (Contd) 20

As at 31 December 2018, certain properties under development for sale,
completed properties held for sale and leasehold land held for future development

for sale were pledged for certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26).

(@)  The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land included in properties

development for sale is as follows:

FERHEMEAMA(E)
R2I18F12A3IB ETHEEEEY
¥ HFEERIVERFERKRFERE
METBEREERRE TRITER
AR (P 5E26) ©

(@) FAMERBNEELHHREE
2HWMT

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

In the Mainland China R E Rt

— long leases (over 50 years) —REEA(0FMAE) 619,931 217,980

— medium-term leases (10 - 50 years) —HEEL(10E50F) 2,531,658 2,688,687
3,151,589 2,906,667

(b)  Properties held for future development for sale in the consolidated

statement of financial position comprise:

(b) EHMBRRRABGERREH
BUERE

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Expected to be recovered after more TRERR —F AR R

than one year

1,090,240 851,413

(c)  Properties under development for sale in the consolidated statement of

financial position comprise:

(0 AHRBRARANGETENE
'

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TEHR —F AR 664,157 571966

Expected to be recovered after more TRHR —F LRI
than one year 2,583,734 2,699,792
3,247,891 3271758
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS (Contd)

(d)

(e)

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

20 FERHMGENEEE)

Completed properties held for sale in the consolidated statement of d) EHEBRRARASEETING
financial position comprise: X85
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TEHER —F AR 1,144,338 3,335,552
Expected to be recovered after more TEHR —F LR
than one year 1,995,837 484,870
3,140,175 3,820,422
Other contract costs (e) EHAAHMAE

Contract costs capitalised as at 3|1 December 2018 relate to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents whose selling activities resulted
in customers entering into sale and purchase agreements for the Group's
properties which are still under construction at the reporting date. Contract
costs are recognised as part of “selling and distribution costs” in the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which revenue from the related
property sales is recognised. The amount of capitalised costs recognised in
profit or loss during the year was RMB3,733,000. There was no impairment
in relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or the costs capitalised

during the year.

In the comparative period, such sales commissions were recognised as “selling
and distribution costs” when incurred and therefore an opening balance

adjustment was made on | January 2018 in this regard (see note |(c) (ii)).

The amount of capitalised contract costs that is expected to be recovered

after more than one year is RMB3,909,000.

R2018F 12431 BEREHEH
AR TYERBHEEHE
ReEl  ZENERBENEEE
DEREPRARERRE BN
ERNMEILEBRZ - 54K
AREREAYEEE NG IREE
BRRERRHEND HKA 6
—Hn - FANBRERNERNL
A& 8 A A R3733,0007T
BARME AN EDNERRFRER
L BYBK AR I A 3 A RE o

R - ZEHEMAERESE
R A EEMDHEMA] - Bt
20184 | A1 BIEEEL FHE
EREAR (B RME 1 (o)) °

FHR—FUARBKERNEAREL
FX A &% A AR 3909,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 EZREMEWRFRIE
2018 2017
(Note)
CE
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Trade receivables (a) B RN (a) 243,070 45252
Less: loss allowance R ERRE (2,691) (9,864)
240,379 35,388
Finance lease receivables (note |9) MEMEE KA 19) 70,058 22,659
Less: loss allowance (note |9) o EIEEE () (12,450) —
57,608 22,659
Other debtors, net of loss allowance (b) HAh B WK IE R B 18 A A 1R R R () 340,855 399,761
Amount due from a joint venture, Bl e R RIFIE
net of loss allowance (c) EREERERFE (O — 17,778
Amount due from an associate (c) JE MBS = 2 B FRE () 4,000 4,000
344,855 4217539
Financial assets measured at amortised cost DESRKATTENSREE 642,842 479,586
Prepaid sales related tax and other taxes BNHERBRE LAMKE 139,199 125,527
Deposits and prepayments (d) & RIEMNFIE (d) 990,237 483,390
1,772,278 1,088,503
Note: Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, no opening adjustment as at | January 2018 was made Misk : AL B BR B S R B S5 950 B -
to recognise additional ECLs on trade and other receivable (see note | (c)(i)). WEER2018F | A HOFNEBRIE

HAE - AERE SR AMmRRKIR
W RBERERE (FRMEI()
i) °
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21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd) 21

@

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ageing analysis (a)

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables
(net of loss allowance) based on the date the relevant trade receivables

recognised, is as follows:

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

BEREMERRERE)

BRI D AT

RNEREHR - HHEBEZEUTR
MR B SN 0E S RYKR
BREREE)OREITOT :

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREF T AREF T

Within | month REEPNA 214,980 10,990
| to 3 months | 2318A 14,544 5,167
3 to 6 months 3Z6EHA 4,056 7,064
Over 6 months (note) 618 A LA £ (BE3E) 6,799 12,167
240,379 35,388

Note: Included in the trade receivables was RMB2,966,000 (2017:RMBS5, 167,000),
net of provision for loss allowance of RMB2,691,000 (2017: RMB7,225,000),

which was aged over one year.

The details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 33(a).

Trade receivables are primarily related to proceeds from the sale of
properties. Proceeds from the sale of properties are made in lump-sum
payments or paid by instalments in accordance with the terms of the

corresponding contracts.

The balance included consideration to be received from disposal of (b)
subsidiaries of RMB51,000,000 (2017: RMB284,765,000) (note 23(d)) which
is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by an independent third party, loans
provided by Shenzhen Hydoo Microfinance Company Limited (Z3ITI%%
B/NEBEFAER AT, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, to third
parties of RMB76,500,000 (2017: RMB19,227,000), which are interest-
bearing from 8% to 36% per annum, unsecured and to be recovered within
one year, and receivables from a third party of RMB189,938,000 (2017: Nil),
which are guranteed by an independent third party, interest-bearing at 13%

per annum and to be recovered within one year.

Pisk : RiREBA—FMMNEKEERE
EREREFESBAARY
2,966,0007T (2017F : ARE
5,167,00070) @ EAERERE
BELEAARE2691,0007T
(20174 :+ AR#%7,225,000
JT) o

AEERFERENFBHANN

33(@a) °

B3 IEE RS S
KA - MEREFERARS
BEABER—REL R B
i

DREGHPERBUE= 2B E
EHERNEREE T ARNRE
A B #51,0000007T(20174 ¢ A
R ¥ 284,765,000 7T) (Fii5E 23(d)) -
RERAEEZEFARRYIMRE
NEERBEBRARRBRGAE=S
MEFRRR -FRRENER
AR #765000007C(2017F © A
R#¥192270007T) & BEME
B8%E36%  RIEWE=FHR
TA AR 1899380007 (2017 4F
Z) HBUF-HER ERX
£ 13%  BR—ERYE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

(c)  The balances of amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment terms, and as at 3| December 2018, the
Group has made loss allowance on the full amount due from a joint venture
amounted to RMB19,613,000 (2017: Nil) (see note I5).

(d)  The balance included prepayments and deposits for purchase of leasehold
land of RMB644,783,000 (2017: RMB298,496,000)

22 PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED CASH

20 BEREMEBWREE)

(©)

FEUES & > E TR & 8 A BT
B RERERTERY  UER
018F 12A31 8 AEBEHEK
—REECENRE2ETRAE
B84 A R ¥ 19,613,000 o (Fft
F15) e

LHRAEENHETHTEAR
644,783,000 (20175« AR
298,496,000 7T ) °

22 CEARZRFRE

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Pledged to banks for certain mortgage facilities ghE TiRBAEMER T RIT 496,583 179,145
Pledged for bank loans SLERTTEFIK R — 325421
Pledged for bills payables HENZEER 89,000 353,100

585,583 857,666

23  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(@)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

23 BRERBRESEEY

(2)

RERREESENESE
2018 2017
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARBTFR ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand ROGFR MRS

1,123,145 1,000,443
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd) 23 BREeRBHLEENE)
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from (b) BRBEAFBRLEERHENES
operations: MR

2018 2017
(Note)
Pt % CiEd)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTT
Profit before taxation B 254 A 1 416,620 713,981
Adjustments for: FLTHER HE
Finance income FBHBA 5(a) (35,287) (5,722)
Finance costs B 5(a) 339,370 275,021
Fair value gain on investment properties REME LA ERE I (100,634) (387,870)
Impairment loss on trade and g5 LM AR
other receivables REEE 5(c) 46,640 2,639
Government grants related to investment ~ RAEAMATERIL E W%
properties recognised in other income BRI AT B 29 (29,601) (3,604)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 5(c) 29,035 33,738
Unrealised fair value gain on financial assets A B2 B EE
measured at FVPL ATABHERN TR
BEAER A EYE 4 (20,757) 22,446
Net gain on disposal of financial assets HERAAEGERH
measured at FVPL 2 AEHER
HEREEN NS
e (28,772) (127,472)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEF AR KA HEE (6,570) (198,175)
Income from return of prepaid AR EKARERELA
investment cost 4 — (178,585)
Share of losses of joint ventures AMEREREER I5 19,904 2943
Share of loss of an associate AEBE R EER 14 880 300
Net gain on disposal of property, HENE - BEREE
plant and equipment L Eayet 4 (164) (643)
Dividend income BREWA — (867)
Impairment loss on property, ME - BB KERE
plant and equipment REEE 5(c) — 956
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREEREER 5(c) = 243
Write off of goodwill MiRmE 5(c) — 1,379
Equity settled share-based payments PR R B DARR D
RERNK — 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)
23  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from

operations: (Contd)

23 BeRBLEEYE)

b) BHANBERSEXBHREHRS
R (&)

2018 2017
(Note)

Pt (FI5E)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBETT

Changes in working capital: HEELEY
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories and BFEREME QMR
other contract costs mA,/(38h0) 616,363 (539,355)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 KAt R YR IR M (776,049) (126,408)
Increase in restricted cash XRERSEM (53,338) (133712)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R E AR FIEE M 201,953 1,262,740
Increase in contract liabilities BREEEM 338,784
Decrease in deferred income i8GNS 29 (66,254) (7,534)
Cash generated from operations REXBHMERE 892,123 606,442

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

note |(c).

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd)

(©

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from financing

activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from

financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash

flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated cash flow statement as

cash flows from financing activities.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

23 BeRBLEEYE)

(©)

RETHELNABHHR

TRFLAREREMEZBNE
RS BEASRIHEET -
BERHELNABRAERER
AXRBEREMETHAE - X
REAHASRERTHEARE

REELNRERE
Bank loans
and other
borrowings Corporate
RITEFR  Senior notes bonds Total
REMEE BARE RREH #st
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(KizE26) (Bt 27) (Bff&E28)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥BTR AR®TR AR®T:R
At | January 2018 R20I8F 1 A1 B 2,063,629 1,433,863 266,435 3,763,927
Changes from financing cash flows:  Z# &R & REE
Proceeds from new bank loans FERITERK
and other borrowings HinfEER{SHIEA 1,316,590 — — 1,316,590
Net proceeds from the issue of BIBERE
senior notes PSR F 8 — 330,406 = 330,406
Repayment of bank loans and ERETERREMEE
other borrowings (2,113,308) — — (2,113,308)
Repayment of senior notes BEELER — (423,500) — (423,500)
Repayment of corporate bonds EBEARES — — (6,771) (6,771)
Interest and other borrowing FRENFER
costs paid during the year HifEERA (142,656) (192,716) (20,179) (355,551)
Total changes from financing HEFR e REZHEE
cash flows (939,374) (285,810) (26,950) (1,252,134)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd) 23 BREeRBHLEENE)
()  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (Cont d) ) RMETHELMEENHIERE)
Bank loans
and other
borrowings Corporate
$RATEM  Senior notes bonds Total
REMEE BARE RRAMES Azt
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(BfaE 26) (£ 27) (B £ 28)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR AR®T:R

Exchange adjustments LS — 88,350 221 88,571
Other changes: Hih &3 -

Interest expense (note 5(a)) M EFRX (PN 5(@) 142,656 248,560 21,583 412,799
Interest payable FERH A8 — (18,982) 45 (18,937)
Total other changes Hith & s @z 142,656 317,928 21,848 482,433
At 31 December 2018 720184 12 A31 H 1,266,911 1,465,981 261,334 2,994,226

304  HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED #/EEIFS IR AMR A 7



23

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont'd) 23 BREeRBHLEENE)
(¢)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (Cont @) () METDELNEENHEE)
Bank loans
and other
borrowings Corporate
HRITER  Senior notes bonds Total
REMEE BERE RRIfES 5t
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(FfaE 26) (F¥aE27) (KtzE28)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARET:R

At | January 2017

Changes from financing cash flows:

Proceeds from new bank loans

and other borrowings

Net proceeds from the issue

of corporate bonds

Repayment of bank loans and

R2017F 1A 1B 2,785,563 1,519,351 9,674 4,314,588

RERERER
MERITERK

B e g 5E 832,344 o = 832,344
BITARES

S IE S8 = — 256,360 256,360
BERTERRAMEE

other borrowings (1554,278) — —  (1554278)
Interest and other borrowing FRENFEKR

costs paid during the year Hfth 5 &R (147,250) (192,829) (705) (340,784)
Total changes from financing REREREL AR

cash flows (869,184) (192,829) 255,655 (806,358)
Exchange adjustments EXRE =3 (89.565) (650) (90,215)
Other changes: Hin &3 -
Interest expense (note 5()) M BF X (PN 5() 147,250 195,650 15,830 358,730
Interest payable FERH A8 = 1,256 (14,074) (12,818)
Total other changes Hin & ERE 147,250 107,341 1,106 255,697
At 31 December 2017 R2017€ 12 A31 H 2,063,629 1,433,863 266,435 3,763927
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

23

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries

0

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED

On | June 2018, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement
with an independent third party to dispose its entire 100% equity
interest in Bright Ocean Business Management (Shenzhen) Company

Limited (“Shenzhen Bright Ocean”) at a consideration of RMBIO.1.

Subsequent to the disposal, Shenzhen Bright Ocean was no longer the
subsidiary of the Group and a gain of RMB6,570,000 was recognised
during 2018.

The Group's assets and liabilities disposed of and net cash inflow from

these disposals are analysed below:

23

ReRBESEEN(E)
d) HEFAHF
() MR2I8F6AIB KEE

EBVE=FILROEE
B MAREI0ITHE
HREtamEER0RI)
ARDAN (TR ) &
280 100% R HE ©

ETHESEE  RIIFE
BIBRASENHEAR
A 0I8FNBRAARE
6,570,000 TLH s o

AEBHERERARRA
HE AT E AR RA S
T

RMB’000
ARBTR
Property, plant and equipment (note |0) M - BB REREBHEE10) 49
Trade and other receivables, prepayments B o REMERFIE  BNFERES
and deposits 1,578
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEED 32
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENTIE (8229)
Net assets of disposed subsidiaries HEFRRIMFEE (6,570)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 4) HEF 2 aeEs (i 4) 6,570
Considerations H{E )
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEN (32)
Net cash outflow FRem (32)

BEERERERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Contd)

(i)

(i)

On 10 August 2017, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to dispose its entire
60% equity interest in Huaiyuan Hydoo Commercial and Trade
Centre Company Limited at a consideration of RMB200,000,000.
The Group received the amount of RMB 109,000,000 in 2018
(2017: RMB40,000,000), and the outstanding consideration of
RMB51,000,000 is to be received in 2019.

On 20 September 2017, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to dispose its entire 84%
equity interest in Xingning Hydoo Commercial and Trade Centre
Company Limited (“Xingning Trade Centre”) at a consideration
of RMB488,800,000. Upon the transferred date, the Group owned
RMB239,270,000 to Xingning Trade Center and the amount would
be settled by offsetting the consideration of the transaction. The
Group received all of the remaining consideration of RMB124,765,000
in 2018 (2017: RMB124,765,000).

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

RERkBESEN(E)

HEFAT

(i)

(i)

RMI17F8[ 108 K &
BEBYE=HILEN
RS WEBARK
200,000,000 i & E R E R
RENERERARINEE
60% AR HE ° NE B R 20185
Y B A K % 109,0000007T
(20174 A K #40,000,000
L) BRTRNHEARK
51,000,000 7T # 72019 F it
Y o

RN17F9A208 " K&
B E= R REEER
& DAMEB AR 488800000
THEAREEREREY
MHERRA(REBHEY
T ) M2 Ee4% R o R
BEAH ARBEHREE
BB A R 239270000
T REBHARSEER
HEEE - REBERWIBEF
ERBAEHRTHEARK
124765000 7C(20174F - AR ¥
124765000 7C)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24 EBEREMENRE

31 December | January 3| December
2018 2018()) 2017()
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT ARETFT
Trade and bills payables (ii) B HRNRIERENRE (i) 2,007,677 2,131,258 2,131,258
Other payables and accruals Hith 3B R et B R 731,424 476,083 476,083
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost AR A ENERAE 2,739,101 2,607,341 2,607,341
Receipts in advance (iii) TR (iif) 8,471 9,107 1,451,017
Deposits (iv) EE (iv) 175,956 94,420 94,420
2,923,528 2,710,868 4,152,778
()  The Group has initially applied IFRS I5 at | January 2018. Under the iy AKER2018FIAIBEKER
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. B PR B 7 R 5 AE RN 5 1557 o (3
ABEAR - MAEFILEREH o
(i) As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade creditors (i) RBEHR  ENERRENRE

and bills payables (which are included in trade and other payables), based on

due date, is as follows:

(ZEEF AR S RAMERNFR)
REHEHBNRROTAT -

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Due within | month or on demand R EA AR ER 293,081 438,023
Due after | to 3 months | £318A 208,607 221,791
Due after 3 months but within 6 months RIEREERERRA 322,785 383,038
Due after 6 months R 618 A& 215 1,183,204 1,088,406

2,007,677 2,131,258

Trade payables mainly represent amounts due to contractors. Payment to

contractors is in installments according to progress and agreed milestones.

The Group normally retains 2% to 0% as retention money. At 31
December 2018, included in trade payables are retention payables of
RMB300,137,000 (2017: RMB281,680,000), which are expected to be

settled after more than one year.

308 HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED #/EEIFS IR AMR A
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BREDHNK -
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd) 24

25

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) Asat 3] December 2018, receipts in advance represents the rental received (i)

in advance from customers. As a result of the adoption of IFRS 15, receipts

in advance related to sales of properties and property management service

are included in contract liabilities.

(iv) At 31 December 2018, deposits of RMB34,888,000 (2017: RMB24,112,000) (iv)

are expected to be settled after more than one year. All of the other

payables and accrued expenses and deposits are expected to be settled

within one year.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

ESREMENREE)

R2018F 128318 BKFES
BREPHHE - HRRBERN
BREERE 5% AMEHE
EOEEERBABOERFED
FABHAE -

RI8ENA3IA BE AR
#348880007(2017F : A R &
241120007C) - EEAKRER—F
BEE o A H MR FIE R ER
X Rize BN —FREE

25 AHEE

31 December | January 31 December
2018 2018() 2017())
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT ARETT
Contract liabilities ARERE
— Advances received for sale of — SHE MR BERE B (i) (i)
property (ii)(iii) 1,834,647 1,498,800 =
— Property management fees received —TRRIEERE (i) i)
in advance (ii)(iii) 8816 5879
1,843,463 1,504,679 —
() The Group has initially applied IFRS [5 using the cumulative effect method () AEBEREFFEEENEAR
and adjusted the opening balance at | January 2018. BRI BRREERE 5% UHAE
R20185F | A | BEFMES o
(i) Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, these amounts were reclassified from “Trade (i) PRAEIRR B ELERIE 155
and other payables” (note 24) to contract liabilities (see note |(c)(ii)). K ZEefml B RAMEN
FEIMEHERIEERNE
E(FRME 1 (o)) °
(i) Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, an opening adjustment as at | January 2018 (i)  FERANVEIRR A RS RIS 155

was made to accrue interest on the advance payments received from

customers (see note [ (c)(ii)).

B R2018%F | B | BYELEA
o PREMDEFHRRNFE
(B AMF 1)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities

recognised are as follows:

Property development

Depending on market conditions, the Group requires the customers to pay off the
full consideration within an agreed time frame while developments are still ongoing,
rather than on the completion of the relevant properties. Such advance payment
schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised throughout the remaining
property development period for the full amount of the contract price. In addition,
the contract liabilities will be increased by the amount of interest expense being
accrued by the Group to reflect the effect of any significant financing benefit
obtained from the customers during the period between the payment date and
the date of delivery of property to customers. As this accrual increases the amount
of the contract liabilities during the period of development, it therefore increases
the amount of revenue recognised when control of the completed property is

transferred to the customer.

25

ANER(E)
HEERSNEESEBKTEN—R
ZRERWT :

ESGES

REMRN  AEBEBKREFPERENA
ETHRE MARERBMEERE -
EHERRAMBEHLE ZERHN
AEBHANEREREEAATYRAS
HRRAOBTHHER - 1 ANA
ERAREEEFNMER B ME
e ARBREFEEXNDERTEFH
A EPESNEMEAREMNEH
T & o MPNILERTIER LM E MR
ANAELE ERIMEMNEHIESE
BERPERERN KEEBEMGEM -

Movements in contract liabilities EHEEED
2018
RMB’000
ARBTR
Balance at | January KA BE &R 1,504,679
Decrease in contract liabilties as a result of FRNBRANFEN AR A BN (531,066)
recognising revenue during the year that was included inthe ~ BHAHN BB
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving FREBR20I18F 12 431 BINERTYER 853,353
advanced payments of sales of properties in HEMERRFIERBERNEERREE
respect of properties still under construction and advanced BHENAEEM
service fee of properties management during the year
as at 31 December 2018
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of BHEAN SR BHENAEEM 16,497
accruing interest expense on advances
Balance at 31 December RI12 A3 BR&E 1,843,463

The amount of billings received advance payment of sales of properties expected
to be recognised as income after more than one year is RMB329,788,000 (2017:
157,569,000, which were included under “Trade and other payables”).

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

Bt —FULERABRANE R E
& A A A R 329788,00075(2017
F: AR 1575690007 * sTAIE SR
HibErzE]) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 2% RITERRHEMEE
At 31 December 2018, the Group's bank loans and other borrowings were R2018F12A318 - AEBMHRTE
repayable as follows: HREMEENERBERNT :
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTT
Current RE
Secured HEH
— short-term bank loans and other borrowings —RERTERREMEE — 14,843
— current portion of non-current bank loans —ERBRTERREMEE
and other borrowings HmEE D 472,661 1158216
Unsecured g
— short-term bank loans and other borrowings —RERTERREMEE 15,000 28,800
487,661 1,201,859
Non-current FRE
Secured AHEA
— repayable after | year but within 2 years ——FREMFRER 498,750 364,770
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years —~MERERFNER 223,250 421,000
— repayable after 5 years - hFRER 56,250 75,000
Unsecured it
— repayable after | year but within 2 years ——EREMENER 1,000 i
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years —~MERERFARER — 1,000
779,250 861,770
1,266,911 2,063,629
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

26 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd)

26

RITERRALEE(E)

(@)  Certain banking facilities and borrowings of the Group are subject to the @) AEENETRIREREERRF
fulfilment of covenants relating to: (1) certain of the Group's operating BBETIIRENRAEKE 78
subsidiaries” statement of financial position ratios; (2) restriction of profit EE: (VAEEARTEENBAR
distribution by certain of its operating subsidiaries; or (3) early repayment ANMBERALEER: Q&KL
of principal to be triggered when 60% of the gross sellable area for the AT EERBA RS BRFEBS
underlying property project are sold. These requirements are commonly FO)EHANEEANAELE
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to TEH) 60% W E R AR K BEE N
breach such covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable TER - ZEREFENESEIK
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these BRIV ERRZH - WAKEER
covenants and communicates with its lenders as and when the directors BRERS - A2 RROREFZR
foresee any non-compliance due to business needs. ERBEE - AEETHELHE

STRERFNER  BEEEEY
HREBBRERELETH » &
SEERERANER -
At 31 December 2018, none of bank loans of the Group (2017: Nil) were R2018F 124318 ' BEAEE
not in compliance with the imposed covenants. MIRITERQ0I7F : T)KRETF
FATRE N0 BR ) -

(b)  Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest ranging from 2.12% to 9.60% (b) REBZE0I8F12A3IBLFE
per annum for the year ended 3| December 2018 (2017: 2.12% to 9.03% RITERREMEED REN T
per annum), and are secured by the following assets: 2.12% & 9.60% #) F M % (2017 F

212%29.03%) 8 WA TIIE

EfFEA

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
Completed properties held for sale HECTIYE 712,045 1,476,581
Properties under development for sale FEEEME 214,354 [,119,998
Investment properties (note | 1(c)) REME (M 1) 683,900 720,200
Properties held for future development for sale & R RAFFRE M 441,523 619,821
Property, plant and equipment (note 10) MmE - B KRB 10) 357,053 367,070
Pledged cash (note 22) BEFRE (M522) — 325421
2,408,875 4,629,091

(c)  Bank loan of RMB50,000,000 (2017: RMB12,000,000) is guaranteed by Mr. ) ARAERBREIEELEE(K

Wong Sheung Tak, a controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore,

a connected person of the Company.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

NAIBEBEAL) BEITERAR
#50,000,0007C(2017F : AR
12,000,000 7T ) 1R FEAR o



27

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

SENIOR NOTES 7 BREE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Current nE
US$ 160 million senior notes due in 2018 R2I8FEH 2 160 EEELBARE
— Tranche | (i) (ii) (iv) ——F—Ha) (i) @v) — 645,006
— Tranche 2 (ii) (iv) ——E 8 (i) (v) — 397,893
US$60 million senior notes due in 2019 (iii) ROI9FE Mz 60BEET
BEEE (i) 411,311 —
411,311 1,042,899
Non-current FRE
US$ 157 million senior notes due in 2020 R2020FEH2 15T EEELELER -
— Tranche | (iv) ——F—#t(v) 873,225 —
—Tranche 2 (v) Rt A () 181,445 =
US$60 million senior notes due in 2019 (i) ROI19FE Mz 60BEET
BEEE (i) — 390,964
1,054,670 390,964
1,465,981 1,433,863
()  On I5 December 2015, the Company issued 13.75% senior notes ()  ROSFRAISA - ARAENRI9.404%

with an aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB646,261,000) at 99.404%, which are due in 2018 (the “2018 Senior

Notes"). The net proceeds from the senior notes, after deducting the
transaction costs, of US$96,500,000 (equivalent to RMB623,642,000) was

received by the Company on |6 December 2015. Interest expense on the

senior notes is calculated using the effective interest rate of 15.25% per

annum.

BITA 2 B 51000000003 T
(FHER AR 646261,0007C) B
0I18F R HH 1375%MEBLEZE
(0I18FERE]) - BMKERH
AT RRAIR2015F 12816
A B3 8 % F 8 % 896,500,000
X (B RN A R #623,642,000
7)o BAZRBNFERIRER
FERE |525%51E o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

27

SENIOR NOTES (Contd)

(i

(i)

On 14 September 2016, the Company issued additional 2018 Senior
Notes with an aggregate principal amount of US$60,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB400,716,000) at 104.81% of the principal amount plus accrued interest,
which are consolidated and formed a single class with the US$100,000,000
aggregate principal amount of 13.75% 2018 Senior Notes due 2018 issued
by the Company on |5 December 2015. The net proceeds from the
additional 2018 Senior Notes, after including interest in arrear and deducting
the transaction costs, of US$63,992,000 (equivalent to RMB427,377,000)
was received by the Company on |5 September 2016. Interest expense on
the additional 2018 Senior Notes is calculated using the effective interest
rate of 12.42% per annum. On 9 May 2018, US$98,400,000 (approximately
61.5%) of the total aggregate principal amount of the US$ 160,000,000 2018
Senior Notes was validly tendered for exchange and accepted for the 2020
Senior Notes (as defined below) as further elaborated in the below note
(iv). As a result of the completion of this exchange, there was an outstanding
principal amount of US$61,600,000 (approximately 38.5%) of the total
aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Senior Notes, and the Company has
redeemed all outstanding 2018 Senior Notes on maturity on |7 December
2018.

On 30 August 2016, the Company issued senior notes of US$60 million
(equivalent to RMB400,872,000) at par with a coupon rate of | 1% per
annum. The senior notes will be due in 2019. The net proceeds from
the senior notes, after deducting the transaction costs, of US$59,720,000
(equivalent to RMB399,002,000) was received by the Company on 30
August 2016. Interest expense on the senior notes is calculated using
the effective interest rate of I1.19% per annum. Mr. Wong Choi Hing, a
controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore, a connected person
of the Company, provides a personal guarantee in favour the performance

of the obligations by the Company.
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R2016FE9R 148 » KD EE
R 10481% INERT RIS EITA
BEROBEET(HERARS
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P ABPK B B — R 5 o 480 EFERT
FIRIMBERHKAR - ARE
R2016%F9 A 15 BB 55018
B LR RS 3818 63,992,000
Z L E RN A R %427,377,000
TL) o BANNISELEEERMNFIE
AXRERFMEI242%1E -
R2IBESAIB A& BB A
160,000,000 JC #2018 F 1B 5L T
1% 98,400,000 7T (4 15 61.5%)
EREMRRIERRAY B EE M
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%) PAENHAABERUATHE
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FEACBBEPRERRERLS
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BIFTA MR ER 2018 FBEZE -

#F O M

R2016F8A30H K A 7 %
TOBBETHERARE
400,872,000 ) EEEME LR
B ZERAEBNEEFEXR
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BRRAKAE - RRFIR2016F
8H30HNBEARBRERET
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27  SENIOR NOTES (Contd)

)

On 24 April 2018, the Company offered its 12% senior notes due May
2020 in an exchange offer to existing holders of 2018 Senior Notes.
US$98,400,000 (approximately 61.5%) of the 2018 Senior Notes were
successfully exchanged. Concurrently with the exchange offer, the Company
made a concurrent new issue of US$25,893,000 of additional 2020 senior
notes, which, together with the US$104,107,000 of the 2020 senior notes
issued pursuant to the exchange offer, constitute an aggregate principal
amount of US$130,000,000, 12% due 2020 senior notes (the 2020 Senior
Notes"). The exchange offer and the concurrent new issue were completed
on 9 May 2018, and the net proceeds from the new issue, after including
interest in arrear and deducting the transaction costs, of US$25,893,000
(equivalent to RMBI51,201,000) was received by the Company on [0 May
2018. Interest expense on the 2020 Senior Notes is calculated using effective

interest rate of 13.78% per annum.

On 10 August 2018, the Company issued additional 2020 Senior Notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$27,000,000 (equivalent to
RMBI184,667,000) at 98.44% of the principal amount plus accrued interest,
which are consolidated and formed a single class with the US$130,000,000
aggregate principal amount of 2% 2020 Senior Notes due 2020 issued by
the Company on 9 May 2018. The net proceeds from the additional 2020
Senior Notes, after including interest in arrear and deducting the transaction
costs, of US$26,201,000 (equivalent to RMB179,204,000) was received by
the Company on 16 August 2018. Interest expense on the additional 2020
Senior Notes is calculated using the effective interest rate of 13.74% per

annum.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

27 BREBE)

(v)

R20I18F4 8248 ARAIR—
BRBENHRETNI8FEL
FEBRAEABTER200F5A
N H R 12% M E KRB 2018F
B % F & £98,400,000% (4
61.5%) G AR IN X H o BRI [ -
A B 38 1725893,000% T K
BIN0WEFERERE  ERRE
KRB K EATHY 104,107,0005 7T
K200FBERE  BRASHE
% 130,000,0003% 7T 720205 Z|
B 12%B L RHE(2020E8 %R
Bl  SBEHRFRRETHOR
BITM2018FE5 AR T - R
2018F5 A I0BREFHETH D
B RT3 FE (0 _E R A S RIE R
BR £ R 5K A 14 )25,893,000% T
(FHE M AR I151201,0007T) °
W0BREZENFERAXAER
EFRGE 13.78%5E o

R20I18F8F 108 ARAEA
EMI9B44%IME TS EITRE
BERVBEET(HERARS
184,667,000 7T ) KO RESN 2020 B £ 2
B ZEEM00EEZEE SR
ADRR20I18F5 A9 ABITHA
& #2 %8 130,000,000 3 7T 12 2020 F
F ) 2% M BARES O RIEK
B—HR o &0 LR IR kR
RBHA% - AARR2018F8 A
l6 BB EIM00BEZEAME
A F(H26201,000% 7T & 7
AEREE 17920400078 ) © ZZFID
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

28 CORPORATE BONDS 28 DEES
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Current nE
HKS$1 1.5 million corporate bonds (i) 5 BEATARMES () 2,944 6,665
RMB260 million corporate bonds (i) AR 260 B E TR RES (i) 258,390 —
261,334 6,665
Non-current FRE
HK$1 1.5 million corporate bonds (i) 15 BEATARES () — 2,590
RMB260 million corporate bonds (i) AR 260 B E TR RES (i) — 257,180
— 259,770
261,334 266,435
() In2016, the Company issued certain unlisted bonds totalling HK$ 1 .5 million () 2016F KARABTETERF
(equivalent to RMB10,287,000) with a coupon rate of 5.00% to 8.00% per % 535.00% £ 8.00% K 3E £ (&
annum. The net proceeds from bonds issued, after deducting the transaction SR 1ISEEETHERAR
costs, of HK$10,693,000 (equivalent to RMB9,565,000) was received by the #10,287,0007T ) © A4 A E Y
Company. Interest expenses on these unlisted bonds are calculated with the BIIESFMEREFEENRR
effective interest rate of 8.41% to 13.78% per annum respectively. SEA) 10,693,000 T (HHER A
F#9,565,0007T) ° FF ETEFHH
MEFARIE8.41%E 13.78%H)
BRFMEGHE
(i) In 2017, the Group issued certain non-public offering of corporate bonds (i) 2017F REEBRTETERF

totalling RMB260 million with a coupon rate of 7.50% per annum. The
net proceeds from bonds issued, after deducting the transaction costs, of
RMB256,360,000 was received by the Group. Interest expenses on these
non-public offering corporate bonds are calculated with the effective interest

rate of 8.04% per annum.
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DEFERRED INCOME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b BEEI - HIUARIIT)
29 EEBA
2018 2017

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT

Government grants BUR Bl
At | January RIAIH 716,000 860,338
Movement during the year FRE
— Government grants received (i) — BB T B (i) 96,965 213771
— Utilisation —B£A (160,230) (220,649)
— Recognised in other income related to - BREMFEBD O BRE
investment properties (note 4(i)) H A A (B EE4()) (29,601) (3,604)
— Disposal of subsidiaries —HEFAR — (133,856)
623,134 716,000
Sales and operating leaseback arrangement HERKEERHER
At | January RIAIR 3,804 4,460
Movement during the year FNE
— Amortisation — % (2,989) (656)
815 3,804
623,949 719,804
Included under: FIA
Current liabilities mEAE 623,296 716672
Non-current liabilities FRBAIR 653 3132
623,949 719,804
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

29

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED

DEFERRED INCOME (Contd)

()

(i)

Pursuant to the respective agreements between the Group and local
governments, such grants are for subsidising the infrastructure construction
of certain projects undertaken by certain subsidiaries of the Group, including,
Yulin Trade Center, Mianyang Trade Center, Ganzhou Trade Center,
Wuzhou Trade Center and Yantai Trade Center.

In connection with certain sales contracts entered into by Jining Logistics
Center and Wuzhou Trade Centre for sales of properties, the Group
subsequently leased back certain sold properties from the respective buyers
under operating leases for terms of 10 years at agreed rental rates. Upon
recognition of the sales of such properties, a portion of the sales proceeds,
which represents the excess of sales price over fair value of such properties,
is deferred and amortised over the respective terms. During the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2017, no deferred revenue was arised from such

sales and leaseback arrangements and no such properties were sold.

BEERERERAT

29

EERA(E)

()

BREAKE RN BN EE
& AERMBARANEYAEE
ETHB AR PANE TIRE ME
R ZFEBEABEEADR
W BRI BMEE YR
B BNEEORRREREEY
I ©

ERBEYRMRENEE YR
BINETHEHESRN K&
EREeERPENHSULEHEE
FRBEHEFEEETEELY
¥ HBRIOF - ZSMERER
HER  HEBBHAABEHAH
FELRTVREBESREE - 1
HBZE2018FER2017F 1283181
FEN - TEEZEERERED
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31

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“‘the MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in various
defined contribution retirement plans organised by municipal and provincial
governments for its employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans ranging from 10% to 20% of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of the employees. A member of the plan is entitled to a pension equal
to a fixed proportion of the salary prevailing at the member's retirement date.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

associated with these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 30 November

201 I, whereby the directors of the Company were authorised, at their discretion,
to grant options to employees of the Group, including directors of any entity
comprising the Group on 30 November 201 1. Additional options were granted
to certain employees of the Group on |6 October 2012 and 20 March 2013
respectively. After such grants, a total number of 1,715 share options were granted
to employees. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for | ordinary

share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

30

31

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERBAIN - BAARKIIR)
EERKER
EREFEAKE

AEBRBEBRHEAES T EE
Wﬁi%ﬁf%%ﬁﬁ%%a?ﬁlx
EREERY-—BARHEAESTE
(TamEE ) BRESFEARHBL
ERAEEMNERBRFENRE - RE
wEEHE EXINESHRRRES
TR AR SRR - 1€ AR
WA £BR 430,000/ 7T © &t &I A0
AE RS -

PEERRE  AEEAREERZE

BTERE AT AR 4R & 1 T B FUR KET
2o AEEBEEEETE  EAKET
ZERAY 0% 20% AR IRFTEIfEF - 2

MBI E T A RESHEERNRARK
BIEMEELRFAENERARE - KL
AERRTIN REEBAREYFF
SRBENRREBMAELBERNR
Bt

DRBEEEURDAERNATN

K@ﬂ%muinﬂwﬁﬁ%éﬂ@
FRERMBRESS - Bt AR

EEREARERERTE muiu
ANARAREES (REASEETE
AARMES)RHBRE - BINOER
BHEARR20012FI0A 168 R20I13F
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s
B o
A

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &3k

319



320

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont )

31

NERGEEURDBERNAR(E)

(@)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as follows: BRENBRERSREENT
Number of ~ Contractual life
instruments of options
TEYH BRESHH
(i) Options granted on 30 November 201 | (i) R 2011 |1 A 30 BRI KB HE 325 85 months
— directors -E8=% 8518 A
— employees —EB ,180 85 months
851& A
Vesting date Percentage
i) =h of vested shares
EEBERHN
Bl
31 December 2012 202F 12431 H 25%
31 December 2013 2013F 12431 8 50%
3| December 2014 20145 12A31 8 75%
31 December 2015 2015 12 A31 H 100%
Number Contractual life

(i) Options granted on 16 October 2012

— employees

Vesting date
58 A

31 December 2013
31 December 2014
31 December 2015
31 December 2016

(i) 20125 10 A 16 AR HMERE

—&&

2013124318
201412 A31R
20159 12 A31 H
2016F 128318

of instruments

THEHE

191

Percentage

of vested shares
EHEBER®H
NEDL

25%
50%
75%
100%

of options

RS W8

74 months
7418 A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

(@)

The terms and conditions of the options granted are as follows: (Cont d)

31

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

NERGEEURDBERNAR(E)

(2)

BHNBRERRARKEDT
(&)

Number of Contractual life

instruments of options

TA¥A BRESNE

(i) Options granted on 20 March 2013 (i) R 201343 A20 BER L HRERE

— directors -5%

Vesting date
58 A

31 December 2014 20149 12 A31 H
31 December 2015 2015124318
31 December 2016 2016% 12831 B
31 December 2017 2017 12 A31 H

19 69 months
69 {E A

Percentage

of vested shares

CEERHG
MBS
25%

50%

75%

100%

The options are exercisable from six months after the Company's Global

offering date to 3| December 2018.

Pursuant to the relevant terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, on 3|
October 2013, being the listing date of the share of the Company in Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, each share with a par value of US$1.00
each under each option granted was automatically adjusted to 48,000
options and the exercise price of each option was adjusted from HK$48,654

to HK$1.014 accordingly.

ZEBBRETR AR 2 HRBER
HsNERAEZE 20185 128318
1718

BEERLFAERABRETE
KRR - R2013F10A318
(BIRR AR N EBE SR 5
BRARLEMAHE)  BEREEH
ERETESREMBR00ETHR
P B BENFEE A 48,000 17 BE AR 4E -
BEhBRENTEEDAEH
48,654 B TLRER 10148
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont'd) 3l MERSEURGREBRNAR(E)
(b)  The number and the weighted average exercise price of share option are (b) BRENHERMNEFITEEN
as follows: T
2018 2017
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of

exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options
¥ I3
THE BREZE TEE EBREHE

QOutstanding at the | January 1A BRTE HK$1.014 56,055,000 HK$1.014 65,095,000
1.0147% 7T 10148 7T

Lapsed/forfeited during the year S PISRIR,/SE UK HK$1.014 (56,055,000  HK$1.014 (9,040,000)
101487 1014787

Outstanding at 31 December 12831 BRAE HK$1.014 — HK$1.014 56055000
101458 7T 1.014 77T

Exercisable at 31 December 12 A3 BRI{T{E HK$1.014 — HK$1.014 56,055,000
1.0148 7T 1.0147%87T

The options are lapsed at 3| December 2018, R2018F 124318 ZEBRE

BRR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

32 RE - #ERERE
@) REREARDINEH

B o ARRERERAEKEIR

individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the FORFRNEBFEEIMT
year are set out below:
Equity settled
Capita share- based
Share Share  redemption Capital payment Exchange  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses equity
L\/{%ﬁufb‘u%
WRfSAT
B BARE ANEERE  AAER AERER  EARR  ZRER BB
The Company 07 RMB00 RMBO00 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB00 RMBO00 RMBI000 RMBI000
3o 32(d)) () 2w 3(d)(iv) 30(d)ii)
ARMTT  ARMTT ARMTR ARMTRL ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
At | January 2017 R0I7EIB18 31805 978266 120 1,386,109 12,600 158919 @nne) 29713
Changes n equiy for 2017: WIEERET
Loss and total comprehensive ERBERZENALE
incorne for the year - - - - - (55364) (24391) (29279)
Equiy setted share-based transactions ~~ JAEREE MR BERMR S - - - = 3 - = 3
Share options forfeted RERE - - 3 = (2176) s 1176 -
At 31 December 2017 (Note) ROITENA3IR () 31805 978266 120 1,386,109 10427 103555 (13865 199437
Changes in equity for 2018: WISERERE
Loss and total comprehensive EREERZENALE
income for the year - - - - - 31,367 (47.826) (216459)
Share options forfetecapsed S/ e = = = = (10427 = 10427 =
At 3| December 2018 H018E12831R 31805 978266 0 1386109 - 1349 (751264 1779978
Note: The Group, including the Company, has initially applied IFRS |5 and IFRS Mzt : AEE (BEARAR) K208

9 at | January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative

information is not restated. See note | (c).

FIAIBERERBERMBER
%EEJ%IS%&IW BBRE
HAFE5% - RERBELA -
WA E Jtt%’iﬁﬂ ° AN
I(c) °

-hw
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)
32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 32

(b)  Dividends

(i) For the year ended 3| December 2018, no final dividend in respect

of the previous financial year was approved and paid (2017: Nil).

BRE - RERRE(E)

b) k=

(0

BHE08FNANBILSE
B - BEESLE KRR EE
FREREHRARE(Q017
F:E)o

(i) Subsequent to the end of reporting period, no final dividend is (i) RBEBREESRREAR
proposed (2017: Nil). B(017F:F) -
(c)  Share capital () RX
Authorised and issued share capital EERBETRA
2018 2017
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
BRI #A x| BRI #A ok
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
ik FER TR FEn
Authorised: B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE 0.0 B TH LB 8,000,000 80,000 8,000,000 80,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRARERAR -

Nominal value of

ordinary shares

LaREE

Par value No. of shares Amount Amount

HE BRAEAR ©8 ©8

HK$ ’000 HK$'000 RMB’000

BT T TEr AR%Tx
At | January 2017, R20I7FI1AI1B -
31 December 2017 2017% 12831 B

and 31 December 2018 K2018F 12431 B 001 4,014,844 40,148 31,825

Note: There is no change in ordinary shares during 2018 and 2017. BisE : 2018F 22017 L BRI S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(d)

Reserves

()

(it)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries and relevant statutory regulations, appropriations to
the statutory reserve fund were made at 10% of profit after tax
determined in accordance with accounting rules and regulations of the
PRC until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
This reserve fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or
increasing capital of the PRC subsidiaries provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered capital,

and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all relevant exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
with functional currency other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt

with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note [(x).

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

()

()

(i)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

BE - RERKRE(E)
f#E

RiraE

REFASHEARE  AQ
AR IR ERR A AR R AR
XN RIS - R
ZREESEINDIREBE A
& AREBEAXNA
FERBBRTMIMERS

FEEERE

REASEREFLARNA
BERMARBEAZEE
B BRPEEHANR
ERETEMRBENEN
l0%mRZEEFRBELEN &
ZRELBEIFRELRN
50% o @ T AR EH
FEF R AR R EEEE
B HEARREBLERT
PRAMERN 2% B
WERE - TATARAIR o

EXL#E

EXRERRRREFAR
BONEEREEMBR
KMELHNRBMBELE
B AREEME () FAE
Ve RRRIE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)
(d) Reserves (Contd)

(iv)  Equity settled share-based payment reserve

Equity settled share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group in accordance with the

accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note | (t)(ii).

(v)  Capital reserve

Capital reserve is resulted from transactions with owners in their
capacity as the equity owners. The balance comprises capital reserve
surplus/deficit arising from the difference between the disposal/
acquisition consideration and its net assets value at the respective
date of disposal/acquisition, and the capital reserve transferring from

the equity settled share-based payment reserve.

(vi)  Reserve-transaction with non-controlling interests

The balance represents difference between the net identifiable assets

and the consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling interests.

(e)  Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately RMBI,748,153,000 (2017: RMBI,964,612,000),
which may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course

of business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to fund its property
development projects, provide retumns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing properties commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. The
Group defines this ratio as total interest-bearing liabilities (includes bank
loans and other borrowings, senior notes and corporate bonds) divided by
total assets of the Group. At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the gearing ratio

of the Group was calculated as follows:

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

32 RE-RHERERE(E)
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AiEE - AEERTE UL 1%
ARAGBERRTERRAbE
B BEEBRAREGESFBUE
SEEEBME - R2018R2017F

L'-‘\m]}}

AR AEBZEERAGL
M

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTT
Bank loans and other borrowings BTERREMEE 1,266,911 2,063,629
Senior notes BERE 1,465,981 433863
Corporate bonds AAlfER 261,334 266,435
Total interest-bearing borrowings TEER 2,994,226 3763927
Total assets BEE 14,571,060 14,802,895
Gearing ratio BEABRE 20.5% 254%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.

AR B SREAEAFRBHEAZINED
MM BARREMR
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(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

33

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency risks and equity price risk arises

in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group s also exposed to equity

price risk arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below:

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The Group maintains
a defined credit policy and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks and

financial institutions, for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as set out in note
35, the Group does not provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in

note 35.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(@)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Trade receivables and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 84% (2017: 0%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the only one largest customer of the Group.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers, but the
Group only assists the buyer to obtain the individual property ownership

certificate upon the full settlement of receivables from the buyer.

In respect of loans to third parties and other debtors, regular review and
follow-up actions are carried out on long-aged other receivables and any
default incurred, which enable management to assess their recoverability
and to minimise exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and other receivables at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

33  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

3 cREAREERAAEGE)

historical experience and adjusted to reflect differences between economic

conditions during the period over which the historic data has been collected,

current conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions over the

expected lives of the receivables.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

(@)  Credit risk (Cont'd) @ fFERARRE)
Trade receivables and other receivables (Cont d) ESRUFEREMENRE(E)
The following table provides information about the Group's exposure to TREINR2018F12A31BEE
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and other receivables as at 3| B FEERERERM O IARE -
December 2018: WoRaa & E b R OR TR B (S R
BRH
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss Rate amount allowance
EHEER IRE#AE EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR®T AR®T R
Current (not past due) or past due A (R E) sk &
within 30 days for T30 H
— trade receivables — B S REWE T 237413 =
— other receivables —H el Eia 3.22% 352,185 11,330
— amount due from a joint venture
(note 15) —EREE R EFRBE (I 15) 100% 19,613 19,613
— finance lease receivables - EHERWEIE 2.06% 86,788 [,786
More than 90 days past due 8 R 38 90 A
— trade receivables — B S REWE 48% 5,657 2,691
— finance lease receivables - EHERWETE 100% ['1,220 [1,220
712876 46,640
Except for the specific expected loss, other expected loss rates are based on BFTESEE)  EthTREEE

ZRRERLRRTELARRBR
BR(HEFBECABRKE) KB
MAZE - B RSB E
WA B AN R ER R B
R MIARE -
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(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 33 SRERBEERAAEE)
(@)  Credit risk (Cont'd) @ fFERARRE)
Comparative information under IAS 39 B &7t B RIE 39 KR BEH
Prior to | January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only when there 018F 1 A1 HA HEBEER
was objective evidence of impairment (see note |(m)(i) — policy applicable BEBREZERER(GRMNT
priorto | January 2018). At 31 December 2017, trade receivables and other [(m)()—2018% | A | B A A /Y
receivables of RMB9,864,000 were determined to be impaired. BK) R2017F12A318 &

S WG & E A fE M B A R
9,864,000 TLXETE AR{E °

The impairment loss of trade receivables and other receivables was assessed B S RN A E R R E R
individually. The individually impaired receivables were related to customers KA AR o ERI LR ERRE
that were in financial difficulties and management assessed that only a RERERERBERENT P
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. M- It B REREN TR R I
B 5B 5 e W AR 8
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade receivables and FNE H R HEREMEKE
other receivables during the year is as follows: HEERERZSHNT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBETT

Balance at 3| December under IAS 39 IRIEBIRR & 512855 39 557
and at | January under IFRS 9 (note I(c)(i)) 12 A 31 B RIBERE I KRS
RRIFIHN | B | BR&S

(BREEE 1 (<)) 9,864 7225
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFRA (9,864) e
Impairment losses recognised during the year 4F ITERR AR BB 46,640 2,639
Balance at 31 December R 12 A3 B&EH 46,640 9,864
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33

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 33 SREREERAAEE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (b) REMERER
The Group management reviews the liquidity position of the Group on an AEEEREREERASENRD M
ongoing basis, including review of the expected cash inflows and outflows, MR BEBREARSRARRL
sale/pre-sale results of respective property projects, maturity of loans EMEREMBE BEXE  BEFR
and borrowings and the progress of the planned property development EEINRBERA R EMEREBEEN
projects in order to monitor the Group's liquidity requirements in the short EE NEEAEENEHRRARS
and longer terms. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity BB AEENBREEHERER
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it UBRREEETRER  UHERE
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding BERANREHE RRETESHKE
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the NRARHNEA#RES  WENRREH
short and longer term. MR o
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end TR AEEERAB(TOELAEE
of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities excluding receipts BERME T IOEEENBYRE)R
in advance, which the Group expects to settle by delivery of completed EREHRRNAT AR - SWHR
properties. The contractual maturities are based on contractual undiscounted RRBENAMBRRERE(BREUGH
cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, MEH(HFE) & REPRFTHON X
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the BENFERNFTUARAEETEERH
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: FREHE
2018
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SRRBRRERH
More than More than
Within | year but 2 year but
| year or less than less than More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-Frg BB-F 2 BEMF
REX EIRWME BIREFE  BEIE @zt REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR AR%TR ARMTR ARETR
Bank loans and other borrowings $R1TEH R E 1S & 548,038 533710 248317 65,439 1,395,504 1266911
Trade and other payables 5 REMERFE 2438964 300,137 = = 2,739,101 2,739,101
Corporate bonds DRER 302,143 = = = 302,143 261,334
Senior notes BEZE 563,743 1,142,174 — — 1,705,917 1 465,981
3,852,888 1,976,021 248317 65,439 6,142,665 5,733,327

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T
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BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 33 SRERBEERAAEE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd) (b) REMERERE
2017
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BNRUBRER
More than More than
Within | year but 2 years but
| year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years More than Canrying
—FA% BE—F BRME 5 years Total amount
REX  EIRWME  EIREF BRNF a5t REE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Bank loans and other borrowings S/TEH R EftfEE 1,267,170 401,863 462,655 91,661 2223349 2,063,629
Trade and other payables EAREMERFTE 2,561,457 52279 = = 2613736 2613736
Corporate bonds NRES 7,369 22499 279,500 = 309,368 280642
Senior notes BARR 1232350 435,178 a = 667,528 1454228
5068346 911819 742,155 91,661 681398 6412235
(c) Interest rate risk () FERER

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents,

pledged and restricted cash and borrowings issued at variable rates.

The Group does not anticipate significant impact on cash and cash
equivalents and the pledged deposits because the interest rates of bank

deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank loans of the Group are
disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements. The Group does not carry

out any hedging activities to manage its interest rate exposure.

PHNER - ARENEEBRTER
BRELALFEY BHEFER
REIRE RFBMERER -

FEEEHRS RASSENRE
ERERTEREAYE  RAT
BETERAETEAEALD -

AEBFTERNMERERBER
RERMBEREMF26 - REE
3 A B TR A R R B AT T
T
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33

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 33 SRERBEERAAEE)
Interest rate risk (Cont'd) () FEEKE)
Interest rate profile () FEER
2018 2017
Effective Effective
Interest rate Interest rate
BRA= BHRME
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% ARBTR % ARETRT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEREER :
Bank loans and RITEK
other borrowings NKEMEE 7.41% 526,000 621% 586,800
Senior notes BERE 13.05% 1,465,981 13.36% 433,863
Corporate bonds NEEH 8.11% 261,334 8.11% 266,435
2,253,315 2,287,098
Variable rate borrowings: FEFIEEE :
Bank loans and RITER
other borrowings FEMEE 13.13% 740911 5.40% 1,476,829
Total borrowings BmEE 2,994,226 3,763,927
Net fixed rate borrowings ~ BITEF| {8 & F L&
as a percentage of total EEBNBEDL
borrowings 75% 61%

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T
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33  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(c) Interest rate risk (Contd)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's profit after tax and total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by approximately RMB2,778,000 (2017:
decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and total equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by approximately
RMB5,538,000), which has not taken into account of effect of interest

capitalisation.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a change in interest

rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis as 2017.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)
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(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

33  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 33

(d)  Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily on bank deposits,
corporate bonds and senior notes to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily US dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. The currency option has been entered into to mitigate the foreign

currency risk (note 16).

CREBEERAABE)
d E¥ERK

AEEmENERR - TEREE
RSBENBTER  RREER
BERE - SIHARRRNERE
ERETTRABT - AEBHINES
R ESNERBR (FEE 16) ©

(i) Exposure to currency risk () E¥EE
The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of each TRAMKAEBRE REH
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets AEHNEHERYEER
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional MOINEE A ENERRAEE
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purpose, FEBEENEEER - 3t
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the 25mE - BREEIAR
spot rate at the end of each reporting period. BHIR - RS RS BRE
AREEXRHE o
2018 2017

United Hong Kong  United States Hong Kong

States Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars

EYH B £ BT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®TR AREBTT AR%T:R

Cash and cash equivalents BR& RREFEY 49,256 17 14,673 1,156

Pledged cash EEARE — = 117,744 =
Corporate bonds YNSILEeo — (3,022) i (9,379)

Net exposure arising from BEEREENEE
recognised assets EEHERFE

and liabilities 49,256 (3,005) 132,417 (8,223)
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(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 33 SRERBEERAAEE)
(d)  Currency risk (Contd) d) E¥ERE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBESH

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's
profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all

other risk variables remained constant.

2018
Effect on

Increase/  profit before

(decrease) tax and
in foreign retained
exchange profits

rates %.I‘B%ﬁﬁﬁ
SEL = AR
E#/ REFH

AR BEHREAEEEE
AFERINELL RN Z B H
ZARY WRRMAEML
RRZEERHIE  TRE
AR BB BN B
R MJE ) 7 B 2 A #O BN RS

ik

by o

2017
Effect on

Increase/  profit before

(decrease) tax and
in foreign retained
exchange profits

rates ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ
HINGE £, 2 MER
A/ REBFHE

(FF#) e (FF%) EopZ

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

United States Dollars Ey 5%/ 2,463 5%/ 6,621
(5%) (2,463) (5%) (6,621)
Hong Kong Dollars BT 5%l (150) 5%l 4l
(5%) 150 (5%) 411
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(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

33  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)
(d)  Currency risk (Contd)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Contd)

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis is calculated based on the
major net foreign currency exposure of the Group as at the reporting
date, assuming 5% shift of RMB against USD and HKD on the profit
after tax and retained profits and excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis as 2017.

(e)  Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments held for non-trading purposes classified as financial assets

measured at FVPL (see note 16).

The Group's unquoted investments are held for long term strategic
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually against
performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited information
available to the Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to the

Group's long term strategic plan.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T

33

EREAREERAAEE)

(d)

ERERE)
(i) BBEZF(E)

INEBRESTIREARSE
BRRE R RN EINER
BOFEE(REMBRTIER
MBEREBAENS - AR
MEETRABTFEES%H
28)) RTBEHBNE
BRRBRRAEREAEE
ME2NEBs|ENEE -5
DT 3122017 FHERE
L -

EEREERAR

$¢EE%E#%%ﬁﬁEﬁ@ﬁ

BEEHTAEHERNERNE
FM% TREEENEREDER
(RMzE16)

$E§%$ﬁ%&§%ﬁ¢5%%
Fi $EIA@F%HEim
E %i’% BHAERENMHZLE
RERRELEMEFE—R 2
RFHE %S AR S B R R TS
HARRRIE -

o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y
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(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 33 SRERBEERAAEE)

(f)  Fair value measurement

()

) DREFE

Financial instruments measured at fair value () HBARENEHNZHIA
The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments TREFIRBERRUEE
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, HEAGENERIARAR
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in {6 - WIRBIR B B R & 2R
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value 3% DABEFEMRE
measurement is classified is determined with reference to the ABR=ZBEAAERHN - A
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation REFERBENTHER
technique as follows: SE T R B A\ BUR AT ER 3R
HRBEEmMAOERETH
A5l

Level | valuations:

F—RIGME

Level 2 valuations:

F_RhE -

Level 3 valuations:

F=RMhE

Fair value measured using only Level | inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

EFERFE—REBAENLAE  BNHERREERTSHEREERE ERALARNRE
Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level |, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available

ERE_RBEAENRAE  IAHEE-—RNAIBEEBRAERATIEENERY
& - PABRFBHEEERETHERNEE

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs

ERTTEENERMIEENARE
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33  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

() Fair value measurement (Contd)

33 SRERBEERAAEE)
) DABEE)

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont d) () BAREGTEHNZEIAE)
Fair value
measurements
as at
Fair value 31 December
Fair value at measurements as at Fair value at 2017
31 December 31 December 2018 31 December  categorised
2018 categorised into 2017 into Level 2
Level 2 Level 3
R20175
12A318
R2018% R20I18F 12831 B R2017% DRR
12A31 B# PBRUTREIM 12A3IAK  HZRM
ARE AffEE ARE RAREFE
FoR E=R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR¥TRT ARETT AR®T:
Recurring fair EMNLETE
value measurements
Assets: BE
Other financial assets: Hih S REE
— Dervative financial —TESBTE
instrument 2,409 2,409 — 13548 13548
— Unlisted equity investments — AIEE Z 155 &)
not held for trading FEERRE 118,594 — 118,594 = —

At 3| December 2018 and 2017, the Group's financial instruments

carried at fair value are unlisted equity investments not held for

trading (see note |6) which are categorised into Level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy and derivative financial instrument (see note |6) which

fall under Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

() Fair value measurement (Contd)

()

(i)

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont d)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were
no transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
and fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried at
cost or amortised cost were not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of derivative financial instruments in Level 2 is the
estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate
the option at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the option

counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments is determined using
the price/sales ratios of comparable listed companies adjusted
for lack of marketability discount. The fair value measurement is
negatively correlated to the discount for lack of marketability. As at
31 December 2018, the price/sales ratio and discount for lack of
marketability adopted were 0.58 and 27.7% respectively.

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

33 SREREERAAEE)
) RAREFEE)

()

(i)

(i)

BRAREBHEMTA(E)

BLE20I18F R2017F 128
3IALEEE  F—HEE-
BzBUEAMES - TE
BASEHE=L - KEE
MERARBEERAESR
ERNRERRERE  #
RARRA 2 BEER o

AR BRI S AT
e TARAERELR
20184 20175 12A31 8
HMARETESAEE -

FoRALEGTEFAHE
ERERHAEE

F_AOEERIANDA
EAREERBERRR
RIEEM R R TE
{8 - B ABVEAI R R B
HHRHFEENE -

BEHE=RALETENE
#

ELEMRETENRAREN
Ak FMARMNERHE
LR AE - BRBRTSRB
HEHMTEMALR - AR
BN ERRRBRTSRA
HEHMTEARL - B
018F 128318 Z% B
B9 8 R DA R TS T B T
BARIB058 AR 27.7% °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 33 SREREERAAEE)
() Fair value measurement (Contd) ) DABEE)
The movement during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair value HAFE=RARETBHER
measurements is as follows: ZHEROT -
2018
RMB’000
AR®F
Unlisted equity investments not held for trading. A FE S AR L MiERERE
At | January RIAIA 84,731
Additional investments acquired BREBEIMERRE 24,680
Investments disposed EHERERRE (18,201)
Net unrealised gains recognised in profit or FARNERRRORE RN TR
loss during the year 27,384
At 31 December mI12A31H 118,594
Total gains for the period included in RRBERARFENEET ABR
profit or loss for assets held at the end B EI A M AR
of the reporting period 27,384

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBMRIZEKRERLD T



34 COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital commitments outstanding at 3| December 2018 contracted but

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

34 EE

(2)

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

M2018F 12 831 BB TAERE
BHRERARBENERAENT !

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Construction and development contracts

Land agreements

RENERAN
T

2,050,974 765,895
— 25,981
2,050,974 791,876

At 3| December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating lease are payable as follows:

(b)

M2018F 12831 B REFAH
HREHERNAREEHASHEE
FHERMT

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Within | year —ER 12,163 12,950
After | year but within 2 years —FREMEAN 10,464 8,509
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 26,014 26,843
After 5 years Fik 18,834 29,498

67,475 77,800

The Group leases a number of building facilities under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of | to 5 years, with an option
to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

FEERBEEHENESHETR
e HEANP—RA—Z21F YWk
ZEHREY  BERAAGFOEEHR
e - EREERAAEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

35

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of
the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty
owned by the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group's guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
the earlier of the buyer obtained the individual property ownership certificate and

the full settlement of mortgage loans by the buyer.

The maximum amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted
to the purchasers of the Group's properties at the end of each reporting period is

as follows:

35

HAEE
B’R

AEBAETRITRAEENEET
A MEBERMK HNRBRERME
R - REBEERGT - HZEETER
BREAR WAKEAREEEREN
RBETERZOETEMN TRITOME
R FSRIR - AEBENERDH
HEZBERRLBHE  EE2ERN
RENEERE R 2BANRBER AR
PERE)RL

RERERRAAERENEE S ERM
BEBEMARTELNEAEREE
o

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities ~ BASEYEE FEEMNIZBREM
granted to purchasers of the Group's properties [MERTTYE L A AR 2,204,505 2511983

The directors consider that it is not probable that the Group will sustain a loss
under these guarantees as the Group can take over the ownerships of the related
properties and sell the properties to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the
banks. The directors of the Company also consider that the fair market value of the
underlying properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage loans guaranteed

by the Group in the event the purchasers default payments to the banks.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of these guarantees

as its fair value is considered to be minimal by the directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the amount due from related parties as set out in note 21, the other

material related party transactions are disclosed as follows:

(@)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain

of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

36

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

EXBBERS
FREVHOMIRE 2| FEARRR R 7 5URSN - Bt

EWN: L

(2)

REBEET :

TEEEASHH

AEETEEEABHMEREME
THBREARRBEEXNNEH
LR ERE TRE#ER

XMEEE  HIMT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARBTT
Wages, salaries and other benefits in kind I8 FehEMEYEH 26,874 25,862
Contribution to defined contribution R M TURIAGTE
retirement plans 404 511
27,278 26,373
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). FEEE N B IR J(F2RM T

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions

As set out in note 26(c) and note 27(iii), Mr. Wong Sheung Tak and
Mr Wong Choi Hing are controlling shareholders of the Company and
therefore, connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The personal guarantee constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules. However, as
the personal guarantee is not secured by any assets of the Group and is
conducted on normal commercial terms or better, the personal guarantee is
fully exempted from shareholders” approval, annual review and all disclosure

requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

No other related party transactions falls under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter [4A

of the Listing Rules.

5(b)) °

(b)

IHRABBER S NERY

AT 5E 26(c) MBIFE27¢ii) - T8
EREMTBREERAAAER
RE - Bt ALEmHAE ™A
ETARAINBAEALT - BE L
MHRAETHAE - ZERAER
BRARRNBERS - Al - &
RMEAARRY BAKEEMEEE
BR - WAFEREENREERR
T BEAERETZHERE
FHRBIE 14A90 B STARE #t
K FEERKBERERE

BEEMmEY T R 2B EHAA
FTHASHMERNBER SIS
BRERS -

SaF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFREBIN - BAAREIR)

37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37  AREEHNBMBERRE
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B sE AR®ET R ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE

Interests in subsidiaries im0 1,498,048 1,865,445
Other non-current financial asset HidEmeemEE 16 2,409 13,548
1,500,457 1,878,993

Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H A fEYGRIE 1,824,837 1,612,795
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEEN 387 1,669
1,825,224 | 614464

Current liabilities nREBEE
Other payables and accruals H it et R B AT IR 76,778 53,902
Senior notes BERE 411,311 1,042,899
Corporate bonds NEES 2,944 6,665
491,033 1,103,466
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,334,191 510,998
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 2,834,648 2,389,991
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38

39

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAARETIR)

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont'd) 37 DRBHNBBRRERE)
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB000
B aE ARETT ARET T
Non-current liabilities *¥RBEE
Senior notes BEEE 1,054,670 390,964
Corporate bonds NEEH = 2,590
1,054,670 393,554
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,779,978 1,996,437
Capital and reserves BRAR #E 32(a)
Share capital A 31,825 31,825
Reserves 4] 1,748,153 1964612
TOTAL EQUITY ERAR 1,779,978 1,996,437
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 38 LEEREFE

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at | January 2018. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated except for
separately presenting impairment losses on trade and other receivables. Further

details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note | (c).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 39

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Most Trend Holdings Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and beneficially
owned by the Controlling Shareholders. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

AEER0ISFEIAIBEAERBER
HBREERNE SRR BREE
BIE95 - REDEBERN  LBAHN
TeBy HEBRIEFHRAMER
HEREBRE EZ ST BREHNF
TERBERMEE 1 (c) °

HERBRERT

R2I18F K2017F 128318 EER
AASEERRNRAIRGERERAARE
BRERBRAA - ZATREBERR
HEAMKLAERAR L HERRR
Enlkf ZERBVERZEARAR
HBI R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIEMI - HAARMGIR)

40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a few
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 3|
December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

40

REZ2018F 12831 HEFECHE A
BEREMNETT  FEARREHT
3%
EZZEUMBREATNERE  BRes
HAIBERERMETREZE20I18F 12
A BEFERRERB L ERNZENH
BEREEMOET REFTLER - EHBHE
ATt ASEHMNERE -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RUTBEHH 2%

Rk arBEER
IFRS 16, Leases | January 2019
BRI |RERANE 165 - HE 2019%1 A 1B
IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments | January 2019
BRI RERBREEGARE BT EHEEN T BTEY 09F 1 AR
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle | January 2019
20155 22017 FRPBR A ISR A0 F 2 E 01951 AR
Amendments to |AS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures | January 2019
BIR et ERE 28R (BETX) - REELARE BRI R E R 09F1A1H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Contd)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of the IFRS
|6 which may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for IFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial
adoption of this standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standard is initially applied in the Group's interim financial
report for the six months ending 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options, until the standard is

initially applied in that financial report.

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note I(l), currently the Group classifies leases into finance leases
and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending
on the classification of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor

and others as the lessee.

40

BrEs AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEBS - HUARSTIT)
RBZ20I8F 12831 ALEECEMH
BEREMNETT  FEARREHT
REE(E)
AEBFEFEERZZET - HER
FREHERERBRUGELNY
%o@iamﬁmfﬁilaﬁﬁﬁm
R BRELERNE 6RMETHEIR
HEMMBRREKEATE WM
HERYZEE T T+ AHm - BE
HERMBREERE 6RMTHES
ETH - ERES TR DER
AEERBABNER BN E KRR
ZEARNERFZAgAR - BERA
SEHZ209F6A30BEAEAN
hERET IS RS T R E AR E R AT N AT
RERE-—STE ARETAREHE
SHHRNERELED(OERAEE
B) BEERZMBERETERAEAZE
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BIFRRI B EZRISE 165 - HE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIEMI - HAARMGIR)

40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Contd)

IFRS 16, Leases (Contd)

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors account
for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value of
the minimum future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-
use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is |2 months or less) and to
leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be

recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a lessee of leases for
properties, plant and equipment which are currently classified as operating leases.
The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in

the statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Contd)

IFRS 16, Leases (Contd)

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019. As
allowed by IFRS 16, the Group plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
Group will therefore apply the new definition of a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts
that are entered into on or after the date of initial application. If the practical
expedient is not chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of its decisions about
which existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the new definition. Depending
on whether the Group elects to adopt the standard retrospectively or follow a
modified retrospective method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at the date of initial application, the Group may or may
not need to restate comparative information for any changes in accounting resutting

from the reassessment.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective approach for the
adoption of IFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at | January 2019 and will not
restate the comparative information. As disclosed in note 34(b), at 3| December
2018 the Group's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to RMB67,475,000 for properties and other assets respectively,
the majority of which is payable either between | and 5 years after the reporting
date or in more than 5 years. Upon the initial adoption of IFRS 16, the opening
balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use assets will be adjusted
to RMB47,975,000, after taking account the effects of discounting, as at | January
2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, the Group
expects that the transition adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of IFRS
|6 will not be material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above could have a material impact on the Group's financial statements

from 2019 onwards.

40
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352

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

rEERBZRENE

COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ExXTREMNE

Percentage of

Floor area interest of
EEES the Company

No. Properties Type  Term of land sq.m. NN
ik #3% EEidl T EFR FhAK LA
| Portion of office and commercial of office Medium 1,836 100%

Haode Yinzuo, WA F HA

|8 Zhangjiang South Avenue, commercial 382

Zhanggong District, EES

Ganzhov,

Jiangxi Province,

PRC

i

IFE

N

EEE

EIRMAE 8%

ISR

EE/NNEE SR
2 Guangcai Trade Plaza Convention Center of convention center Medium 33,823 100%

Ningxiang Trade Center, @R R Hp

2 Yuxing Road, Yutan Town,
Ningxiang County,
Changsha,

Hunan Province,

PRC

H

RS

=920

£

ERELLEN YL
EREERD L
REEZEZERT L
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No.

Properties

3 %

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
rEERBZREME

Type
BR

Term of land

T FR

Percentage of

Floor area interest of
BEEME the Company
sq.m. RAF
FAR Rz L

Portion of Jewel Market and Convention Center of
Wuzhou Trade Center,

Shundi Avenue,

Changzhou District,

Wuzhou,

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

PRC

I

BAREAKERE

BN

RME

FRTAE
BNEEDRTLEAB AR LMD

Portion of Small Commodity Market of Zone B of
Jining Trade Center,

East State Road 105, North Juyu Road,

Jining,

Shandong Province,

PRC

R E

WERE

S S

AT

I0SEER « ESEL
BEEEHEYRTOBE
NE A B

convention center
A
@R

commercial

[(EES

Medium
]

Medium
]

18,250 100%

50,481 100%
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

rEERBZRENE

No. Properties

3 %

Type
BR

Term of land

T FR

Floor area

BEER
sq.m.

FHK

Percentage of
interest of
the Company
AR

Rz L

5 Portion of Comprehensive Exhibition Center,

Ganzhou Hydoo Trade Center,
Southwest side of Tan Dong Road Two,
Northwest Hexie Avenue,
Ganzhov,

Jiangxi Province,

PRC

i

IAEE

#EMm

BR-_BEAAEA
MEAREFIL A
ENREREMRE
FRERFLZED

6 Portion of Hall 3,
Hydoo International Trade Center,

1228 North Second Ring Road,

Yulin,

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
PRC

HE

BB A&

EHm

ZIRILEE 12285

RIEEREEN

3SR H D

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED HEEKIERERA R

commercial

SES

commercial

SES

Medium
8

Medium
8

58,853

29,733

100%

100%



FF3

Properties

kS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
rEERBZREME

Type
BR

Term of land

T FR

Percentage of

Floor area interest of
BEEME the Company
sq.m. RAF
FAR Rz L

Portion of Hall 5,

Hydoo International Trade Centre,
1228 North Second Ring Road,
Yulin,

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
PRC

HE

Btk B A&

EHm

ZIRIEEE 12285
RiEEREEN

5ERER.Z B

Red Star Macalline Global,

Household Shopping Mall in Heze Trade Center,

East of National Highway 220,
West of Kunming Road, North of Binhe Road,
Mudan District,

Heze,

Shandong Province,

PRC

FE

WRE

SET

"R

20FEHAR

BB AT

B R ALL

SRR
AEXIRERRBELERES

commercial

SES

commerdial
.
EES

Medium
8

Medium
8

29313 100%

54,680 100%
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

rEERBZRENE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY IN PROGRESS
ERREMNE

Percentage of

Floor area interest of

EEES the Company

No. Properties Type  Term of land sq.m. NN

ik #3% EEidl T EFR F5K R L

| Zone D of Jining Trade Center, commercial Medium 63,396 100%
Intersection of State Road 105 and Taibai Road, S 8

Jining,

Shandong Province,
PRC

i

WRE

o
=T
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